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Past Performance and Forward Looking Statements

The performance and the results of operations of Zensun Enterprises Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) as set out in this annual report
are historical in nature and past performance is not a guarantee of future performance. This annual report may contain forward-looking statements and opinions (including
statements, figures, plans, images and other information) that involve risks and uncertainties. Actual results may also differ materially from expectations discussed in such
forward-looking statements and opinions. Neither the Group nor any of its directors, employees or agents shall assume any obligations or liabilities in the event that any
forward-looking statements or opinions does not materialise or turns out to be incorrect.
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In case of any inconsistency between the English text and the Chinese translation of this annual report, the English text shall prevail.

PFIRZ BRI IFUZEE - AR



/-

2

EBREERRAA

CORPORATE PROFILE
NGy

Zensun Enterprises Limited

LTIV

Zensun Enterprises Limited (the “Company”) was founded in 1965 and listed on
the Main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”)
since 1972. The Company has been included as a constituent for the MSCI Hong
Kong Small Cap Index in May 2021 and as a constituent for the Hang Seng
Composite Index in March 2022 respectively. The Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group”) primarily engages in property development, property
investment, project management and sale services, hotel operations and securities
trading and investment in Hong Kong, The People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”)
and overseas.

With the change of controlling shareholder of the Company since July 2015,
the Group has been expanding its business in the property development sector
in the PRC. From mid 2015 and up to 2022, the Group completed 161 land
acquisitions through tenders, public listings for sale auctions and other merger and
acquisitions in support of the land reserves for property development business
in Henan Province, Beijing and Hubei Province. As at 31 December 2022, the
Group had 41 completed property projects and/or sub-phases and 55 on-going
complex property projects on hand with 116 land parcels under development
and planning constituting the Group’s land reserves with an aggregate site area
of approximately 4.62 million square metres (“sq.m.”) and aggregate estimated
gross floor area (“GFA”) of approximately 9.87 million sg.m. in the PRC. In return,
the land reserves will bring to the Group an estimated saleable/leasable GFA
under development of approximately 6.21 million sgq.m. and estimated GFA under
planning of approximately 3.66 million sg.m. After the ambitious land acquisitions
completed in recent years, the Group built up strong land reserves for the Group’s
property development business in the PRC for the next three to four years with a
strong presence in Henan Province. In the foreseeable future, the Company will
continue to identify new property development projects and bid for land use rights
of selective land parcels in the PRC with focus on Henan Province, as well as other
selective first and second tier cities in the PRC. In 2022, the Group has started to
operate a new hotel, namely, Zensun Jianguo Hotel, the first LOFT themed space
art hotel in Zhengzhou City, the PRC. In January 2023, Zensun Jianguo Hotel won
the “2022 Great Partner Award” from Trip.com.

In the United States (“USA” or “U.S.”), the Group holds approximately 5.7% equity
interest over the NYSE-listed real estate investment trust (“REIT”), Global Medical
REIT, Inc. (“GMR”) as of 31 December 2022, and continues to share GMR’s
growth through receipt of dividend income, thereby achieving long-term capital
appreciation of the Group’s investment.

The Company will make use of the Group’s financial, human and technological
resources to enhance its portfolio, asset base and brand image in the PRC, USA
and overseas with an aim to create new sustainable revenue streams and enhance
its shareholder value.

Zhengzhou Zensun Longshuishangjing
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Zhengzhou Zensun River Valley
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CHAIRMAN'S MESSAGE
FREEA

Dear Shareholders,

[, on behalf of the board of
directors (the “Board”) of Zensun
Enterprises Limited (hereinafter
referred to as the “Company”,
and its subsidiaries, collectively,
the “Group”), am pleased to
present you the consolidated
annual results and business
review of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2022 (the
“Year”).

BHMBMRER :

AAZBERREBEEEBR DA
(LATERBIART]  REAKE
NEl (B AL DEES([E
2 )RARSURERREEAE
B & E2022F 12 A1 BN EE
(IREFEE | )GREEERESD
A o

A new year begins with all things renewed and we go to a new journey together. —J T8 » BRBEH  BEHT B - HLEH2 - HIHIS
The past 2022 has been an extraordinary year. Due to the recurrence of the 20224 @ 2BEAFEAH—F - ARFTELIBEHR
COVID-19 pandemic, all walks of life have been impacted to varying degrees, and 18 @+ STREAIE TIARAEBEENEE @ EHETTE
the real estate industry has also experienced a difficult year. However, with the th/EiE T HEH —F - BREZZBEEITEENRSL -
lifting of the pandemic control measures, the economy and society are recovering, 4Bt & EEWE - 2B ASZFEENER - B
and coupled with the release of supporting policies in China, the situation in the — E{TEF AW iGE L RLF o

real estate industry will also be gradually improved.



Zhengzhou Zensun Ecological City (No.7 Garden)
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2022, the Group’s revenue and gross
profit amounted to approximately RMB9,657.1 million and approximately RMB827.0
million, representing a decrease of approximately 28.0% and a decrease of
approximately 34.5% respectively compared with that of the corresponding period
of 2021, which were primarily derived from the property development business in
the PRC. The decrease in revenue was mainly contributed by combination of less
delivery of saleable/ leasable GFA and lower average selling price (“ASP”) from the
delivery of the Group’s completed property development projects during the Year
as compared to 2021. The decrease in gross profit during the Year as compared
to 2021 was resulted from the recognition of certain lower profit margin property
projects during the Year, which was caused by property projects leading to had
a higher unexpected construction cost due to the COVID-19 pandemic which
prolonged development progress and property projects, together with suppressed
selling prices under the decreasing public purchasing desires and power derived
from aggregated unfavourable factors including the recurrence of the COVID-19
pandemic, the macroeconomic downturn and the continued depletion of demand
in real estate properties.

Looking back on the past year, the real estate industry has also encountered the
“darkest moment” due to adverse factors such as domestic macro-control policies,
global economic development situation and repeated pandemic. However, under
the extremely severe situation of this industry, the employees of the Group worked
hard and made great efforts in close solidarity to push forward the priorities and
overcome the difficulties in a timely manner, achieving satisfactory achievements
worthy of recognition in many aspects.

HZE2022F 12 AG1IHIEWMPREE - AEBEZKE
BREMDBLHAREIES7TIEE T RN ARKES27.0

BETT - 2021 F R 2 WEF L 4928.0% + A KB
2021 FREZ EFMRF P 434.5% - KAFE 2 WHERE
FEZREPEMEFRES - KERP HEZHR
REERAFEERIMZEXYWERREE RN ZAH
&/ THEEEMBEE2021ERI R FHEE(THE]D)
B2021F THRMERE FEMN - KXFEEFE2021
FRIPTEHRAFERNERE THBEERRE 2 YEE
B i EHNECOVID-19%1E @ ZEWEBEBFHHE
BEE  BENEEBRSEERAE  UREARBER
ERGATHEHEAZ(BECOVID-19Z BETH RE - %=
B ETTREHEMERT IFEERE)BREE N
TREMBRT  VEBEEEESE -

OE®E—F  XEAZEFERE  2REBEER
WEUARRBERESINEARTE  FHETEDLD
RTITERRA] BAKEERTERZBAERR
WBERT  AEBEILT—0  FHEY  ERE
#®oHEEN WREH - SHTRAMLMm - D
SEAEREH EFSE -
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CHAIRMAN'S MESSAGE
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Zensun Enterprises Limited

On offshore financing, the Group continued to focus on investor relations,
maintained good communication with investors, actively repurchased and
redeemed the principal and interest of the US dollar bonds, and redeemed the
US$200 million bonds due on 13 September 2022 in full and on time. There was
no event of default in 2022, which maintained the good reputation of the Group.

In 2022, affected by the downturn in the real estate industry, the Group mainly
focused on the sales of existing projects, and therefore acquired land in a more
prudent manner. In strict compliance with the project selection mechanism,
investment criteria and approval process in place, the Group finally won the bid
of 1 land parcel. The newly acquired land parcel is located in an area where the
demands for acquisition of housing are strong and the market is relatively active.
Leveraging on the Group’s extensive experience of project development in Henan
Province, we believe that the Group will make satisfactory achievements.

Looking back on the past and looking forward to the future, taking into account the
overall situation of the real estate industry and based on the principle of “prudent
acquisition of good land only”, the Group will continue to focus on Zhengzhou in
Henan Province upon in-depth research and careful calculation, and continue to
expand its land reserve by selecting projects with good area, good location, fast
development and high gross profit margin to ensure that the Company will continue
as a going concern and develop in a sustainable manner.
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Overseas

In the U.S., the Group now holds equity interests in two REITs, namely, GMR (listed
on NYSE) and American Housing REIT, Inc. (*“AHR”). GMR has been focusing on
acquisition of state-of-the-art, purpose-built, licenced and specialised medical
facilities in the U.S., and currently owns 189 medical and healthcare facilities, with
approximately 4.9 million net leasable square feet. The Group expects that GMR
will continue to grow rapidly with its robust property portfolio in the future years. As
of 31 December 2022, the Group has approximately 5.7% equity interest in GMR,
and receives quarterly dividends paid by GMR.

AHR is currently 99%-controlled by the Group. Now, AHR owns two senior housing
communities, namely, Oxford Derby in Kansas and Oxford Mckinney in Texas.
We will closely monitor the local COVID-19 situation and market environment in
the USA, and adjust business strategy and development direction as and when
appropriate.

In addition, the Group owns 28 SOHO portfolios of commercial and residential
units and four quality residential property portfolios in Singapore for the purpose
of rental and capital appreciation. We will regularly review the Singapore property
market to explore any business opportunities in the foreseeable future.
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Zhengzhou Zensun Golden Mile House
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CHAIRMAN'S MESSAGE
FREEA

Xinzheng Zensun Smart City
R EE

Appreciation

Looking back, the Group lived up to the original aspiration and overcame the
difficulties. The sustainable and steady development of the Group depends on
the hard work and cooperation of all employees, as well as the care, support and
assistance of all shareholders, partners and customers. On behalf of the Board,
| would like to take this opportunity to express our wholehearted gratitude and
sincere respect to all shareholders, partners, customers and employees of the
Company. In 2023, we will fulfill our duties and responsibilities and brave difficulties
with confidence, determination, perseverance and aspiration, so as to create
maximum value for shareholders and investors and continue to make greater
contributions to social progress.

Mr. Zhang Jingguo
Chairman, Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 30 March 2023
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HONG KONG AND OVERSEAS PROPERTY PORTFOLIO

BRKEIIMIFERAS

The Group owns a diverse range of residential, commercial properties and senior
housing communities located in Singapore, Hong Kong and the U.S..
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1. Dakota Residences 28&3. Southbank Soho
SINGAPORE PROPERTIES

The Group’s Singapore property portfolio is concentrated in locations near Mass
Rapid Transit (MRT) stations, Singapore’s railway system, ensuring convenience
and connectivity. The Group owns a portfolio of SOHO units at Southbank which
features high-ceilings and duplexes. These units are uniquely zoned for both
residential and commercial uses and hence generate strong rental yield. The Group
also owns a portfolio of residential properties at Dakota Residences adjacent to the

AEEREATRERNET  BHENEALREETFE
= RIS - FELEE -

F N3k ¥y

IEE B RTINS WS AR A S P R FT NI b 5 3k B 0 A2
BHEEE o A% E 7 Southbank ¥ A SOHO 2 i 4
G URBERER LB AT - ZS8MBURA
DB AEFERAERAR At KTFES - &
% B 7EDakota Residences# B X =¥ %44 - Dakota
Residenceshit #fDakotal & °

"

Dakota MRT station.

HONG KONG PROPERTIES

The Group owns two floors and two car-parking spaces in Wyndham Place, a
prime commercial office building located in the Central district of Hong Kong — the
central business district of the region. The Group currently uses one floor as its
headquarters and treats the remaining portion as investment properties for earning
rental income and/or capital appreciation.

AEBERERFEDOHEAMERERTRMEEL - ZETFREBPRIEN
QAR - IREEF LS - REBEBRBEF —EERMAE  EHRoBIERK
B ARBE S WA R, REAREE -

U.S. PROPERTIES

The Group owns two senior housing communities
(one in Texas and one in Kansas) with total area of
approximately 98,700 sq.ft. which were held through
its U.S. subsidiary, AHR. The Group also owns freehold
land parcels with approximately 273,200 sg.m. in
California and two apartment residential units situated
on Wall Street in New York.

XEMHE
AEEFBHENEEZMBARAHRKE TMEREE
Eras(—ERERENN - —ERNEEHMN) -
EEA $£4998,700F 7R « AL B IRFE MO FE B 49
273,200 F TR Z K A MR - WHEADEREER
A ABEEER

1&2. Glen Carr House, senior housing community
384. Oxford Grand McKinney, senior housing community
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PART OF THE
PROPERTY PROJECTS by
IN THE PRC

R PB4 2
Y) 5210




& TN

Annual Report 2022 B/ " HFFIFR 13

Zhengzhou Zensun Boya Court 6 Zhenzhou Zensun Scholar Mansion 11 Zhengzhou Zensun Jingkai Plaza
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Huaibin Zensun Scholar Mansion 7 Zhengzhou Zensun International Building 12 Zhengzhou Zensun Riverview Garden
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Xuchang Zensun Scholar Mansion 8 Zhengzhou Zensun Zhenruishangjing 13 Xinxiang Zensun Golden Mile House
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Zhengzhou Zensun Princess Lake 9 Zhengzhou Zensun Yating Mansion 14 Zhengzhou Zensun Fenghuashangjing
SRIN IE P 34 EOM IE R FERE ZE I BN ER L2 3R

Zhengzhou Zensun Vogage Garden 10 Zhengzhou Zensun Xinghan Garden 15 Zhengzhou Zensun Orchids Mansion
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EBREERRAA

PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT PROJECT SUMMARY IN THE PRC

EAENER 2EERE

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had 41 completed property projects and/
or sub-phases and 55 on-going complex property projects on hand with 116
land parcels under development and planning with an aggregate site area of
approximately 4.62 million square metres (“sq.m.”) and aggregate estimated gross
floor area (“GFA”) of approximately 9.87 million sg.m. in the People’s Republic of
China (“PRC”). In return, the land reserves will bring to the Group with estimated
saleable/leasable GFA under development of approximately 6.21 million sq.m. and

estimated GFA under planning of approximately 3.66 million sg.m..

Project

Number  Property Project

iR

VESE]

Location

BRI

ACCUMULATED COMPLETED PROPERTY PROJECTS
EHEEPERESE

1

Zhengzhou Zensun
Jingkai Plaza
INEEERRS

Zhengzhou Zensun
Xinghan Garden
INEREERR

Zhengzhou Zensun
Scholar Garden
SN EmERLZ

Zensun Zensun
Longhushangjing
INEFRS R

Zhengzhou Zensun River
Vialley Phase | (Green-view
Garden No. 1)

SNEFTRH-H

(FA1R-5R)

Zhengzhou Zensun River
Valley Phase I
SNEFTRH-B

North of Jingnan 2nd Road and east of
Jingkai 9th Avenue, Zhengzhou City
SHmEREL  BREARENE

East of the intersection of Dahe Road and
Guxu Road, Zhengzhou Cty
SHHRTERE BRI ANE

The intersection of east to Sanglin East Road
and north to Ruifeng Road, Zhengzhou City
SN mEMRAR DA R RER

North of Chaoyang Road and east of
Znongyi Road, Zhengzhou City
SHTEBALL  RERNE

North of Lvda Road and west of Yuxiu Road,
and south of Chunxi Road, and west of
Jinzun Road, Zhengzhou City

SNmEERIY - RARNER
ERANE SRBIE

North of Lvda Road, east of Hongsong Road,
and Jinzun Road, south of Chunxi Road,
and east of Yuxiu Road, Zhengzhou City

ENTERERIL - LRBME - SBRIR
REERNE  BARIR

Interest

attributable

Actual/Estimated to the
Completion Time Group

558
REER
BB/ RiAIRE i3s3

4th quarter of 2017 100%
NITEERER

Ath quarter of 2017 100%
NTEEMER

4ih quarter of 2019 100%
PREEE

4th quarter of 2019 100%
WFEMER

Ath quarter of 2019 100%
NI9FENEE

Ath quarter of 2020 to 100%
2nd quarter of 2021
N0FEMEFZ2021
F5°%%

Type

fig

Commercial

[

Residential
fiz

Commercial

[

Residential
iz

Residential

ffz

Residential
fiz

Total

site area

(sq.m)

Approximately

B4R
(F5%)

i

47736

34,439

25,357

62,266

132,111

186,648

Aggregated
GFA (sq.m.)
Approximately  Approximately

52
(F3%)

]

211,748

66,103

100,662

93,309

176,84

191,97

R2022F 12 A318 - AEERFREF4EDEKRZ
WEEE K&,/ HBEE D5 H RG5ERITHER LREFLR
AEBE (H116iEHi)

R ETER R4.62B B

Completed
saleable/
leasable
GFA (sq.m.)
[5i-a
1E/H%
E4ER
(¥5%)
f

211,748

66,103

100,662

93,399

176,845

191,971

Estimated
saleable/
leasable GFA
under
development
(sqm)
Approximately
BR%
7E/H8
BEER
(F5K)

f

FIR([FTAR D RAEFHEREEENRSTEE T
Ko LibFEHAAERRFEBRSEFTHE THER
HEEEX6.21 B & T I KRR P AR EHIE43.66
BETIK-

Estimated
GFA under
planning
(sqm)
Approximately

Bl
BEEE
(¥A%)

]
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Estimated
saleable/
Completed  leasable GFA Estimated
Interest Total saleable/ under  GFA under
attributable sitearea  Aggregated leasable  development planning
Project Actual/Estimated to the (sqm)  GFA(sqm)  GFA(sqm,) (sq.m,) (sq.m,)
Number  Property Project Location Completion Time Group  Type Approximately  Approximately ~ Approximately  Approximately ~ Approximately
B#I BBt
TE/8E  WE/HE  EERMH
A5R BEWER RZREZER EEER BEER EEER
MER% (¥5%) (T5R) (¥AR) (T5R) (¥AR)
L R Bl /RitAIRE WEE R f # f f #
ACCUMULATED COMPLETED PROPERTY PROJECTS (Continued)
ZirBRZANFRE ()
7 Zhengzhou Zensun River South of Xincheng Road, east of Yule Road, 4th quarter of 2019 100%  Residential 178,569 289,951 289,951 - -
Home Phase | and east of Xinxi Street, Znengzhou City N1FERER iz
(Courtyard No. 1) SHmTRANE  RERIRRAEGHE
INEEZIF 5
(2E-1k)
8 Zhengzhou Zensun River South of Xinyun Road, east of Yule Road, 3rd quarter of 2021 100%  Residential 188,643 210,275 210275 - -
Home Phase I east of Xini Sreet and west of WNFEZZE iz
(Gourtyard No. 2) Tianshan Road, Zhengzhou City
INEEZIF 8 SRR RERIR
(ZE=¥R) HEENRRRUBIE
9 Zhengzhou Zensun South of Shisu Road and east of 2nd quarter of 2020 100%  Residential 8,051 26476 26,476 - -
Prosperty Court Fengshuo South Road, Zhengzhou Clty NNFE-ZR iz
YN EEREEE INTRERIE  ERHANR
10 Zhengzhou Zensun West of Jingkal 17th Avenue, 4th quarter of 2020 to 100%  Commercial 55,631 193,851 132,129 61,722" -
Vloyage Mansion north of Hanghal East Road, Zhengzhou City 4th quarter of 2022 [
YN EBEREE INTERETCABAE RERRRME  W0FERERE
NNEEMER
11 Dengfeng Zensun City ¢ Souttwest District of Intersection of Taihe Road  3rd quarter of 2020 100%  Residential 4,899 78,137 78,137 - -
Yu Garden and Zhengtong Road, Dengfeng City NNFEZZE fiz
BHEE B EUTANRENER NN EREY
12 Dengfeng Zensun City Northeast comer of Intersection of Hanque Road  3rd quarter of 2020 100%  Residential & 21210 50,987 59,987 - -
Xiang Garden and Tianzhong Road, Dengfeng City NNFE=ZE commercial
BUIH B BUTERRERPRRRARLA ENH
13 Dengfeng Zensun City ¢ Northeast comer of Intersection of Yinghe Road  3rd quarter of 2020 100%  Residential & 50436 127,818 127818 - -
He Garden and Tianzhong Road, Dengfeng Clty NNFE=FE commercial
EHERA AR EHTRTR AR BN AR A fiz &%
14 Dengfeng Zensun City ¢ Northeast comer of Intersection of Denggao 3rd quarter of 2021 100%  Residential & 15,992 37,63 37,63 - -
Xi Garden Road and Fuyou Road, Dengfeng City NNFEZEE commercial
EHEES ER EHTERMRERARRNORLA % #%
15 Dengfeng Zensun City ¢ Northwest comer of Intersection of Denggao 3rd quarter of 2021 100%  Residential & 32,986 81,307 81,307 - -
Tal Garden Road and Fuyou Road, Dengfeng City WNEE=ZR commercia
BHI# «5E BHTERDRERARRNOELA ENH

represented the estimated saleable/leasable GFA of the sub-phases of the relevant property projects that were still under development.
* REBMERE MERRTHHNENIE TERERTE -
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EBREERRAA

PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT PROJECT SUMMARY IN THE PRC
EAENER 2EERE

Zensun Enterprises Limited

Estimated
saleable/
Completed  leasable GFA
Interest Total saleable/ under
attributable sitearea  Aggregated leasable  development
Project Actual/Estimated to the (sqm)  GFA(sqm)  GFA(sqm,) (sq.m,)
Number  Property Project Location Completion Time Group  Type Approximately  Approximately ~ Approximately  Approximately
BRI BR%
/88 WE/EE
A5R BEWER RZREZER EEER BEER
MER% (¥5%) (F5%) (¥5%) (F5K)
L BRI Bl /RitAIRE WEE R f # f f
ACCUMULATED COMPLETED PROPERTY PROJECTS (Continued)
ZirBRZANFRE ()
16 Xuchang Zensun Scholar North of Nongda Road, south of Gui Hua 4th quarter of 2020 to 100%  Residential 115,449 306,318 295,889 9,429
Mangion Nong Xuan Road and west of Gui Hua 4ih quarter of 2022 =2
SEIHERER Han Lin Road, Jianan District, Xuchang Clty ~ 2020E5MFEE
FEMBREEABM - REBHHIA NNFENEFE
REEMAINE
17 Zhengzhou Zensun South of North 3rd Ring Road and east of 3rd quarter of 2020 100%  Residential 58,338 96,549 96,549 -
Longshuishanging Longhu Neihuan Fast Road, Zhengdong NNFE=ZR iz
SNEERKLE New District, Zhengzhou City
SHRERAEL = RBINE - BINERENR
18 Xinxiang Zensun Smart City ¢ North of Health Avenue and west of 4th quarter of 2020 100%  Residential & 40219 45,126 45,126 -
Rong Garden Central Avenue, Qiliing Town, NNFERER commercial
i A Central District, Xinxiang County it A%
FRECEERMRARNE  RERRAENML
19 Xinxiang Zensun Smart City ¢ Intersection of Central Avenue and Financial Ath quarter of 2021 100%  Residential & 58,642 96,465 96,465 -
Xiang Garden Road, Qiying Town, Central Distict, Xinxiang 20015 £ 5 commercial
FATESENN HE County iz B2
HAGLBRER A BESRERND
20 Luoyang Zensun City North East of West Ring Road and north of dth quarter of 2017 100%  Residential & 52728 185,261 185,261 -
Garden Phase 1 Tank Road, Jianxi Distrct, Luoyng City NITEERZR commercial
AREER-H AETEEE R AR ERRRE fiz B%
21 Znengzhou Zensun Princess West of Znengxin Highway and both east 1st quarter of 2019 100%  Residential 147,988 252,672 252,672 -
Lake Phase | and south of Princess Lake Xincun Town, N19FE-ZR fiz
SNEARER-H Zhengzhou City
SRR RERERRES R AT
2 Zhengzhou Zensun Princess North of Xincun North Road and west of Huarui  4th quarter of 2020 100%  Residential 40819 81,551 81,551 -
Lake Phase Il {Huanhuxian) Road, Xincun Town, Zhengzhou City NNFEREE fiz
INEBLTH=S SHmIAR R B ERRER
(FillER)
23 Zhengzhou Zensun Riverview East of Jingkai 14th Avenue and South of Jingnan  2nd quarter of 2020 100%  Residential & 31462 119,251 119,251 -
Garden 9t Road, Jingkal District, Zhengzhou Clty 2020553 commercial
INEEEILE NTEREERARBNER tEAERE fiz &%
* represented the estimated saleable/leasable GFA of the sub-phases of the relevant property projects that were still under development.

. REWRMEEE MERRP D BOEN S TERERE -

Estimated
GFA under
planning
(sqm)
Approximately

Bl
BEEE
(¥A%)

]



Project

Number Property Project

LR

VESL]

Location

R

ACCUMULATED COMPLETED PROPERTY PROJECTS (Continued)
EREEPEEECELE )

2%

2

2%

2

28

29

30

31

32

Befing Zensun Grand Garden
IREERRE

Befing Zensun Yazhu Garden
FREAREES

Zhengzhou Zensun Voyage
International Plaza (Phase
INEERAERRS -

Zhengzhou Zensun Orchids
Mansion (Valley-view
Garden)

N EAREER (R ER)

Xuchang Zensun Golden Mie
House
FELELALE

Xinxiang Zensun Golden Mie
House (Phase Il
TATELIER =S

Zhengzhou Zensun
International Builaing

INEEERAE

Zhengzhou Zensun Voyage
Garden (Phase Il)
INEEEREE -

Zhengzhou Zensun Boya Court
(Phase | BN EBERZE
-#

Huaifang Village & Xingong Village, Nanyuan
County, Fengtai District, Bejing
IRTEARBEHRERRIEH

5th Avenue District, Shunyi Newtown,
Renhe Town, Shunyi District, Beijing
IRTEERCAZREHIELSR

South of Heshou Outer Ring Road and
west of Shuanghe Lake 2nd Street, and
east of Heshou Outer Ring Road and
north of Wanhui Road, Zhengzhou City

INTFEENBRNG  EEH LA

West of Guihua 3rd Road and north of
reserve land of Government, Longhu Town,
Xinzheng City

HEMREERA=RIE  BRERTML

East of Laodong North Road and south of
Gui Hua Zhou Zhuang Strest, Jianan District,
Xuchang City
FETRRRAILANE - REELENR

West of Xinzhong Avenue, southeast comer of
intersection of Hongyuan Street and Guihua
Road, Xinxiang City

FATIEEIE  BREEEHRIND
REA

South of Qiihe South Road and the west of
Jiayuan Road Zhengdong New District,

Zhengzhou Gity
SHPERAE L ETERIE  RRRNUE

West of Jingkai 17th Avenue, south of
Jingbei 4th Road, Zhengzhou City
SHTERETRENE - EmAL R

Northwest corer of Intersection of Tashan Road
and National Highway 310, Xingyang City5%
MALBESEER O EL A

Actual/Estimated
Completion Time

BB/ RiMIRE

2nd quarter of 2021
WIEEEFR

2nd quarter of 2021
WHEEER

2nd quarter of 2021
WIEE-ER

2nd quarter of 2021
WIEEZER

Ath quarter of 2021 to
4th quarter of 2022

NNEELFRE
N0REERER

3rdl quarter of 2021
WHEEZFR

Ath quarter of 2021
WHFEREE

1st quarter of 2022 to
4th quarter of 2023

NREE-ERE
NVBEEMER

1st quarter of 2022
N0EE-FE

Interest
attributable
to the
Group

558
MER%
WEx

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Total
site area
(sqm.)

Type Approximately  Approximately ~ Approximately

BiEwER
(¥5%)
B# f
Residential 53,214
iz
Residential 41,170
iz
Commercial 1,215
[
Residential 43470
iz
Residential 60,948
fiz
Residential & 10,701
commercial
fiz 2%
Commercial 13,442
[
Residential & 50,921
commercial
REE
Residentialf: 12,717

r\

Annual Report 2022 — T~ " FFIR
Estimated
saleable/
Completed ~ leasable GFA Estimated
saleable/ under  GFA under
Aggregated leasable  development planning
GFA(sqm)  GFA(sqm,) (sq.m) (sqm)
Approximately  Approximately
BRI BR%
TE/RE UE/EE EERMR
FTREER EEER BYER EEER
(F5K) (¥5%) (T5R) (Frk
# f # #
89,017 89,017 - -
59,397 59,397 - -
38,029 38,029 - -
130,13 130,13 - -
144,381 37,358 107,028° -
127,108 127,708 - -
107,388 107,388 - -
203,216 80,414 122,802 -
37,269 37,269 - -

represented the estimated saleable/leasable GFA of the sub-phases of the relevant property projects that were still under development.
AEBMEERNEERTOHNEANE THEEZEEE -

17



/~

18  Zensun Enterprises Limited 1[ERAIBXERAAE

PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT PROJECT SUMMARY IN THE PRC
ETREYFEERR 2EEHE

Estimated
saleable/
Completed ~ leasable GFA Estimated
Interest Total saleable/ under  GFA under
attributable sittarea  Aggregated leasable  development planning
Project Actual/Estimated to the (sqm)  GFA(sqm)  GFA(sq.m) (sq.m) (sq.m,)
Number Property Project Location Completion Time Group  Type Approximately  Approximately ~ Approximately ~ Approximately ~ Approximately
BRI BR%
TE/RE UE/EE EERMR
156 BERER RREZER EEER BYER EEER
WEEH (¥5R) (T5%) (¥AR) (T5%) (¥AR)
L BRI Bl /RiAIRE WEE R f # f # f
ACCUMULATED COMPLETED PROPERTY PROJECTS (Continued)
ZirBRZANFRE(R)
33 Zhengzhou Zensun Voyage West of Jingkai 17th Avenue, north of Jingbei 1st  3rd quarter of 2022 100%  Residential 35,702 106,903 106,908 - -
Garden (Phase | Road, Zhengzhou City N0FE=ZE iz
INEEERE -3 SNTERETCAENE S
34 Wuhan Zensun Scholar West of the intersection of Chenggong Avenue  3rd quarter of 2022 100%  Residential 46,888 164,108 164,108 - -
Mansion and Maoxing Road, Caidlan Street, Caidian 2022 £=3 iz
RETEERER District, Wuhan City
RETEAREALR B AR RERNE
3% Zhengzhou Zensun Yating South of Qiaohang Road (Xiangrui Road), 3rd quarter of 2022 to 100%  Residential 54,298 146,603 75422 JARLIN -
Mansion east of Linghan Street (Zhenggang 7th Street),  2nd quarter of 2024 iz
SN EEEEER Airport Harbour Zone, Zhengzhou City NNFE=FEE
NTREERMB(HRING RRE(DE  AuEEZER
THHE
36 Zhengzhou Zensun Vioyage East of Heshou Outer Ring Road and north of ~ 3rd quarter of 2022 100%  Commercial 10,701 40313 40313 - -
International Plaza Phase I Warhu Road, Zhengzhou City NNFE=FE [
N EBRMERES S SHm2MAL - BEIERIR
37 Zhengzhou Zensun East of Longteng 2nd Street, south of Ruyi River  3rd quarter of 2022 100%  Residential 68,819 106,882 106,882 - -
Zhenmuishangjing West 2nd Street, Znengdong New Distict, 20205 5=3F fiz
INEEER LR Zhengzhou Oty
SHTERINEER_EUR - WEAE_HNE
38 Zhengzhou Zensun Princess East of Huarui Road, west of Princess Lake 3rd quarter of 2022 to 100%  Residential 154,901 308,773 107,863 200,910° -
Lake Phase | and south of Binhe South Road, and 4ih quarter of 2022 =2
(Yuehu Horizons) west of Zhengkin Highway, Xincun Town, NNEE-FEZ
DNERLEH S Zhengzhou City NAUFENER
(ft4=%) SNmTESRRRE  AEHRE -
R ]
39 Dengzhou Zensun Xintiandi East of Sanxian Road and south of Tuenjie Road,  2nd quarter of 2022 5% Commercial 4239 42,393 4239 - -
YNEBTRL Dengzhou City NNFEZFE [
INH=BARE - Tkmd
| Znengzhou Zensun West South of Hongmei Street and west of Chuanyang  4th quarter of 2022 100%  Residential 51,3% 182,121 132,121 - -
Lakeside Scholar Mansion Road, Gaoxin District, Znengzhou Cty NNFENEE =2
NEEABSR NTRERLELHE I FRINE
4 Fengan Garden East of Lingshan Road and west of Yesheng 4ih quarter of 2022 51%  Residential & 16,809 33,516 33,516 - -
L) Sireet, Dengzhou City N0FENER commercial
SHRRIBLE - $BEHAR €N
* represented the estimated saleable/leaseable GFA of the sub-phases of the relevant property projects that were still under development.

. AERYFEEE MERRT D BMOEN A E TAERERE
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Estimated
saleable/
Completed  leasable GFA Estimated
Interest Total saleable/ under  GFA under
attributable sitearea  Aggregated leasable  development planning
Project Actual/Estimated to the (sqm)  GFA(sqm)  GFA(sqm,) (sq.m) (sq.m,)
Number Property Project Location Completion Time Group  Type Approximately  Approximately ~ Approximately ~ Approximately ~ Approximately
BRI BR%
TE/8E  WE/HE  EERMH
156 BERER RREZER EEER BYER EEER
MER% (¥5%) (T5R) (¥AR) (T5R) (¥AR)
L R Bl /RiAIRE WEE R f # f # #
PROPERTY PROJECTS UNDER DEVELOPMENT/PLANNING
YR /8 2Y2ER
1 Zhengzhou Zensun River Valley - North of Lvda Road, and east of Wenyun Road, ~ 2nd quarter of 2023 100%  Commercial 28,062 84,217 - 84,217 -
(Green-view Commercial Zhengzhou City NBEE-ZR [
Centre) ENTRERIL - XERNR
INEETEH-S5ER
I
2 Zhengzhou Zensun Boyue South of Xincheng Road, and east of Nanbei 2nd quarter of 2023 100%  Commercial 31,005 108,519 - 108,519 -
Commercial Centre Avenue, Zhengzhou City NBEE-ZR [
EHRfEEDD SRR  BEAENRE
3 Zhengzhou Zensun River Home - South of Xinyun Road and east of Fengshuo 4th quarter of 2023 100%  Commercial 14,647 32,228 - - 32,223
Lane South Street, Zhengzhou City NVFEMEE [
YMEEZAE YNmEERIA  EREENR
4 Znengzhou Zensun River Home - West of Xinxi Street, and south of Kaiyuan Road, ~ 2nd quarter of 2025 100%  Residential 33446 99,9% - 50,119 49877
Horizon Zhengzhou Oty NBFE-FE fiz
INEEFARR SNTRAR  HEEE
5 Dengfeng Zensun Gty Southeast comer of the Intersection of Shaolin -~ 2nd quarter of 2023 to 100%  Residential 55,406 127,110 - 127,110 -
Rui Garden Avenue and Fuyou Road, Dengfeng City 3rd quarter of 2028 =2
BHEEN 2R EHTOMREREERINOREA NRBEE-FEE
NRBEE=FE
Dengfeng Zensun City ¢ Southeast comer of the Intersection of Dizhong ~ 4th quarter of 2023 100%  Residential 40773 73,000 - 73,000 -
Jing Garden Road and Zhongyi Road, Dengfeng City NBFENEE =2
EHEEY 2R TR RS RN NRAA
Dengfeng Zensun City Southwest comer of the Intersection of Shaolin ~ 4th quarter of 2024 100%  Residential 12,185 21,933 - 21,933 -
Ya Garden Avenue and Luhong Road, Dengfeng City NUFENEE iz
BUEEN A BHTOHABEERERNERA
Dengfeng Zensun City Northwest corner of the Intersection of Yudai 2nd quarter of 2025 100%  Residential 43728 69,965 - - 69,965
Xin Garden Road and Dizhong Road, Dengfeng Oty NBFE-EE fiz
BHEAN LE BT ERAERPRRRARLA
6 Xinxiang Zensun Golden Mie South of Kelong Avenue and east of Xiner Street,  2nd quarter of 2023 100%  Residential & 45,501 169,569 - 169,569 -
House [Phase | Xiniang City NBFE-FE commercial
fig D achue o] SHTREABNE  FoENE fiz &%
7 Zhengzhou Zensun Orchids South of Guihua 1st Road, west of Qiushi Road,  3rd quarter of 2023 to 100%  ResidentielF% 93497 280490 - 183,759 96,731
Mansion (Valley-view Court) north of Guihua 2nd Road and west of reserve  3rd quarter of 2024
UNEBREER(BZER) land of Government, Longhu Town, Xinzheng 202355 =%E2
City NUFE=FE

HADERERE-AIE  HFRRLINE
REMHBRAE - HLH
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Zensun Enterprises Limited

EBREERRAA

PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT PROJECT SUMMARY IN THE PRC
ETREYFEERR 2EEHE

Project
Number Property Project

ERE  MEER

Location

R

PROPERTY PROJECTS UNDER DEVELOPMENT/PLANNING (Continued)

BR/EHh I NEAE(H)

8 Zhengzhou Zensun Lehuo City
N EE S

9 Xuchang Zensun Orchids
Mansion
FEIARERR

10 Zhengzhou Zensun Boya Court
(Phase Il
AR

il Zhengzhou Zensun
Fenghuashangjing
YNEELE R

12 Xinxiang Zensun Smart City
HATBESHN

13 Zhengzhou Zensun Skyline
Lake Court (Phases | & 1|
INEBZA LR
(—HR=H)

14 Zhengzhou Zensun
Zhengshang Commercial
Centre

DNIAY LAk

Zhaoling Village and Caodian Village, Mihe Town,
Gongyi City
EETATERBNRERER

South of Guihua Zhuyuan Street and east
of Guihua Yongxian Road, Jianan District,
Xuchang City

SETRZERANAGNIE  RIAERNR

Southwest of the intersection of Luyin West Road
and Tashen Road Xingyang City
RETREEREALAR R AERE

South of Longhu Neihuan East Road,
east of Chunlei Street, Zhengdong New District,
Zhengzhou Gity
BTERNERARERANE  BEENR

South of Health Avenue and west of Central
Avenue, and intersection of Central Avenue
and Financial Road, Qliying Town, Central
District, Xinxiang County

FRELIRBTAAENE  REAENER
FARERERATIN

South of Baiyun Road, and east of Runan Road,
and west of Dengfeng Road, Shangjie District,
Zhengzhou Gity

SN ERAZENE  AHENER
EHRIE

East of Tonghang Fifth Road and north of Anyang
Road Shangjie District, Znengzhou City
ST IEERREANE - ZBEML

Interest

attributable

Actual/Estimated to the
Completion Time Group

EE]
MER%
BB/ RiMIRE s

4th quarter of 2024 100%
NUFENER
2nd quarter of 2023 100%

NREE-ZFE

4th quarter of 2023 100%
ZEEMER
1st quarter of 2028 100%

NBEE-ZR

4th quarter of 2023 to 100%
Ath quarter of 2024
NBFEMERE
NUFEMER

2nd quarter of 2023 to 100%
th quarter of 2024
NBEE-FEE
NUEETER

4th quarter of 2024 100%
NUFENEE

Type

fig

Residential,

commercial,

catering &
public utiity

fFz &%
0K
i

Residential
iz

Residential
iz

Residential
=2

Residential &
commercial

A%

Residential &
commercial

[ #%

Commercial

[

Total
site area

(sam)
Approximately

BEbER
(¥A%)
f

987,701

62,832

63,677

45,505

202,906

97,99

93,643

Aggregated
GFA (sq.m.)

Completed
saleable/
leasable
GFA (sq.m.)

Approximately  Approximately

sirsEd
(%5%)
m

1,142,364

173,708

184,372

18

367,153

195,872

234,108

BAT
18/8%
REER
(¥A%)
f

Estimated
saleable/
leasable GFA
under
development
(sqm)
Approximately
BR%
7E/H8
BYER
(T5R)

#

147413

173,708

184,372

18

8741

139,240

53,861

Estimated
GFA under
planning
(sqm)
Approximately

SEfH
BEEE
(¥A%)

f

994,951

38412

56,632

180,227
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Estimated
saleable/
Completed  leasable GFA Estimated
Interest Total saleable/ under  GFA under
attributable sitearea  Aggregated leasable  development planning
Project Actual/Estimated to the (sqm)  GFA(sqm)  GFA(sqm,) (sq.m) (sq.m,)
Number  Property Project Location Completion Time Group  Type Approximately ~ Approximately  Approximately ~ Approximately ~ Approximately
B#I BB
TE/8E  WE/HE  EERMH
558 BE4ER  ZHEEER BEmR BEER BEmR
HERH (¥5R) (T5R) (¥AR) (T5R) (¥AR)
A% WRER R Bl /RiAIRE WEE R f # f # #
PROPERTY PROJECTS UNDER DEVELOPMENT/PLANNING (Continued)
$R/BH2NEA ()
15 Zhengzhou Zensun Ecological  South of Yuwu Road, east of Pearl Road, east ~ 1st quarter of 2023 to 100%  Residential 28239 580,984 - 423330 166,654
Clty (Nos.1 to 7 Garden) of Jingzhuang Road and west of Weihe 2nd quarter of 2024 fiz
SN EBERS Eest Road, and north of Yullu Road, westof 20235~ ?Eﬁ
(-5hzt5k) Xiangjang Road, and south of Yunyang Road ~ 204%5£-5%
and west of Pangzhuang Road, Guancheng
District, Zhengzhou City
SHTERRERRNE  BIRENR
HARIR - BURRERE ML
BIRNERZGRE  BHAR
16 Znengzhou Zensun Xin Harbour  South of Yinghua Road and east of Century 2nd quarter of 2023 to 100%  Residentil 84,186 212,465 - 212,465 -
Home Avenug, north of Lianhua Road and west of dif quarter of 2024 iz
BT Shenzhou Road, Xusdian Town, Xinzheng Clty 202358 -FEZ
HEmERRTLRERA  BIEARER NAFEMER
BIBLH  WHAEN
17 BeijingZensunXinghai Court East of Yingyi Street, west of Yingtong Street, ~ 4th quarter of 2023 100%  Residentil 47892 103,979 - 103,979 -
IREFEAR south of Yinghong Road and north of Yingzhi -~ 2003575 fiz
Road, Yinghai Town, Daxing District, Befing
IRAEEREERERSY BIEAE
BERTH HEREH
18 Xinmi Zensun City + Xiang South of Qingping Street, west of Fuxi Road, 3rd quarter of 2023 100%  Residentia 79029 132,651 - 132,651 -
Garden north of West Street and east of Chengyun 20235 £=3F iz
FEEE R Road, Xinmi City
HEmEREALRE  TEAEE B
e
19 Weinui Zensun Golden Mie Northeast corer of the intersection of Bigan 2nd quarter of 2023 90%  Residential & 43,964 109,911 - 109,911 -
Court Avenue and Znenxing Road, Weihui Clty NRFE-ER commercial
GRIAIER B FREERRRRNOFIA iz B
20 Xinxiang Zensun Orchids North of Fuyu Road, west of Zhengtong Street ~ 2nd quarter of 2023 to 90%  Residential & 85,093 170,106 - 119,379 50,727
Mansion (Phases | & Il and south of Xinyan Road, Gudingzhai Town, 2nd quarter of 2024 commercial
FATEREER Xinxiang County N3EE= ?E?E iz %
(-8R=H) FRELERENTANE  MBENER NUFEZER
A
21 Huaibin Zensun Scholar West of Chuxiang Avenue, north of Chaoyang ~ 3rd quarter of 2023 fo 90%  Residential & 96,944 213216 - 118,280 94,9%
Meansion (Phases | & 1| Street, and south of Qingnian Street, Huaibin 4ih quarter of 2024 commercial
ERIHERER Count, Xinyang Chy NVFEZFEZ iz @2
(~5R=5) EEmEREEENERH  FRELAR NAEENER
EEER
2 Dengfeng Zensun Yinghe South of Yinghe Road, north of South 2nd Ring~ 4th quarter of 2023 100%  Residential & 30,721 76,819 - 76,819 -
Mansion Road, Dengfeng City NREENER commercial
BHTEETER EHTETRNG  BRIBIL iz B%
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Zensun Enterprises Limited

EBREERRAA

PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT PROJECT SUMMARY IN THE PRC
ETREYFEERR 2EEHE

Project

Number Property Project

LR

VESL]

Location

R

PROPERTY PROJECTS UNDER DEVELOPMENT/PLANNING (Continued)
E08 FLPEEIEY

2

2%

2%

2

27

2

Dengfeng Zensun Yingbin
House Phase | » Qiyue
House

EHIAUBLR
~BBER

Dengfeng Zensun Yingbin
House Phase Il * Yingbin
House

EHIEOELF G
e

Dengfeng Zensun Songyue
Horizons (Nos. 110 8
Garden)

BHIERERR

(HRE=HE

Xinyang Zensun Golden Mie
House (Yangshan New
District]

EREERILR(FIHE)

Luoyang Zensun City North
Garden (Phases Il & Il
AREERA(—BR=E)

Zhengzhou Zensun Zuoan
IR

Northeast comer of the intersection of Shaolin
Avenue and Luhong Road, Dengfeng City
EHTOHABEERERNORLA

Southwest area at the intersection of Zhongyi
Road and Yudai Road, and southeast comer
at the intersection of Taihe Road and Yudai
Road, Dengfeng City

BHTAMBERRRANOREA
ERETREANOERA

Southwest area at the intersection of Zhongyi
Road and Yingxia Road, Yudai Road and
Yingxia Road, and northeast area at the
intersection of Taishi Road and Cuixiu Road,
Dengfeng City

B sREIERR N NERRY
ITHELERRNNERRY
AERERARINOREY

East of Yangshan Sports Park, Huaibin County,
Xinyang City
EETEREFIIEENERE

Southwest and southeast corner of intersection
of Kewen Road and Qunan Road, Jianxi
District, Luoyang City

ARTEREMERERRR NN ERAR
R4

West of Wenming Road, north of Planning Third
Road and south of the land in Xizhangzhai
Village, Longhu Town, Xinzheng City,

HETENECARER  RE=ALER
BREHLLEA

Actual/Estimated
Completion Time

BB/ RiMIRE

1t quarter of 2024
NUFE-ER

1t quarter of 2024
NUFE-ER

4h quarter of 2023
NREZMER

2nd quarter of 2023 to
2nd quarter of 2024

DIV
NUFEZER

2nd quarter of 2023 to
Ath quarter of 2023

N3FE-FEE
NRBFENFE

4th quarter of 2023 to
3rd quarter of 2024

NBFEMEEZ
NUFE=FE

Interest
attributable
to the
Group

EE]

ER

s

100%

100%

100%

99.999470%

100%

100%

Type

fig

Residential &
commercial

[ #%

Residential
iz

Residential
iz

Residential &
commercial

A%

Residential &
commercial

[z &%

Residential
iz

Total
site area

(sam)
Approximately

BEbER

(¥A%)

i

41,543

98972

146,813

46,43

122327

57,015

Estimated
GFA under
planning
(sqm)

SEfH
BEEE
(¥A%)

f

188,047

167,798

Estimated

saleable/

Completed ~ leasable GFA

saleable/ under

Aggregated leasable  development

GFA(sqm)  GFA(sqm,) (sq.m)
Approximately  Approximately ~ Approximately  Approximately

BRI BR%

/88 WE/EE

FTREER EEER BYER

(T5%) (¥AR) (Tr%

# f #

78,932 - 78,932

188,047 - -

220220 - 52,422

102,167 - 102,167

406418 - 406418

91,311 - 68,482

2,829



Project
Number Property Project

ERE  MEER

Location

R

PROPERTY PROJECTS UNDER DEVELOPMENT/PLANNING (Continued)

E08 FLPEEIEY

29 Gongyi Zensun Scholar
Mansion
ERIEERER

30 Zhengzhou Zensun Xinrui

Scholar Mansion
INTETRER

31 Ruyang Zensun Scholar Court

KELEEEZE

2 Nanyang Zensun Scholar Court

BRIREEEE

3 Shanggiu Zensun Scholar

Mansion
EETEERER

34 Dengzhou Zenstn Kaiyue

Mansion

YNEBARER

35 Lushan Zensun Golden Mile

House
BITESHER

36 Huaxian Zensun Orchids
Mansion

RELAREZR

37 (Guangshan Zensun Scholar

Mansion

HUEEEEER

East of Qinglongshan Road, south of Sugin Road
City Greenland, and east of Jinniushan Road,
Gongyi City

EETRTLRR FELBR.

EES bl

West of Honghu Road, south of Government
Land of Longhu, Longhu Town, Xinzheng City
HAmERERSREN  ERARR AR

South of Yonghui Road, north of Weishier Road,
south of Weishier Road east of Liuling South
Road, west of Malan West Road, Gounty South
New District, Ruyang County, Luoyang City

LG e €V
BB URRRR  BRERE
SEMRRT_RR ARERR
FHRERE

North of Dushi Road and west of Xindong Road,
Nanyang City
BEDHERIL - FRENE

East of Zjing Road and south of Yuhang Road,
Suiyang District, Shanggu City
BRTESRZAREN  FHEEH

West of Bejing Avenue and north of Lingshan
Road, Dengzhou City
PN RRERE BUELE

Southeast of the Intersection of Fanrong
Road and Wenxing Road, Lushan County,
Pingdingshan City

FRLTRIFERRENER RN ORR

West of Jiefang Road and north of Xinda Road,
Hua County, Anyang City
RETRRRIRE  HER

East of Zishui Strest, north of Paifong Road,
Guangshan County, Xinyang City
EETRLELARERE - BYALH

Actual/Estimated
Completion Time

BB/ RiAIRE

3rdl quarter of 2023 to
4th quarter of 2024

NRBEE=FEE
NUEERER

Ath quarter of 2024
NUEEREE

3th quarter of 2023
NBFE=FE

2nd quarter of 2023
NVBEE_ER

3rdl quarter of 2023
NBEEZER

3rd quarter of 2023
N3FE=ZR

3rd quarter of 2028
NRBEE=FR

Ath quarter of 2023
NRFEMER

2nd quarter of 2023 to
3th quarter of 2024

DIV
NUFEZER

Interest
attributable
to the
Group

558
REER
L3

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Total
site area
(sqm)

Annual Report 2022

Aggregated
GFA (sq.m.)

Completed
saleable/
leasable
GFA (sq.m.)

Type Approximately  Approximately ~ Approximately

BiEwER
(T5K)
B# f
Residential 99,101
=2
Residential 13,734
fiz
Residential & 84,043
commercial
iz B%
Residential & 25,93
commercial
iz 2%
Residential 67,802
f=z
Residential 64,028
fiz
Residential & 32,602
commercial
iz 2%
Residential 55,720
iz
Residential & 51,847
commercial
iz A%

522
(F3%)
zq

178,382

68,672

176,419

88,460

196,625

160,069

48,903

111,441

129,616

B4I
18/8K
REEE
(¥A%)
f

Estimated
saleable/
leasable GFA
under
development
(sqm)

TRITEER

Estimated
GFA under
planning
(sqm)

Approximately  Approximately

B
1E/8%
BEER
(¥A%)
f

168,108

43810

89,411

88,460

196,625

79,591

48,903

111,441

129,616

Bl
BEEE
(¥A%)

]

20219

24,862

87,008

80,478
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Zensun Enterprises Limited 1[ERAEXERAAE

PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT PROJECT SUMMARY IN THE PRC
ETREYFEERR 2EEHE

Estimated
saleable/
Completed ~ leasable GFA
Interest Total saleable/ under
attributable sittarea  Aggregated leasable  development
Project Actual/Estimated to the (sqm)  GFA(sqm)  GFA(sq.m) (sq.m)
Number Property Project Location Completion Time Group  Type Approximately  Approximately ~ Approximately  Approximately
BRI BR%
/88 WE/EE
156 BERER RREZER EEER BYER
AR (¥5R) (T5%) (¥AR) (T5%)
L BRI Bl /RiAIRE WEE R f # f #
PROPERTY PROJECTS UNDER DEVELOPMENT/PLANNING (Continued)
YR/BUR2N2ER(R)
38 Huixian Zensun Scholar Southwest comer of Yinbin Avenue and Xueyuan  4th quarter of 2023 100%  Residential & 37,085 81,542 - 81,542
Mansion Road, Huiian Cty, Xinxiang City#f NBFENEE commercial
BEEEER ATBETE N ERSRATRA fiz &%
3 Dengzhou Zensun Pearl Lake North of Yingbin Avenue and east of Dongfu 4th quarter of 2023 51%  Residential 53,734 122,362 - 122,362
gt Road, Dengzhou City NBFENEE iz
SHTEEAELE - REHRE
40 Dengzhou Zensun Xinyu City South of Renmin Road and east of Sanxian Road, - 4th quarter of 2023 51%  Residential a7 102,735 - 102,735
N EEHF Dengzhou Clty NRFENER fz
B AREEE - ZEERE
I Yichuan Zensun Yihe Horizons ~ North of Yilong Avenue and east of Binhe Avenue,  3rd quarter of 2022 to 100%  Residential & 202,883 239,460 - 125,801
FIEAFTER Yichuan County, Luoyang Gy 2rd quarter of 2024 commercial
AETRIEREAEN,  BTRENR NRFEMFRE fiz &%
NAEEFR
1Y Znoukuo Zensun Golden Mile South of Jiaotong Avenue and east of Tongda ~ 4th quarter of 2023 to 5%  Residential 52,941 168,824 - 112,650
House Road, Zhoukou City 4ih quarter of 2024 =2
BREEEER BAmRENERE BEARE NBEENFEE
NUEEMER
43 (Gongyi Zensun Heluo Horizon ~ West of Baiyunshan Road and south of Renhe  4th quarter of 2023 100%  Residential 20,004 40,008 - 40,008
EEIHTRER Road, Gongyi City NVFEMER fiz
2ETAZLEE  ATRE
4 Yuanyang Zensun Golden Mie ~ West of Jinhua North Street and north of 4th quarter of 2023 to 100%  Residential & 51,298 92,326 - 19,259
House Huanghe Avenue, Yuanyang County 1st quarter of 2024 commercial
FREESHER RRGLEIERE ETRELH NRFENERE EN
NUFE-FE
4 Hualyang Zensun Longhu South of Huaining Avenue and north of Chunrong  4th quarter of 2023 to 100%  Residential & 484 85,682 - 85,682
Horizons Road, Huaiyang District, Zhoukou City 4ih quarter of 2024 commercial
EBIARNER BAMERREEAEH  BRAL NVBEELFRE ENH
NUFERER
46 Shangcheng Zensun Scholar East of Zhenxing Road and north of Lishu Street,  2nd quarter of 2024 100%  Residential & 45,756 100,662 - 64,999
Mansion Shangcheng County, Xinyang Clty NUFEZEE commercial
BYIAEEER EETEARRRR REG) fiz %
a7 Huaibin Zensun Golden Mie East of Honghe Road and south of Qingnian 4ih quarter of 2024 90%  Residential & 12,122 26,669 - 26,669
House Street, Huaibin County, Xinyang City NUFERER commercial

EETELALR [EEmERELTRRN  BE4EN A%

Estimated
GFA under
planning
(sqm)
Approximately

SEfH
BEEE
(¥A%)

f

113,659

46,174

73,067

35,663
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Estimated
saleable/
Completed  leasable GFA Estimated
Interest Total saleable/ under  GFA under
attributable sitearea  Aggregated leasable  development planning
Project Actual/Estimated to the (sqm)  GFA(sqm)  GFA(sqm,) (sq.m) (sq.m,)
Number Property Project Location Completion Time Group  Type Approximately  Approximately ~ Approximately ~ Approximately ~ Approximately
BRI BR%
TE/RE UE/EE EERMR
156 BERER RREZER EEER BYER EEER
MER% (¥5%) (F5K) (¥5%) (F5K) (¥5%)
L R Bl /RiAIRE WEE R f # f f #
PROPERTY PROJECTS UNDER DEVELOPMENT/PLANNING (Continued)
YR/BUR2N2ER(R)
48 Luoyang Zensun Scholar Northeast comer of Sik Road Avenue and Qubei ~ 2nd quarter of 2025 100%  Residential & 70,09% 224,302 - - 224302
Mansion Road, Jiani District, Luoyang Ctty NBEE-ZR commercial
ARLEERER AETERRAR NEREERLA fiz &%
49 Luohe Zensun Chenyue West of Mangshan Road and north of Mudanjiang - 2nd quarter of 2023 to 90%  Residential & 47,604 119,011 - 33,645 85,366
Horizons Road, Demonstration Zone, Luohe City Ath quarter of 2024 commercial
ENIARNER ZATTERDUAER AR N3FENFEE fix E%
NUFEMER
50 Shangqiu Zensun Kaiyue East of Suiyang Road and south of Wenhua 2nd quarter of 2025 100%  Residential 45,564 132,13 - 59,933 72,202
Mansion Road, Demonsration Zone of Urban-rural NFEZER fiz
BEEBANER Integration, Shangglu City
BRmiA- B8R  BRERH -
it
51 Luoshan Zensun Scholar East of Chungiu Road and north of Longshan ~ 4th quarter of 2023 100%  Residential & 33819 74,403 - 55,026 19,377
Mansion Avenue, Luoshan County, Xinyang Clty N03FENER commercial
BUTHEEER EETELEENARE BNt fiz B2
52 Yucheng Zensun Scholar North of Songshan Road, Yucheng County, 3rd quarter of 2024 100%  Residential & 51410 128,525 - 56,228 7297
Mension Shanggju Oty NUFEZEE commercial
BHIAEEER BEmEAGRLBLE ENH
53 Znengzhou Zensun Smart City - West of Zhengxin Express Road and north of 2nd quarter of 2025 100%  Residential 51,980 129,962 - 105,720 24242
B-08 Land Parcel auxiiary road of Ring Expressway, Longhy 202585 %% fiz
GNTERENB-0613% Town, Xinzheng City
FOTRARITREREY  EASREELH
54 Xinmi Zensun Zhenyuan West of Huifeng Street, South of Pingyang Road ~ 4th quarter of 2025 100%  Residential 43,862 78,790 - - 78,790
Horizons and east of Xinhui Street, Xinmi City NBFEMER fiz
FETEERER FETHRER  BRRERELEE
5 Dengfeng Zensun Golden Mie  Northwest of the intersection of Fuyou Road and  3rd quarter of 2025 100%  Residential 42,082 75,747 - - 75,747
HouseB 5 EASHER Yinghe Road, Dengfeng City NBEE=ZR [z

EHMEAAEETARN AR

Grand total 3t 7,020,446 14,446,385 4,573,443 6,209,360 3,663,562




26

EREXERAF

Zensun Enterprises Limited

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEFWR DN

FINAL RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

For the year ended 31 December 2022 (the “Year”), the Group recorded revenue
of approximately RMB9,657.1 million and gross profit of approximately RMB827.0
million, with a decrease of approximately 28.0% as compared to revenue of
approximately RMB13,421.5 million and a decrease of approximately 34.5%
as compared to gross profit of approximately RMB1,262.7 million for 2021,
respectively. Revenue and gross profit of the Year and for 2021 were primarily
derived from the property development business in the PRC. The decrease in
revenue was mainly contributed by combination of less delivery of saleable/
leasable gross floor area (“GFA”) and lower average selling price (“ASP”) from the
delivery of the Group’s completed property development projects during the Year as
compared to 2021. During the Year, the Group’s completed property development
projects delivered approximately GFA of 950,000 square meters (“sg.m.”) with
ASP of approximately RMB10,200 per sq.m. as compared to that of approximately
1,100,000 sg.m. with ASP of approximately RMB12,200 per sg.m. for 2021.
The decrease in gross profit during the Year as compared to 2021 was resulted
from the recognition of certain lower profit margin property projects during the
Year, which was caused by property projects leading to had a higher unexpected
construction cost due to the COVID-19 pandemic which prolonged development
progress and property projects, together with suppressed selling prices under
the decreasing public purchasing desires and power derived from aggregated
unfavourable factors including the recurrence of the COVID-19 pandemic, the
macroeconomic downturn and the continued depletion of demand in real estate
properties.

The Group had other income of approximately RMB18.8 million during the Year,
with a decrease of approximately 57.3% as compared to approximately RMB44.0
million during 2021. It was primarily attributable to the decrease in interest income
of approximately RMB23.3 million during the Year.

The Group had net other losses of approximately RMB3,167.7 million during
the Year, as compared to net other losses of approximately RMB71.2 million for
2021. The Group’s net other losses during the Year were attributable to (i) the fair
value loss on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss of approximately
RMB207.0 million (2021: fair value gain of approximately RMB112.6 million), (i)
writedown of completed properties held for sale and properties under development
to net realisable value of approximately RMB2,656.9 million (2021: approximately
RMB166.8 million), (i) impairment loss on goodwill of RMB124.4 million (2021: Nil),
(iv) net exchange losses of approximately RMB187.2 million (2021: net exchange
losses of approximately RMB16.9 million), and (v) impairment losses on accounts
receivable and other receivables of approximately RMB11.6 million (2021: Nil); and
offset by fair value gain on investment properties of approximately RMB19.3 million
(2021: fair value loss of approximately RMBO0.1 million).

The Group’s sales and marketing expenses decreased by approximately 53.0%
from approximately RMB249.6 million for 2021 to approximately RMB117.3 million
for the Year. The Group’s administrative expenses decreased by approximately
18.0% from approximately RMB237.4 million for 2021 to approximately RMB194.7
million for the Year. Such decreases were in line with less sales activities in the
market and the cost-cutting measures implemented by the Group in view of the
recent downturn in the property market and recurrence of COVID-19 pandemic
during the Year.

The Group’s finance costs increased by approximately 27.7% from approximately
RMB89.9 million for 2021 to approximately RMB114.8 million for the Year. The
increase was attributable to interest arising from the increasing revenue contracts
which are not eligible for capitalisation to properties under development.

KRERRE

REZE2022F 12831 B IEFE([AFE ) » AEBEK
BhEHAREIB71HETLREFHARES27.0
BEI DAE2021F 2 WEHARE13,421.588
TR %28.0% R EFHARKEA,262.78 & TR
34.5% o AFER2021F 2 B REFEBHXKEFEH
MEBRER - WERP NDEZERAEERAFE
RISZERYERRBEERNZAIHE MEREER
R([BEmEE ] &R2021F @l R FHEE([HE]) &
C021F THMGATENY - RAFER » KEBZ
BRI REIB B R EE®EH950,000F 7 K ([ F
FKD) - HEHBARE10,2007T,F 7K - 2021
FRXMBEBML 1,100,000 F 5K - HEHABAR
#12,2007T, FH K o ANFEEFE2021 FF DTy HA
RAFERNERE TABRSEZWESRE » H9H
RECOVID-19%& 15 2EWEEAMREHELE B
INEEBRBERAE  WREARBEERRELGET
FEE(BHECOVID-19RIE N X E - BELE T
MEHEDEFRKIFEESS)EBCEE N TRNBR
T MEEEEBEZRE -

REBRAFEREEMBANAREISSHE T *
2021 FMHARBLI4 0B B TR 457.3% * &+
SRARREENFERARDHARE233EHE T
FTEK °

REBRAFE 2 HMEBEFENHAARYKES167.7
BEJT  M2021F RS EMEIBFEAOARKE71.2
BET - ALEERAFEZEMEBBFESAR()IZ
AFEFAEBEZEHEEZ AFEBBOARE
207.0B Bt (2021F : RFEKZHARK11268
B0 (MR EHEZERIWERBERETYES
A HEN AR 666.9FETL(20214F : HAR
¥166.8EEBIT) - (BB REFEBARE124.458 T
(2021%F : #&) - (VELEEFEOARKI18728E
JL(20214F : EHBEFBHARBI169EE L) ' &
(V) EUBR TR R Kb UK IB 2R EEBBHOARE11.6
BEIT(20214F « ) WHREMEAFERSEHA
RE19.3EHE L(2021F : RFEEEBHARKEOAET
EIT) FTik gy o

REBMZEERTSHEESEAR2021FHARBE240.6
BELALHEB0%EAFEHARBI17TIEETT
AEBZITHERHA2021FHARE237 48 E TR
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The Group’s income tax expenses decreased by approximately 29.1% from
approximately RMB273.6 million for 2021 to approximately RMB194.0 million for
the Year. The decrease was consistent with the decrease in PRC CIT due to the
decrease in operating profits in the PRC during the Year.

As a result of the foregoing, the Group’s loss attributable to owners of the
Company for the Year amounted to approximately RMB2,946.1 million (2021: profit
attributable to owners of the Company of approximately RMB399.5 million).

The basic loss per share for the Year was RMB154.0 cents (2021: basic earnings
per share of RMB20.9 cents) which was resulted from the decrease in profit
attributable to owners of the Company during the Year.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a dividend in respect of the Year.
BUSINESS REVIEW
Property Development in the PRC

During the Year, the property development business in the PRC contributed
revenue of approximately RMB9,591.5 million (2021: approximately RMB13,321.0
million) and segment loss of approximately RMB2,395.8 million (2021: segment
profit of approximately RMB492.3 million) to the Group. The decrease in segment
revenue was attributable to the decrease of GFA delivered to the property owners
and lower ASP of the delivered projects during the Year. There were ten new
completed property development projects in phases/sub-phases delivered during
the Year, namely Zhengzhou Zensun Voyage Garden (Phase | and Phase I)* (Z8
N I 75 P& A4 25 — H#3 &2 — #), Wuhan Zensun Scholar Mansion* (2 ERZ &
#[J), Zhengzhou Zensun Yating Mansion (Phase 1)* (ZF N iF 75 7 BE 2 15 — H7),
Zhengzhou Zensun Princess Lake Phase II* (85 1E 5 /A 3 4 — £), Zhengzhou
Zensun Zhenruishangjing* (&F /N 1IE i #1835 _£3%), Zhengzhou Zensun Boya Court
(Phase I)* (EB)1 IE pg 18 HEEE RE — ), Dengzhou Zensun Xintiandi* (881 IE /g7 K
i), Zhengzhou Zensun Voyage International Plaza (Phase II)* (&5 1F 72 B4 i BB
&% —HA), and Fengon Garden* (£%7%5), while during 2021 there were 11 new
completed projects delivered.

Together with our existing property projects completed in prior years, there
were approximately 950,000 sq.m. GFA delivered with ASP of approximately
RMB10,200 per sg.m. and recognised into the revenue during the Year as
compared to that of approximately 1,100,000 sq.m. GFA delivered with ASP of
approximately RMB12,200 per sq.m. and recognised during 2021. During the
Year, with the impact of economy downturn and the recurrence of COVID-19
pandemic, the overall real estate market in the PRC continued to experience a
decrease in public purchasing power. The selling prices of property projects were
inevitably suppressed which led to slowing down of sales and such situation was
especially worsened for non-core city locations. As a result of the foregoing, a
write-down of properties under development and completed properties held for
sale of approximately RMB2,656.9 million (2021: approximately RMB166.8 million
on properties under development) for certain properties whose selling price was
not recoverable as expected to net realisable value was provided during the Year.

In view of the abovementioned, the Group is adopting a more conservative
approach and implementing cost-cutting schemes to maintain its competitive and
sustainable business development plan. As a result from the above measures,
the sales and marketing and administrative expenses in property development
business in the PRC has decreased during the Year as compared to the 2021. In
addition, the Group conservatively acquired one land in Dengfeng City in Henan
Province through listing for sale processes in a public auction, with site area of
approximately 42,082 sg.m. and saleable/leasable GFA of approximately 75,747
million sg.m. in support of its land reserves in the PRC.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEFWR DN

In line with the concrete business development strategy adopted, the Group’s
land resources have been sufficiently accumulated. As at 31 December 2022, the
Group had 41 completed property projects and/or sub-phases and 55 on-going
complex property projects on hand with 116 land parcels under development
and planning with an aggregate site area of approximately 4.6 million sgq.m. and
aggregate estimated GFA of approximately 9.9 million sg.m. in the PRC. In return,
it is expected that the land reserves will bring to the Group with estimated saleable/
leasable GFA under development of approximately 6.2 million sg.m. and estimated
GFA under planning of approximately 3.7 million sg.m., which is sufficient for the
Group’s development needs for the next three to four years. The Group will remain
proactive in reviewing its pace of business expansion, and may adjust its project
development plans and schedules in response to the changing market conditions,
as and when appropriate.

Project Management Services in the PRC

During the Year, the Group provided project management services in the PRC
and recorded revenue of approximately RMB11.4 million (2021: approximately
RMB61.8 million) and segment profit of approximately RMB4.3 million (2021:
approximately RMB58.7 million) from the provision of project management services
in the PRC to independent property owners. During the Year, the Group no longer
provided project management services to the related companies which led to the
decrease in this segment revenue.

Property Investment and/or Management in the USA on AHR

The segment revenue derived from property investment and/or management on
AHR remained fairly stable of approximately RMB14.7 million for the Year and
approximately RMB14.4 million for 2021, and the segment profit also remained
stable of approximately RMB9.7 million for the Year and approximately RMB9.9
million for 2021.

Property Investment other than AHR

During the Year, the property investment in other regions other than AHR division
contributed to segment revenue of approximately RMB10.9 million (2021:
approximately RMB9.5 million) and segment profit of approximately RMB21.1
million (2021: approximately RMB2.0 million) to the Group. The increase in segment
profit was primarily attributable to fair value gain on investment properties in this
division of approximately RMB19.5 million during the Year as compared to fair
value loss of approximately RMBO.2 million during 2021.

Securities Trading and Investment

During the Year, the Group’s securities business recorded segment revenue of
approximately RMB16.1 million with segment loss of approximately RMB190.9
million as compared to segment revenue of approximately RMB14.7 million with
segment profit of approximately RMB127.4 million for 2021. The turnaround of
segment profit into segment loss was primarily stemming from the fair value loss
on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss of approximately RMB207.0
million during the Year (2021: fair value gain of approximately RMB112.6 million)
due to the overall downturn of the stock markets.

IMPACT OF COVID-19 PANDEMIC ON OUR BUSINESS

The Group was exposed to market volatility as a result of the economic downturn
in the overall PRC real estate market with decreasing public purchasing desires
and power derived from aggregated unfavourable factors including the recurrence
of the COVID-19 pandemic, the macroeconomic downturn and the continued
depletion of demand in real estate properties.
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Although policies favourable to the real estate industry have been introduced
and the Group has been actively taking promotion measures to boost property
sales, property sales were still weaker than expected. Therefore, taking a
prudent approach, the Group has recognised an increased impairment loss for
properties under construction and completed properties held for sale amounted to
approximately RMB2,656.9 million during the Year.

Our Group was prepared for and responsive to confronting these ever-changing
challenges so as to mitigate the impact brought by the COVID-19 pandemic and
the adverse market sentiment and the wait-and-see position cautiously taken by
customers. The Group closely communicates with our construction contractors in
order to monitor the development progress and adjust the development and pace
of delivery schedule from time to time, where appropriate and necessary.

The Group maintained sustainable liquidity financial position with bank balances
(including pledged deposits, restricted bank balances and cash and cash
equivalents) of approximately RMB1,991.6 million, with our current ratio slightly
decreased to 1.1 (from 1.2 at 31 December 2021), and our gearing ratio
decreased to 23.5% (from 27.1% at 31 December 2021) with net current assets
of approximately RMB7,081.5 million as at 31 December 2022. Therefore, we
are confident that our Group has sufficient working capital to satisfy the Group’s
operations.

The Board considers the overall business operation and financial position of the
Group to remain healthy and solid and therefore remains optimistic about the long-
term development of the Group despite the challenges posed by the downturn of
economic environment, fierce competition and evolving national regulatory control
measures and policies.

Save for the above, the Group was not aware of other risks or uncertainties which
will have a material effect on the operations, financial performance and the financial
position of the Group.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Liquidity and Capital Resources
Liquidity Position

As at 31 December 2022, the carrying amount of the Group’s total cash and
bank balances including pledged deposits and restricted bank balances were
approximately RMB1,991.6 million (2021: approximately RMB3,512.5 million),
representing a decrease of approximately 43.3%. The total cash and bank
balances were mainly denominated in RMB, Hong Kong Dollar (‘HKD” or “HK$”),
US Dollar (“USD” or “US$”), and Singapore Dollar (“SGD”).

As at 31 December 2022, certain bank balances and deposits of the Group
were pledged to certain banks and financial institutions as securities for (i) the
bank and financial institutions facilities granted to the Group and (i) the mortgage
loan facilities granted to the property buyers of the Group. The total pledged
deposits were approximately RMB137.5 million as at 31 December 2022 (2021:
approximately RMB215.9 million).
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Capital Structure, Borrowings and Charges on the Group’s assets

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which includes bank and
other borrowings, loans from a related company and amounts due to related
companies, net of cash and cash equivalents, restricted bank balances and
pledged deposits; and equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising
issued share capital and reserves. As at 31 December 2022, net debt and equity
attributable to owners of the Company were approximately RMB14,489.4 million
(2021: approximately RMB18,463.9 million) and approximately RMB5,316.0 million
(2021 approximately RMB8,198.5 million), respectively.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s aggregate borrowings, including bank
and other borrowings, loans from a related company and amounts due to related
companies, amounted to approximately RMB16,481.1 million (2021: approximately
RMB21,976.5 million), of which approximately RMB12,974.9 million (2021:
approximately RMB16,075.6 million) were repayable within one year or on demand,
and approximately RMB3,506.2 million (2021: approximately RMB5,900.8 million)
were repayable after one year. The aggregate borrowings were mainly denominated
in RMB, USD and SGD.

During the Year, the Company repurchased and cancelled part of the US$200
million 12.5% senior notes due 2022 (“2022 Notes”) with an aggregated principal
amount of US$163.6 million from the open market. The Company has repaid the
2022 Notes in full at their outstanding amount of US$36.4 million together with
interest accrued at the maturity date on 13 September 2022.

In addition to the 12.5% per annum fixed-rate interest for the US$160 million
senior notes and the US$200 million senior notes, the Group’s bank and other
borrowings carried fixed interest rates ranging from 4.75% to 10.5% per annum
and also various floating interest rates linking up with international lending rates
including Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate, Singapore Dollar Swap Offered
Rate, Singapore Interbank Offered Rate, London Interbank Offered Rate, the base
lending rate of the People’s Bank of China and the Loan Prime Rate in the PRC as
at 31 December 2022. The Group’s interest rate risk is mainly driven by the bank
and other borrowings with floating interest rates.

As at 31 December 2022, certain bank and financial institutions facilities granted
to the Group together with the mortgage loan facilities granted to the property
buyers of the Group were secured by investment properties, properties under
development, completed properties held for sale and pledged deposits with
total carrying values of approximately RMB15,369.3 million (2021: approximately
RMB15,799.8 million).

Shares of certain subsidiaries of the Group are pledged to secure certain bank and
financial institutions facilities granted to the Group as at 31 December 2022. Aside
from the Group’s senior notes, certain bank and financial institutions facilities to the
Group were also guaranteed by related companies which are ultimately controlled
by Ms. Huang and her daughter, Ms. Zhang as at 31 December 2022. No asset of
the Group was pledged to these related companies in respect of these guarantees.

As at 31 December 2022, loans from a related company and the amounts due to
related companies were unsecured and interest-free.

The Group did not use any financial instruments for hedging purpose during the
Year.
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The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will be able
to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to Shareholders
through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. In view of the Group’s
expansion strategy, the Group has sourced funding from its related companies and
will continue to look for external financing sources. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from previous year.

Key Financial Ratios

As at 31 December 2022, the Group recorded a current ratio of approximately
1.1 (2021: 1.2) and a gearing ratio of approximately 23.5% (2021: approximately
27.1%). Gearing ratio is defined as the ratio of total borrowings less cash and cash
equivalents, restricted bank balances and pledged deposits to total assets.

Capital Commitments

As at 31 December 2022, the capital commitments of the Group in connection
with the property development expenditures was approximately RMB10,041.8
million (2021: approximately RMB10,656.8 million) and there was no capital
commitments for acquisition of land use rights (2021: approximately RMB210.5
million), respectively.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had contingent liabilities relating to
guarantees amounting to approximately RMB19,274.1 million (2021: approximately
RMB18,002.3 million) provided by the Group in respect of mortgage loan facilities
provided by certain banks in connection with the mortgage loans entered into
by property buyers of the Group. Pursuant to the terms of the guarantees, upon
default in mortgage payments by these buyers, the Group would be responsible
for repaying the outstanding mortgage principal together with the accrued interest
thereon and any penalties owed by the defaulted buyers to the banks. The
Group would be entitled to take over legal title to and possession of the related
properties. These guarantees will be released upon the earlier of (i) the satisfaction
of the mortgage loan by the property buyers; and (i) the issuance of the property
ownership certificate for the mortgage property and the completion of the
deregistration of the mortgage. In the opinion of the Directors, no provision for the
guarantee contracts was recognised in the financial statements for the Year as in
case of default in payments, the net realisable value of the related properties can
cover the outstanding principal together with the accrued interest and penalties.

Foreign Exchange Exposure

The revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities are denominated substantially in
RMB, HKD, USD and SGD. Due to the currency peg of HKD to USD, the exchange
rate between these two currencies has remained stable and thus the Group has
not currently implemented any hedging or other alternatives to minimise foreign
exchange exposure. Going forward, the Group may formulate a foreign currency
hedging policy to provide a reasonable margin of safety for its exposure to RMB
and SGD through transactions, assets and liabilities should the need arise.
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Employee and Remuneration Policy

Remuneration packages are generally structured with reference to prevailing market
terms and individual qualifications. Salaries and wages are normally reviewed on
an annual basis based on performance appraisals and other relevant factors. Apart
from salary payments, there are other staff benefits including mandatory provident
fund, medical insurance and performance-related bonuses. The Company has
continued to receive the three awards issued by the Mandatory Provident Fund
Authority, namely, the Good MPF Employer 5 Years+ Award in recognition of
the Company’s compliance with employer’s statutory obligations and provision
of better retirement protection for employees, the e-Contribution Award and the
MPF Support Award for the Company’s adoption of electronic means for MPF
administration, and has striven to encourage employees to actively manage their
MPF. The Company adopted a share option scheme on 28 August 2013 and share
options may also be granted to eligible employees of the Group. Total staff costs,
including Directors’ emoluments during the Year, amounted to approximately
RMB100.4 million (2021: approximately RMB132.9 million).

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had 620 employees.

Significant Investments Held, Material Acquisitions and Disposals
of Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Venture and Future Plans for
Material Investments or Capital Assets

During the Year, the Group acquired land use rights of land parcels in Henan
Province with expected completion period approximately in third quarter of 2025
through public auction held by various PRC governmental land bureau, as set out
in the below summary:

Time of acquisition
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Save as disclosed above, the Group did not hold other significant investment,
make any other material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries, associates or
joint venture or future plan for material investment or capital assets during the Year.

Events after the Reporting Period

There was no significant event after the reporting period and up to the date of this
report.
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Outlook and Prospects

The Group is principally engaged in the business of property development,
property investment, project management services and hotel operations. In order
to pursue sustainable development, the Group looks for investment opportunities
which could strengthen its profitability under the acceptable risk in Hong Kong, the
PRC and overseas markets.

The Group will primarily finance the repayments on financial assistance from
the controlling shareholder through proceeds from the pre-sale and sale of
Group’s properties, internally generated cash flows from other operations, and
borrowings from commercial banks and financial institutions. Going forward, the
Group believes its future funding needs in support of property development and
land acquisition activities will be satisfied by the above-mentioned sources and
additional issuance of equity securities or other capital market instruments. The
Group seeks to manage the level of its liquid assets to ensure the availability of
sufficient cash flows to meet any unexpected cash requirements arising from its
business. The Group will continue to assess available financial resources in support
of its business needs on an ongoing basis, and plan and adjust our development
schedule or implement cost control measures if necessitated by its then-existing
financial conditions and cash requirements. The Group intends to continue to
access existing capital resources, and to seek new sources of funding, to maintain
and expand its business on a cost-effective basis.

The PRC

During the Year, ten property development projects, namely Zhengzhou Zensun
Voyage Garden (Phase | and Phase II)* (85 IE I fin {55 — B & = HA), Wuhan
Zensun Scholar Mansion* (&% [E & &), Zhengzhou Zensun Yating Mansion
(Phase 1)* (Z5)1| IE 7 HERE 2 iF — HA), Zhengzhou Zensun Princess Lake Phase II*
(ZB M IE 7 A 38 — ), Zhengzhou Zensun Zhenruishangjing® (Z5/M IF 548 -
), Zhengzhou Zensun Boya Court (Phase I)* (&8 IF 75 1# #E2E fz— H7), Dengzhou
Zensun Xintiandi* (B8M| IE & < #b), Zhengzhou Zensun Voyage International
Plaza (Phase II)* (Ep)N iIF R AT BB /& 4% — HA), and Fengon Garden* (&% 45)
were newly completed and delivered to customers in accordance with the terms
and conditions of the purchase agreements. The Group’s property development
projects focus on providing “high quality” property with both standard and deluxe
design accompanied by full refurbishment so as to meet different customers’
preferences and needs. Revenue from the sale of properties is expected to be
recognised upon the completion and delivery of the completed properties and/or
sub-phases.

After the ambitious land acquisitions completed in the past years, the Group built
up and maintained strong land reserves for the Group’s property development
business in the PRC for the next three years with a strong presence in Henan
Province, thus, the Group will focus more on developing the existing and new
property development projects from its land reserves from 2023 to 2025.

The Board will maintain open-minded in identifying new property development
projects and bidding for land use rights of other selective land parcels in the PRC
with a focus in Zhengzhou City, Henan Province and other selective first and
second tier cities in the PRC in the coming few years.

With the strong land reserves and the ongoing property development projects, the
demand for the respective construction work for the Group’s properties projects
on hand are rapidly and substantially increasing. In this regard, the Group will
proactively seek and cooperate with quality construction contractors which can
offer the best and most favourable terms to cooperate so as to complement the
Group’s expansion in property development in the PRC.
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The Group continues to pursue in diversifying to a light-asset model by investing
more internal resources to further expand the project management business
and providing a more integrated project management services in return for
management fee income. The Board considers project management business in
the PRC shall become popular in the market with prosperous business potential,
and the expansion in project management business served as a diversification
to light-asset model from our traditional heavy-asset model in the property
development business. The diversification allows the Group to gain competitive
advantages from managing property projects on behalf of property owners without
having to bear heavy investment cost in land acquisition and construction cost, and
in turn, leverage the risks from industry concentration and tightening government
regulations on property development business.

The Company takes leverage on the PRC property development and investment
experience of its management team to seek suitable projects for development
or investment with potential to deliver value to its Shareholders. In addition to
existing business partners, the Company will continue to seek potential partners’
cooperation to explore capital resources and reduce the Group’s capital
investment in property projects at an early stage and facilitate project development.
The management of the Group remains cautiously optimistic on the long-term
prospects of the real estate industry and will expedite its property development
and sales of its development projects in the PRC through making use of its own
advantages and leveraging on the national network and business resources of
Henan Zensun Real Estate Co., Ltd* (AR EREE 2 AR A A) (“Zensun Real
Estate”), a company controlled by Ms. Huang. The synergistic effect brought by
Zensun Real Estate will improve the position of the Group in the real estate industry
in the PRC.

The U.S.

As at the date of this report, the Group has approximately 5.7% equity interest in
a NYSE-listed REIT, GMR in securities trading and investment segment and 99%
equity interest in AHR in property investment and management segment.

1. GMR

During the Year, the Group performed regular review on GMR’s business
performance and its business strategies and prospect. It is considered that
the investment in GMR would achieve long term capital appreciation to the
Group with stable average annual yield.

2. AHR

AHR is currently 99%-controlled by the Group. AHR diversified its previous
investment in single family houses to senior housing communities in order to
seize the potential opportunity for the current strong demand on retirement
communities and elderly care industries in the USA for higher-than-average
annualised yield.

Other operations

The Group has commenced a new hotel operation in Zhengzhou City in the PRC
during the Year and will regularly review the Singapore property market to explore
business opportunity in the foreseeable future.

Overall

The Company will make use of the Group’s financial, human and technological

resources to seize business growth opportunities and enhance its portfolio, asset
base and brand image in the PRC, USA and overseas markets.
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ZHANG JINGGUO
Chairman, Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Zhang Jingguo (“Mr. Zhang”), aged 59, is the Chairman, Executive Director and
Chief Executive Officer of the Company and a member of each of the nomination
committee and remuneration committee of the Company. Mr. Zhang is also a
director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. He was appointed to the Board on
6 July 2015 following the change of controlling shareholder of the Company on 29
June 2015.

Mr. Zhang has approximately 28 years of experience in the real estate development
industry in China. From July 1983 to April 1995, Mr. Zhang held various positions
at the then Light Industry Bureau of Henan Province, the governmental authority
in charge of the light industry in Henan Province, and its associated collectively-
owned enterprises, including division chief, engineer and vice manager, where he
was responsible for administrative management. From April 1995 to April 2001, he
worked at Xingye Real Estate as general manager, where he was responsible for its
overall operations. Mr. Zhang and Ms. Huang Yanping (“Ms. Huang”) cofounded a
real estate company which has become one of the top 100 property development
companies in China. Mr. Zhang has served as the Chairman and chief executive
officer of this top 100 real estate company since 2001. Mr. Zhang is responsible
for the overall strategic planning and general management of our Group and is
instrumental to our growth and business expansion.

Mr. Zhang received a bachelor’s degree in radio science from Zhengzhou
University in July 1983, an Executive MBA degree from Guanghua School of
Management, Peking University in July 2013 and an Executive MBA degree from
PBC School of Finance, Tsinghua University in July 2018. Mr. Zhang currently
serves as senior consultant of Henan Real Estate Chamber of Commerce, vice-
president of Industry & Commerce Association of Henan Province, graduate tutor
of Zhengzhou University. During the years of 2016, 2017 and 2018, Mr. Zhang
was named “Outstanding Real Estate Developer of Henan Province by Real Estate
Association of Henan Province. Mr. Zhang received his senior engineer qualification
from the People’s Government of Henan Province in May 2012, he received his first
class construction engineer qualification from the Ministry of Housing and Urban-
Rural Development.

Currently, Mr. Zhang is the Chairman of Zanyu Technology Group Co. Ltd., a listed
company on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 002637).

Mr. Zhang is the spouse of Ms. Huang, a Non-Executive Director. As at 31
December 2022, Mr. Zhang is interested in 1,377,520,893 shares of the Company,
which are directly held by Joy Town Inc., which is wholly-owned by Zensun Group
Limited. Zensun Group Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Notable Reward
Limited, which in turn is wholly-owned by Superior Glory Enterprises Limited.
The entire issued share capital of Superior Glory Enterprises Limited are assets
of a discretionary trust established by Ms. Huang as settlor and protector and
Vistra Trust (Singapore) Pte Limited as trustee. Mr. Zhang is a director of Zensun
Group Limited, a company which had an interest or short position in the Shares
or underlying Shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.
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HUANG YANPING
Non-Executive Director

Ms. Huang, aged 61, is the Non-Executive Director of the Company. Ms. Huang
is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. She was appointed to
the Board on 27 July 2015 following the change of controlling shareholder of the
Company on 29 June 2015.

Ms. Huang has over 20 years’ experiences in the property development and
investment industry in the PRC. Ms. Huang has been involved in the development
of not less than 36 property development projects in Henan Province, Shandong
and Hainan Province in the PRC with a total gross floor area of not less than 14
million sg.m.. She is one of the founders of a real estate company which has
become one of the top 100 property development companies in the PRC.

Ms. Huang is the spouse of Mr. Zhang, an Executive Director. As at 31 December
2022, Ms. Huang is interested in 1,377,520,893 shares of the Company, which
are directly held by Joy Town Inc., which is wholly-owned by Zensun Group
Limited. Zensun Group Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Notable Reward
Limited, which in turn is wholly-owned by Superior Glory Enterprises Limited. The
entire issued share capital of Superior Glory Enterprises Limited are assets of a
discretionary trust established by Ms. Huang as settlor and protector and Vistra
Trust (Singapore) Pte Limited as trustee. Ms. Huang is the sole director of Joy
Town Inc. and Notable Reward Limited, both of which are companies which an
interest or short position in the Shares or underlying Shares of the Company which
would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and
3 of Part XV of the SFO.

ZHANG GUOQIANG
Executive Director

Mr. Zhang Guogiang, aged 59, is an Executive Director of the Company. He
was appointed to the Board on 27 July 2015 following the change of controlling
shareholder on 29 June 2015.

Between August 1983 to October 1997, Mr. Zhang Guogiang worked as a tutor
at the Communication Command Academy of PLA, now known as the National
Defence Information Academy of PLA. Between October 1997 to March 2003, Mr.
Zhang Guogiang served as the director of the marketing department of Wuhan
Research Institute of Post & Telecommunications, also known as FiberHome
Technologies Group, a product and solution provider in the field of information and
telecommunications, where he was responsible for marketing. Prior to joining our
Group, Mr. Zhang Guogiang worked as a general manager at Nanjing North Road
Technologies Co., Ltd., a coal analysis equipment manufacturer, from May 2003
to November 2005, where he was responsible for general management. Mr. Zhang
Guogiang joined the real estate company co-founded by Mr. Zhang and Ms. Huang
in 2006 and in the position of vice president of that company since then. Mr. Zhang
Guogiang received a bachelor’s degree in radio science from Zhengzhou University
in July 1983. In 1988, Mr. Zhang Guogiang received his lecturer qualification from
the National Defence Information Academy of PLA and received his engineer
qualification from Wuhan Research Institute of Post of Telecommunications.

Currently, Mr. Zhang Guogiang is a director of Zanyu Technology Group Co., Ltd.,
a listed company on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 002637).
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LIU DA
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Liu Da (“Mr. Liu”), aged 48, was appointed as an independent Non-Executive
Director on 27 July 2015.

Mr. Liu graduated from the University of International Business and Economics
with a major in international business administration and obtained a bachelor’s
degree in economics. Mr. Liu is also a Certified Public Accountant (CPA) in
China. Mr. Liu served as an audit manager and a senior audit manager of
PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC”) Guangzhou Office from 1998 to 2009 and
Chicago Office from 2005 to 2007. Mr. Liu provided audit and consulting services
to a number of global top 500 enterprises and overseas listed Chinese companies
during his tenure of office in PwC. Mr. Liu was appointed as an executive director
and the chief financial officer of the Landsea Green Properties Co., Ltd., a listed
company on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 106) from 31 July 2013 to 5 January
2015 and was appointed as an independent non-executive director of Long Ji Tai
He Holding Limited, a listed company on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1281)
from 26 February 2015 to 16 October 2015. Currently, Mr. Liu is the managing
partner of Key Wealth Capital Company Limited, providing financing and overseas
mergers and acquisition services to Chinese enterprises.

Currently, Mr. Liu is an independent non-executive director of Guangdong
Dongfang Precision Service & Technology Co., Ltd., a listed company on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange (Stock code: 002611). Mr. Liu is also an independent
non-executive director of Kimou Environmental Holding Limited, a listed company
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 6805) since 1 March 2023.

MA YUNTAO
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Ma Yuntao (“Mr. Ma”), aged 43, was appointed as an independent
Non-Executive Director on 27 July 2015.

Mr. Ma has been serving at Tian Yuan Law Firm as a registered partner from
December 2021 up to now. He served at Jia Yuan Law Firm from July 2010 to
November 2021 and at Commerce & Finance Law Offices from July 2002 to June
2010, engaging in securities business as to PRC laws. He acquired qualifications as
a practicing solicitor in 2006.
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Mr. Ma ran projects including the secondary listing project of New Oriental
Education & Technology Group Inc., a company listed on the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 9901) which is principally engaged in the private educational services,
the privatisation and delisting project of AVIC International Holdings Limited,
a company formerly listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 0161) which
was principally engaged in electronic high-tech, retail and consumer products,
international engineering and trade logistics businesses, the initial public offering
(“IPO”) project of China Resources Pharmaceutical Group Limited, a company
listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 3320) which is principally engaged in
the research and development, manufacturing, distribution and retail of a broad
range of pharmaceutical and healthcare products, privatisation and delisting project
of Hunan Nonferrous Metals Company Limited, a company formerly listed on the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 2626) which was principally engaged in nonferrous
metallic mineral resources mining business, IPO project of Poly Culture Group
Corporation Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 3636)
which is principally engaged in culture industry involving theatre management,
artwork auction and investment, IPO project of Kerry Logistics Network Limited,
a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 0636) which is principally
engaged in logistics, IPO project of eprint Group Limited, a company listed on
the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1884) which is principally engaged in internet
printing, spin-off listing in respect of Tonly Electronics Holdings Limited, a company
formerly listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1249) which is principally
engaged in production of electronics products of TCL Multimedia Technology
Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1070)
which is principally engaged in production of electronics products, very substantial
acquisition project of China Taiping Insurance Holdings Company Limited, a
company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 0966) which is principally
engaged in insurance, and IPO (both A share and H share) project of China
Aluminium International Engineering Corporation Limited, a company listed on
the Stock Exchange (stock code: 2068) and Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock
code: 601068) which is principally engaged in nonferrous engineering design and
construction.

Mr. Ma is an independent non-executive director of TUS-Pharmaceutical Group
Co. Ltd., a listed company on Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 000590)
since 21 May 2020.

LI HUIQUN
Independent Non-Executive Director

Dr. Li Huigun (“Dr. Li"), aged 56, was appointed as an independent non-executive
director on 18 October 2021.

Dr. Li obtained a bachelor’s degree in economics, a master’s degree in economics
and a doctorate degree in economics from the School of Economics of Wuhan
University, Hubei Province, China in 1988, 1991 and 1994, respectively. Dr. Li
holds the title of Senior Economist, has extensive experience in the banking and
financial markets sector. From April 1994 to October 2015, she served as head
of several divisions and on vice-president level positions in the Shenzhen Central
Branch of the People’s Bank of China, in charge of the Money and Credit Division,
the Financial Research Office, the Bullion Management Division, labour union work
and management of human resources. From November 2015 to June 2021, she
has been the vice president of Shenzhen Rural Commercial Bank in charge of asset
management, financial market and inter-bank business, international business and
management of the Qianhai branch.

Dr. Li is an independent non-executive director of Nine Dragons Paper (Holdings)
Limited, a listed company on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code:
2689) since 6 February 2023.
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Ms. Xing Zhumei (“Ms. Xing”), aged 52, appointed as the Chief Financial Officer
of the Company in November 2020, responsible for the Group’s financial reporting,
corporate finance activities and investor relations matters.

Ms. Xing has approximately 27 years of experience in accounting and audit. Before
joining the Group, Ms. Xing served as an accountant at Zhengzhou Fruit and Food
Corporation* (&5 71 R BB X422 7)) from July 1995 to December 2004. She then
served as the chief accountant in Henan Zensun Real Estate Co., Ltd.* (JA/Fg [E
EE AR A F]) from January 2005 to April 2017 and as the chief financial officer in
Henan Xingye Internet of Things Management Technology Co., Ltd.* (/] &3 5 3 ) Bt
MEBERE AR A R]) from May 2017 to September 2019. Thereafter, she served
as the chief accountant in Zensun Group Limited (IE & 4% E AR A 7)) from October
2019 to September 2020.

Ms. Xing obtained her bachelor’s degree in auditing from Zhengzhou University in
1995. She received her qualified accounting certificate (medium level) in 2002 from
Ministry of Finance of the PRC* (Fh# A R R B Bf B &F) and certified tax agent
certificate in 2003 from Department of Human Resources and Social Security of
Henan Province* (AIRI& A 1 &R REEEE). Ms. Xing is @ member of Henan
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (] B s it & 5HEM 1 ).

Mr. Yuen Ping Man (Dickman) (“Mr. Yuen”), aged 59, is the Company
Secretary and the Chief Operating Officer (Hong Kong) responsible for the Group’s
corporate secretarial functions and business operations.

Mr. Yuen has over 25 years of managerial experience in corporate secretarial,
business development, human resources and general administration. Mr. Yuen was
previously the chief operating officer of Xpress Finance Limited (“Xpress Finance”),
a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company responsible for compliance,
human resource, operations, sales and marketing, customer service and general
administration of Xpress Finance. Xpress Finance was a non-bank MasterCard
issuer and a licenced money-lender financial institution. Prior to joining Xpress
Finance in June 1997, Mr. Yuen worked in two listed groups and a licensed
financial institution in managerial position.

Mr. Yuen is a fellow member of the Chartered Governance Institute (U.K.), the
Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute and Society of Registered Financial
Planners, a senior member of The Hong Kong Institute of Marketing, a professional
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Human Resource Management, a member
of the Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute and the Chartered Institute of
Marketing (U.K.).

Mr. Yuen holds a master’s degree in business administration and is also a certified
risk planner.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
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The Directors present their annual report together with the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the Year.

Zensun Enterprises Limited

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company and together with its
subsidiaries engages in property development, property investment, project
management and sale services, hotel operations and securities trading and
investment. The activities and particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries
are set out in note 44 to the consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by principal operating segments for
the Year is set out in the notes 4 and 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss on page 82.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Company was founded in 1965, and is currently focused on property
development, property investment, project management and sale services, hotel
operations and securities trading and investment in Hong Kong, the PRC and
overseas.

A detailed business review for the Year, including further discussions of important
events occurred since the end of the financial year, likely future development of the
Group’s business and financial performance review with financial key performance
indicators, are set out in “Chairman’s Message” on pages 6 to 10, “Management
Discussion and Analysis” on pages 26 to 34 and “Financial Summary” on page 187
respectively. These discussions form part of this report.

A review in relation to the impact of COVID-19 pandemic on our business is set out
under “Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 28 to 29.

The Company will issue separately an Environmental, Social and Governance
Report under Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide as specified
in Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules.

Principal risks and uncertainties

Under our current risk management and internal control system, regular review of
the principal risks and uncertainties that may affect the Group’s financial condition,
results of operations, business and prospects are maintained. There may be other
risks and uncertainties further to the following key risk areas and uncertainties
currently identified by the Group.

The performance of the Group’s property development business in the PRC is
susceptible to the national regulatory control measures and polices implemented
under the COVID-19 pandemic and also those restricting the purchase of
properties, and the general downturn in macro economic environment in the
PRC. Any changes in the national measures and policies may also penetrate into
the overall national economic conditions, and influence changes in consumer
confidence, consumption spending and preferences in property market in the PRC.
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The Group’s operation is also subject to certain risk factors pertaining to property
development business in the PRC, including lack of availability of potential land
resources in the PRC, escalation of construction cost due to inflation and the
supply shortage, default on the part of our customers, construction contractors,
business partners and tenants, adverse weather conditions, other unexpected
inadequacies or failure of internal process or other external factors may have
various levels of risk on the Group’s operations. Liquidity issues of certain property
developers have further worsened the public confidence in the real estate market.

The Group’s capital risk management and financial risk management are set out in
notes 33 and 36 to the consolidated financial statements.

In response to these possible risks and uncertainties, the Group continues to
implement a series of internal control and strategies to adapt itself to cope with
the possible risks and changes. The Group also develops and reviews strategies,
policies and guidelines on risk control which enable the Group to monitor closely
and formulate business strategies to respond to risk promptly and effectively. The
Group also actively proposes measures and adjusts the development pace to
minimise any potential business impact on the Group from these possible risks and
uncertainties.

In 2022, the Group continued to implement strategy in expanding our project
management business in order to diversify our income streams.

Key stakeholder relationships

To build a solid foundation for the Group’s sustainable development, the
Group recognise its employees, customers and business partners being the
key stakeholders and maintain a continuous dialogue with them. The Group is
dedicated to establish a close and supporting relationship with its employees,
provide quality products and services to customers and strengthen all kinds of
cooperation with its business partners.

The Company provides a healthy and safe workplace, career development
opportunities and competitive remuneration and benefits to employees based
on their qualifications in accordance with industry practice in the geographical
locations in which they are located. To treasure its loyal and industrious staff
members and improve their performance at their positions, different forms of
rewards and compensation including salaries, provident fund, performance bonus,
insurance coverage, or share options, etc, will be considered and reviewed on an
annual basis based on performance appraisals for eligible employees.

Maintaining close relationship with its customers as well as tenants are paramount
to the long-term success for the Group. Interacting channels with customers and
tenants are established to identify and respond to the dynamic market needs
proactively, improve the quality of products and services to adhere to customers’
needs and preference timely. In the long run, it fosters customer recognition of the
brand of the Group with a trust-worthy basis.

The Group is also committed to developing fair and co-operating business
partnership with suppliers and contractors to ensure stability of the Group’s
operation. Through a series of standardised procurement process including
quotation or tender procedures, cost and quality of the procurement supply of the
Group are able to be monitored, assessed and evaluated reasonably. The Group
continuously upholds an effective communication with suppliers to deliver quality
products and services to customers for long-term sustainability.
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Compliance with laws and regulations

As far as the Company is aware of, the Group has complied with applicable laws
and regulations promulgated by the relevant regulatory bodies which are significant
to the operations of the Group.

Zensun Enterprises Limited

Environmental policy

The Group is committed to the long-term sustainability of businesses and
communities with which it engages. We pursue this business approach by
managing our business prudently and executing management decisions with due
care and attention to balance the sustainable business growth and environmental
protection.

The Group endeavours to make improvements by promoting environmental friendly
policies in the Group’s operations and increasing the employee’s awareness over
environmental protection. By means of advocating eco-friendly and reusable
materials, paper-recycling and energy saving measures on office equipment and
appliances, it helps enhance efficient use of resources, energy efficiency and
reduction of waste.

The Group is committed to act in an environmentally responsible manner to
review its environmental protection policies and activities from time to time for
implementation of any further measures and practices on environmental protection
in the business operation.

MAJOR PROPERTIES

Particulars of the major properties of the Group as at 31 December 2022 are
set out in “Hong Kong and Overseas Property Portfolio” on page 11, “Property
Development Project Summary in the PRC” on pages 14 to 25 and “Particulars of
Major Investment Properties” on page 188.

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment and investment
properties of the Group during the Year are set out in notes 14 and 15 respectively
to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group’s investment properties were revalued at the year end date. The
revaluation for the Year resulted a fair value gain of approximately RMB19,319,000
which has been charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

SHARE CAPITAL

There was no movement in the Company’s issued share capital during the Year.
Details of the Company’s issued share capital as at 31 December 2022 are set out
in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Movements in reserves of the Group during the Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 86.

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 December 2022 amounted to
approximately RMB607.5 million.
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CHARITABLE DONATIONS

The charitable donations made by the Group during the Year amounted to
approximately RMB1.4 million.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the articles of association of the
Company ("Articles of Association") or the laws of Hong Kong, which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares to existing Shareholders on a pro-rata basis.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to the Shareholders
by reason of their shareholding in the Company. If the shareholders are unsure
about the taxation implications of purchasing, holding, disposing of, dealing in or
exercising of any rights in relation to the shares of the Company, they are advised
to consult an expert.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five
financial years is set out on page 187.

Annual Report 2022 —F - " HFFR

4
I
il
=

AEEAARERZRHMEXNDARE148E8T -

EBrBEEHE

AREAEERAR([AEERAR D BB EDIE
BEEMESBER G REARQRERLIIAR
BARRABIRBER I

B R
ARBLETAERBRRERE AR RENAES
FERIERE - BRERNHEE - 585 HE - EEA
N R AT B B AR BRI B TR AT 5]
OB FEAERRRA - ERRSEERR -
B E

AEEBERABAVHRFECEEREERBEHRES
MNE18TE -

43



44

Zensun Enterprises Limited

EREXERAF

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHEE

DIRECTORS

(a)

Directors of the Company
The Directors during the Year and present Directors up to the date of this
report are:

Executive Directors:
Zhang Jingguo
Zhang Guogiang

(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Non-Executive Director:
Huang Yanping

Independent Non-Executive Directors:
Liu Da

Ma Yuntao

Li Huiqun

In accordance with Articles 78 and 79 of Articles of Association and
pursuant to code provision B.2.2 of the Corporate Governance Code (“CG
Code”), Ms. Huang Yanping and Mr. Ma Yuntao will retire by rotation at
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to be held on
Wednesday, 7 June 2023 (the “2023 AGM”) and, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election. Details of the Directors to be re-elected at the
2023 AGM are set out in the circular to the Shareholders which will be sent
together with this annual report.

The Company has received from each of the independent Non-Executive
Directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules and the Company considers that all of the independent
Non-Executive Directors are independent.

Each of the Directors has entered into a service agreement with the
Company for a term of three years which may be terminated in accordance
with the terms of the service agreements.

No Director being proposed for re-election at the 2023 AGM has a
service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which are not
determinable within one year without payment of compensation, other than
normal statutory obligations.

The biographical details of the Directors and senior management of the
Group are set out on pages 35 to 39.
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(b)

Directors of the Company’s subsidiaries

The directors of the Company’s subsidiaries during the Year and up to the

date of this report are:

Bai Mengjun
Bie Sanjiang
Chen Jiguo
Chen Weibing
Cheng Yuewu
Feng Hongfeng
Feng Jiansong
Geng Chong
Guo Wei
Huang Yanping
Jeffrey Busch
Liu Chuanke
Liu Hai

Liu Heping

Liu Zhengiang
Lu Hong Yan
Meng Yuming
Tan Shumei
Tian Haitao
Wang Jinhu
Wen Sifang
Xing Zhumei
Zhang Huiqi
Zhang Guogiang
Zhang Jianmin
Zhang Jingguo
Zhou Bing

(appointed on 1 October 2022)
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS
OR CONTRACTS

Zensun Enterprises Limited

Save as disclosed in notes 9, 28 and 41 to the consolidated financial statements,
no transactions, arrangements and contracts of significance in relation to the
Group’s business to which the Company, its holding company, fellow subsidiaries
or subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director or any entity connected with a
Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end
of the Year or at any time during the Year.

CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in notes 28 and 41 to the consolidated financial statements
in relation to the financial assistance provided by the controlling shareholder
of the Company to the Group and the transactions disclosed in note 41 to the
consolidated financial statements and also detailed under sections headed “Related
Party Transactions” and “Continuing Connected Transactions” and there was no
contract of significance between the Company or any of its subsidiaries, and a
controlling shareholder of the Company or any of its subsidiaries at the end of the
Year or at any time during the Year.

DIRECTORS EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

Details of the remuneration of the Directors, together with those of the five highest
paid employees of the Group for the Year are set out in notes 9 and 10 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2022, the interests and short positions of the Directors and
chief executive of the Company in the ordinary shares of the Company (“Shares”),
underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests and short positions which they are taken or deemed to
have under such provisions of the SFO), or any interest or short positions which
were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register
referred to therein, or any interests and short positions which have to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange, pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (the “Model Code”) as set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules, were as follows:

r\
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0] Interest in the Shares of the Company (i) RARERRAD P R
Approximate
percentage of
the issued share
capital of the
Company (%)
Number of FOR RN
Name of Director Capacity in which interests are held Shares held BRITRAE
EEMA EnaEsHh FERGEE Aokt
Mr. Zhang Spousal interest (Note 1) 1,377,520,893 71.99
RACHE Be i@ (A1)
Ms. Huang Interest of controlled corporation (Note 2) 1,877,520,893 71.99
Huangzz 4 SR ER (M T2)
Notes: Mt -
(1) Mr. Zhang (Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director of 1) REE(RRAAER - THERFKWNITE

the Company) is the spouse of Ms. Huang, under SFO, he is deemed to
be interested in 1,377,520,893 Shares in which Ms. Huang is interested.

2) 1,377,520,893 Shares are directly held by Joy Town Inc., which is
ultimately owned by a discretionary trust established by Ms. Huang as
settlor and protector and Vistra Trust (Singapore) Pte Limited as trustee.
Joy Town Inc. is wholly-owned by Zensun Group Limited. Zensun Group
Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Notable Reward Limited, which in
turn is wholly-owned by Superior Glory Enterprises Limited and the entire
issued share capital of Superior Glory Enterprises Limited became assets
of the trust. Superior Glory Enterprises Limited, Notable Reward Limited,
Zensun Group Limited and Joy Town Inc. are holding companies of the
Company, each of them is an associated corporation of the Company
under SFO.

H) AHuangZ T2 BB REFHFRHE
B - B AR HuangZ + B =
1,377,520,893 % i 11 P #E B #e 2 ©

©) 1,377,520,893 ik i {5 £ Joy Town Inc. B #
#AE  Ef&B\HaungZ TR 1EARE
A FR & A K 8 Vistra Trust (Singapore) Pte
Limited E R X FEAB 2 EETATHEA © Joy
Town Inc. HIEBESEBEERAREEREA ° IF
5 5 [85 [R A 7] ANotable Reward Limited,Z
2 & M B A7 - M Notable Reward Limited
/1 Superior Glory Enterprises Limited & &
A - 1M Superior Glory Enterprises Limited &
HEBETRAK AL REEFLHEE © Superior
Glory Enterprises Limited - Notable Reward
Limited ~ [EF & B AR A 7 K&Joy Town Inc.
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Long Positions

(i

L3y}

Interest in ordinary shares of associated corporations of the Company (i)

AR BREEE BB M2

Bk

Approximate
percentage of

Name of Capacity in which the Number of the issued share

Name of Director associated corporation interests are held share held capital (%)

i RMEHEBCEEC BT

EEHE HEEE A ERBEESH BB E RAEZEDHE

Ms. Huang Superior Glory Interest of controlled 1 100

Enterprises Limited corporation (Note)

HuangZ + T EE S (M)

Ms. Huang Notable Reward Limited Interest of controlled 100 100

corporation (Note)

HuangZ 4 Ry E R (M)

Ms. Huang Zensun Group Limited Interest of controlled 1 100

corporation (Note)

HuangZ & FRAEEERAF Sy E g (M)

Ms. Huang Joy Town Inc. Beneficial owner (Note) 1 100

HuangZ + BEnEB AHE)

Note: 1,377,520,893 Shares are directly held by Joy Town Inc., which are HizE © 1,877,620,893 & B% {0 H Joy Town Inc. B
ultimately owned by a discretionary trust established by Ms. Huang as #E  ERLBHaungZ TR EAZ T
settlor and protector and Vistra Trust (Singapore) Pte Limited as trustee. A MR A K | Vistra Trust (Singapore) Pte
Joy Town Inc. is wholly-owned by Zensun Group Limited. Zensun Group Limited E A FEAM 2SR © Joy
Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Notable Reward Limited, which in Town Inc. HIEBEEBEERARLEREA ° IE
turn is wholly-owned by Superior Glory Enterprises Limited and the entire 7% £ [ A R 2 8 ANotable Reward Limited 2
issued share capital of Superior Glory Enterprises Limited became assets 2 & KB 2 7 » M Notable Reward Limited
of the trust. Superior Glory Enterprises Limited, Notable Reward Limited, /1 Superior Glory Enterprises Limited & &
Zensun Group Limited and Joy Town Inc. are holding companies of the £ -+ 1M Superior Glory Enterprises Limited &
Company, each of them is an associated corporation of the Company HE BT A2 EEFERIEE © Superior
under SFO. Ms. Huang is the sole director of Joy Town Inc. and Notable Glory Enterprises Limited - Notable Reward
Reward Limited and Mr. Zhang is the sole director of Zensun Group Limited + IER & B AR 2 & &Joy Town Inc.
Limited. HRARGBIZERAR BEE£8AEFESF L

EIEPIBTARE 2 HEEEE © HuangZZ 74
Joy Town Inc. &% Notable Reward Limited 2 1
—EF MREEREMEEBRAF ZME—
Save as disclosed, as at 31 December 2022, none of the Directors, chief B ESCEEEESN 0 A20226F12A31H - &%

executive of the Company or their respective associates had any interests
or short positions in the Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) which: (a) were notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which they are taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO); (b) were required, pursuant to section 352 of
the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein; or (c) have to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules.
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Share Option Scheme”, at no time
during the Year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries, a party to any
arrangements to enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate and neither the directors nor any of their spouses or children under the
age of 18, had any right to subscribe for the securities of the Company, or had
exercised any such right.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or
any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the Year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, revenue attributable to the largest customer of the Group
accounted to approximately 0.2% of the total revenue in the Year and the five
largest customers of the Group accounted for 0.7% of the Group’s total revenue in
the Year.

During the Year, none of our Directors, or any of their close associates, or any of
the Shareholders (who to the best knowledge of our Directors own more than 5%
of our Company’s issued share capital) had any interest in our Group’s five largest
customers.

During the Year, purchases attributable to the largest supplier of the Group
amounted to approximately 28.0% of the total purchases in the Year and the five
largest suppliers of the Group accounted for approximately 38.0% of the Group’s
purchases in the Year.

During the Year, none of the Directors, their close associates or any Shareholders
(who to the best knowledge of our Directors own more than 5.0% of our
Company’s issued share capital) had any interest in our Group’s five largest
suppliers.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the Year, certain Directors and companies controlled by certain Directors
entered into transactions with the Group which are disclosed in notes 27, 28 and
41 to the consolidated financial statements.

Save as disclosed above and in the section headed “Continuing Connected
Transactions”, the Board confirmed that none of these related party transactions
constitutes a discloseable connected transaction as defined under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

Annual Report 2022 —F - " HFFR

BEROIESFOZH

BREA BT & | — BT EE SN AR HEE
A P B8 & R A4 AT B P B AT SL(E 2 8
HEARRESTAEBBEEARRRITMEMATN
BHRESMES  TERESHETARFHERMBX
TNAERA T FREAEAARBRARAZHOERN
HEITEEFAZEERN -

BEEEN

RAFER - BETIHETAEMERNRF 2R
MEREBEBZERRITREL -

ITERFRHUER

REFER  REAEESATFPRREAFERLE
Wasz#0.2%  MAKERAZEPEKREAEER
FENBREDT0.7% o

RAFE  BEES  FARSNETHEALER
ARBBRR(BESHAAEARNRRND HETRAN
5% L )N AEERREFF AR -

RAFER  AAKRESAHEREERGAFENR
BIEBEEZ428.0% MEAEBRRHEMEESR
HWEREBAFEANEERE Z238.0% °

RAFE BEEE  TARSENETBEALER
ARERR(BEESHAESRRFNE BITRAN
5% LA L) RAKE R AHERDEAES -

BAEALRS

RAFER BETEZERETESEN AR HEASE
BV ZER P (RRAEMBHREWE27 - 28 418

) -

BEXR[FERERS | —HMEEEN  EFEH
R MEZEEEALZZGBR ETRBE LA
EZRTHRBEBERS -

49



50

EREXERAF

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHEE

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Zensun Enterprises Limited

Pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, the following transactions are
continuing connected transactions which are subject to the requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Continuing Connected Transactions with Zensun Development
Group

In 2015, a master services agreement (“Master Services Agreement”) has been
entered into between the Company and Henan Zensun Corporate Development
Group Limited* (A EfmtEEEEEERE LA A) (“Zensun Development”),
pursuant to which, Zensun Development has agreed to provide, or procure
members of Zensun Development, its subsidiaries and/or any other company in the
equity capital of which Zensun Development and/or any of its subsidiaries taken
together are directly or interested so as to exercise or control 30% or more voting
power at general meetings, or to control the composition of a majority of the board
of directors, and the subsidiaries of such company (the “Zensun Development
Group”) to provide construction and related ancillary services to the Group
according to the definitive agreement(s) signed between Zensun Development
Group and the Group from time to time. On 21 February 2017, the Company
and Zensun Development entered into a supplemental agreement (the “2017
Supplemental Agreement”) to, among other matters, extend the effective term of
the Master Services Agreement to 31 December 2019. On 11 October 2018, the
Company entered into a supplemental agreement with Zensun Development (2018
Supplemental Agreement”) to further amend the effective terms of the Master
Services Agreement as amended by the 2017 Supplemental Agreement to be
three years from 1 January 2018 and continue up to 31 December 2020.

On 21 October 2020, the Company entered into an agreement with Zensun
Development (the “2021 Master Services Agreement”) which commences from
1 January 2021 and continue up to and including 31 December 2023 and the
annual caps for the transactions contemplated under the 2021 Master Services
Agreement for each of the financial years ending 31 December 2021, 2022 and
2023 are RMB3,212 million, RMB2,555 million and RMB1,778 million, respectively.
The 2021 Master Service Agreement and the annual caps mentioned above were
approved by independent Shareholders in the extraordinary general meeting
held on 8 December 2020. For details of the terms of the 2021 Master Services
Agreement, please refer to the Company’s circular dated 18 November 2020.

As Zensun Development is owned as to 90%, 9% and 1% by Beijing Xiangcheng
Investment Co., Ltd.* (b ZREEHKIEEABRE A A (“Xiangcheng Investment”), Ms.
Zhang Huiqgi (“Ms. Zhang”) and Mr. Zhang, respectively. Xiangcheng Investment
is owned as to 98% by Ms. Zhang and Ms. Zhang is the daughter of Mr. Zhang
and Ms. Huang, an Executive Director and the Non-Executive Director of the
Company. Zensun Development is therefore a connected person of the Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the transactions constitute
continuing connected transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

During the Year, the annual cap for the financial year ended 31 December 2022 (the
“2022 Annual Cap”) approved for the continuing connected transactions between
the Group and Zensun Development Group under the 2021 Master Services
Agreement was RMB2,555 million and the actual transacted amounts were
approximately RMB1,601.4 million, which did not exceed the 2022 Annual Cap.

FEREXS

RiF EHRBE4AE - TIIRZFR/AX MRS
1AAB Z MERRZ FEMBER S -

HRIFRREEZHERERS

R20154F ARG ENE IR EREEEERET
AR EREEE )BT ERE W TERBHED
BUTITHEERCREXRELHAER  EWBEAR
k/SEMABNKE  HREERNBIEFERT
SETAWNB AR EZESEE D UWEERRARS
FATESRIE30% sk A E R FRIRME - ST HIE S B A
AEFEEZHNEMAR((ETHEREEDBEESD
BREBHASETRR 2 EXREARNEEEE
R MAEESERG o R2017F2A210 AR FEA
EEERII L —HEahE((2017F @R m®E]) - H
FERLERERBHE 2B XFEHE2019F12 A 31
H - R2018F 108118 - ARFRIEIEREERFIL—1H
HrmZ([2018FfmapzEl) - BEERLL2017F M/
FiHFEEE] 2 RS RF A= F H2018F1
A1HEEZ2020F12A31HAIL(BIEER) »

MR2020F10 A21 A AR RIS IEE BRI L — DK -
202151 A1 EE2023F12A318 (BEER)
(T2021FERBWHZH]) REBETRETZRZEE
20214F + 20224 202312 A1 H I MEE 2 F
ELRABAARE3212BE T - ARM255558
TTRAREA778EETT U LRI AN2021 4 £ R 1
EMFE FREAEARATR2020F12 A8H BITHR
HERIAS EHARTIB IR E - ARI2021F =
RIS B ER RMAA - F2HARR B A2020F
11188 2K °

MRERERS MBI RFRREFRQ T ([H MK
B REELE([RLZE ) RREEEFINO% 9%
N1%REzE - HHRERRL T ERI8RER MK/ NE
RARRRITERRELERIFNTESEHuangL £ 2
Z5R - Bt - RIFELEWRRE4AE - THERA/AR
BZBEAL - At - BB LETRAUE1AE - ZFER
SRR ZFHERERS -

RAREERN » REBIRE2021F IR % HE 1Erm 3
RETEHEZ FEBERT SHEE2022F12A31H 1
FHERE LR ([2022FE LR ) BARMK2555H8
L MEBRRZSENAEARE1,601.48 87T @ BE
HBL2022F FE LR -



Continuing Connected Transactions with Xingye Wulian Group
Master Property Engineering Framework Agreement

On 18 February 2020, the master property engineering framework agreement
(“Master Property Engineering Framework Agreement”) has been entered into
between the Company and Xingye Wulian Service Group Co. Ltd. (“Xingye Wulian”,
together with its subsidiaries, the “Xingye Wulian Group”), pursuant to which,
the Group appointed the Xingye Wulian Group as its service provider to provide
property engineering services to the Group during the period from the effective date
of the Master Property Engineering Framework Agreement up to and including 31
December 2022 and the annual caps for each of the three financial years ended/
ending 31 December 2020, 2021 and 2022 are RMB18.5 million, RMB26.5 million
and RMB34 million, respectively. Relevant members of the Xingye Wulian Group
may from time to time to enter into individual agreement(s) with members of the
Group in relation to the provision of property engineering services, subject to the
terms and conditions of Master Property Engineering Framework Agreement. For
detail of the terms of Master Property Engineering Framework Agreement, please
refer to the Company’s announcements dated 17 April 2020 and 23 April 2020.

On 20 October 2022, the Company entered into a master framework agreement
with Xingye Wulian in relation to the provision of the Property Engineering
Services by Xingye Wulian to the Group (the “2022 Master Property Engineering
Framework Agreement”) which commences from 1 January 2023 and continue
up to and including 31 December 2025 and the annual caps for the transactions
contemplated under the 2022 Master Property Engineering Framework Agreement
for each of the financial years ending 31 December 2023, 2024 and 2025 are
RMB26.6 million, RMB29.7 million and RMB32.1 million, respectively. The
2022 Master Property Engineering Framework Agreement and the annual caps
mentioned above were approved by independent shareholders of Xingye Wulian
in its extra-ordinary general meeting held on 15 December 2022. For details of the
terms of the 2022 Master Property Engineering Framework Agreement, please
refer to the Company’s announcement dated 20 October 2022.

During the Year, the annual cap approved for the continuing connected
transactions between the Group and Xingye Wulian Group under the Master
Property Engineering Framework Agreement was RMB34 million and the actual
transacted amount was approximately RMB24.6 million, which did not exceed the
above mentioned annual cap.

Master Property Management Framework Agreement

On 18 February 2020, the master property management framework agreement
(“Master Property Management Framework Agreement”) has been entered into
between the Company and Xingye Wulian, pursuant to which, the Group appointed
the Xingye Wulian Group as its service provider to provide property management
and value-added services to the Group during the period from the effective date
of the Master Property Management Framework Agreement up to and including
31 December 2022. On 28 August 2020, the Company further entered into a
supplemental agreement (“Supplemental Agreement”) with Xingye Wulian to amend
certain terms of the Master Property Management Framework Agreement to revise
the annual caps for each of the three financial years ending 31 December 2022.
The revised annual cap for each of the three financial years ended/ending 31
December 2020, 2021 and 2022 are RMB21 million, RMB66 million and RMB66
million, respectively. Relevant members of the Xingye Wulian Group may from time
to time to enter into individual agreement(s) with members of the Group in relation
to the provision of property management and value-added services, subject to the
terms and conditions of Master Property Management Framework Agreement. For
detail of the terms of Master Property Management Framework Agreement and
Supplemental Agreement, please refer to the Company’s announcements dated 17
April 2020, 23 April 2020 and 28 August 2020.
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On 20 October 2022, the Company entered into a master framework agreement
with Xingye Wulian in relation to the provision of the Property Engineering
Services by Xingye Wulian to the Group (the “2022 Master Property Management
Framework Agreement”) which commences from 1 January 2023 and continue
up to and including 31 December 2025 and the annual caps for the transactions
contemplated under the 2022 Master Property Management Framework
Agreement for each of the financial years ending 31 December 2023, 2024 and
2025 are RMB28.9 million, RMB31.6 million and RMB32.3 million, respectively. The
2022 Master Property Management Framework Agreement and the annual caps
mentioned above were approved by independent shareholders of Xingye Wulian
in its extra-ordinary general meeting held on 15 December 2022. For details of the
terms of the 2022 Master Property Management Framework Agreement, please
refer to the Company’s announcement dated 20 October 2022.

Zensun Enterprises Limited

During the Year, the revised annual cap approved for the continuing connected
transactions between the Group and Xingye Wulian Group under the Supplemental
Agreement was RMB66 million and the actual transacted amount was
approximately RMB21.3 million, which did not exceed the above mentioned annual
cap.

The entire issued share capital of Xingye Wulian is indirectly owned as to
approximately 56.59% by the Blossom Trust, which is controlled by Ms. Zhang
as the protector. Ms. Zhang is the daughter of Mr. Zhang, the Chairman, Chief
Executive Officer and executive Director of the Company and Ms. Huang, the
non-executive Director of the Company. As such, Xingye Wulian is a connected
person of the Company and the transactions contemplated under the Master
Property Engineering Framework Agreement and the Master Property Management
Framework Agreement as amended by the Supplemental Agreement, the 2022
Master Property Management Framework Agreement and the 2022 Master
Property Engineering Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions of
the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Each of the aforesaid continuing connected transactions have been reviewed by
the independent Non-Executive Directors of the Company. The independent Non-
Executive Directors confirmed that each of the aforesaid continuing connected
transactions of the Group for the Year have been entered into

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(i) on normal commercial terms; and
(iif) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them and on terms

that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Shareholders as a
whole.
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Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Company has engaged the
auditor of the Company to conduct certain procedures in respect of the continuing
connected transactions of the Group in accordance with the Hong Kong Standard
on Assurance Engagement 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagement Other Than
Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice
Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the
Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The auditor has also issued an unqualified letter containing the
findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions
disclosed by the Group in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules.
A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to the Stock
Exchange.

In accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagement 3000
(Revised) “Assurance Engagement Other than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information”, the auditor has also reported to the Board that for the
Year, nothing has come to their attention that in respect of: a) the continuing
connected transactions governed by the 2021 Master Services Agreement: (i)
have not received the approval of the Board; (i) are not, in all material respects, in
accordance with the pricing policies of the Group; (iii) have not been entered into,
in all material respects, in accordance with the relevant agreement governing such
transactions; and (iv) have exceeded the relevant annual cap as set for the year
ended 31 December 2022 by the Company in respect of the continuing connected
transactions; and b) the continuing connected transactions governed by the
Master Property Engineering Framework Agreement, Master Property Management
Framework Agreement as amended by the Supplemental Agreement: (i) have
not received the approval of the Board; (ii) are not, in all material respects, in
accordance with the pricing policies of the Group; (i) have not been entered into,
in all material respects, in accordance with the relevant agreement governing such
transactions; and (iv) have exceeded the relevant annual cap as set for the year
ended 31 December 2022 by the Company in respect of the continuing connected
transactions.

The Board confirms that the auditor of the Company has confirmed the matters set
out in Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

Zensun Enterprises Limited

As at 31 December 2022, according to the register of interest in Shares and
underlying Shares and short positions kept by the Company pursuant to Section
336 of Part XV of the SFO and so far as is known to or can be ascertained after
reasonable enquiries by the Directors, the persons (other than the Directors or chief
executive of the Company) who were directly or indirectly interested in 5% or more
in the Shares and underlying Shares of the Company are as follows:

FERR

R2022F 124318 ' IRIBARFERES & EEEH
EXVEPEIBBIETEZ RGO MABBERDESE AR E
ft URBEEEB AT EH A RS % AT
E o BEEKMEREARRQRRD REBRGKD5%3 A £
BREZ AL (BERAAREBITHRAERINAT

Long positions in the Shares of the Company REATRGZHAE
Approximate
percentage of
the issued share
Number of capital of the
Name of shareholder Nature of interests Shares held Company (%)
KRR DT E BT
BREREBE ERME FERBEE RAEABDL
Vistra Trust (Singapore) Trustee (Note) 1,377,520,893 71.99
Pte Limited EREA(HIEE)
Superior Glory Interest of controlled corporation (Note) 1,377,520,893 71.99
Enterprises Limited Ry E s (M)
Notable Reward Limited Interest of controlled corporation (Note) 1,377,520,893 71.99
AR (M)
Zensun Group Limited Interest of controlled corporation (Note) 1,377,520,893 71.99
EEEBEERAA Ry E s (M)
Joy Town Inc. Beneficial owner (Note) 1,377,520,893 71.99

mamEAANME)

Note:

These Shares are directly owned by Joy Town Inc., which are ultimately owned by a
discretionary trust established by Ms. Huang as settlor and protector and Vistra Trust
(Singapore) Pte Limited as trustee. Joy Town Inc. is wholly-owned by Zensun Group
Limited. Zensun Group Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Notable Reward Limited,
which in turn is wholly-owned by Superior Glory Enterprises Limited and the entire issued
share capital of Superior Glory Enterprises Limited became assets of the trust. Ms.
Huang is the sole director of Joy Town Inc. and Notable Reward Limited and Mr. Zhang is
the sole director of Zensun Group Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, no person other than the
Directors whose interests are set out in the above section headed “Directors’
and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in Securities”, had registered
an interest of 5% or more in the issued share capital of the Company, and short
positions in the Shares and underlying Shares that was required to be recorded in
the register of interest pursuant to Section 336 of Part XV of the SFO.

Bat
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DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN A COMPETING BUSINESS

As at 31 December 2022, none of the Directors was interested in any business,
which competed or was likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
Group’s businesses except that Mr. Zhang and Ms. Huang are individually
and collectively deemed interested in Zensun International Holdings Company
Limited and/or its subsidiaries and associated companies which are engaged in
construction, property development and related business in the PRC.

As the Board is independent of the boards of these companies, the Company has
therefore been) capable of carrying on its businesses independently of, and at
arm’s length from, the above businesses.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 28 August 2013, a new share option scheme (the “2013 Scheme”) was
adopted by the Company. The purpose of the 2013 Scheme is to motivate eligible
persons who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. The 2013
Scheme will remain in force for 10 years from that date, unless otherwise cancelled
or amended. Eligible persons of the 2013 Scheme include (i) a director or proposed
director (including an independent non-executive director) of any member of
the Group; (i) a direct or indirect shareholder of any member of the Group; (iii)
a supplier of goods or services to any member of the Group; (iv) a customer,
consultant, business or joint venture partner, franchisee, contractor, agent or
representative of any member of the Group; (v) a person or entity that provides
research, development or other technological support or any advisory, consultancy,
professional services to any member of the Group; and (vi) a landlord or tenant
(including a sub-tenant) of any member of the Group. Subject to the terms of the
2013 Scheme, the Board shall be entitled at any time during the life of the 2013
Scheme to offer the grant of any option to any eligible person as the Board may in
its absolute discretion select and the basis of eligibility shall be determined by the
Board from time to time.

Pursuant to the 2013 Scheme, the maximum number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted is such number of shares which, when aggregated with
shares subject to any other share option scheme(s), must not exceed 10% of the
issued share capital of the Company as at the date of the annual general meeting
approving the 2013 Scheme on 28 August 2013. The maximum number of shares
issuable under share options to each eligible person in the 2013 Scheme within
any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at
any time. Any further grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject to the
Shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial shareholder of
the Company, or to any of their respective associates, are subject to approval in
advance by the independent non-executive directors (excluding any independent
non-executive director who is the grantee of the options) of the Company. In
addition, any share options granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent
non-executive director of the Company, or to any of their respective associates,
in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any time and with
an aggregate value (based on the price of the Company’s shares at the date of
grant) in excess of HK$5,000,000, within any 12-month period, are subject to the
Shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.
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The amount payable upon the acceptance of an option is HK$1.00. The period
within which an option must be exercised shall be such period as the Board may
in its absolute discretion determine at the time of grant, save that such period shall
not be more than 10 years commencing on the date of grant of an option.

Zensun Enterprises Limited

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the Board, but may not
be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the Company’s shares as stated
in the daily quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date of offer of the
grant, which must be a trading day; (ii) the average closing price of the Company’s
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for the five trading
days immediately preceding the date of offer of the grant; and (iii) the nominal value
of the Company’s shares.

The total number of shares in respect of which options may be granted under the
2013 Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in
issue as at the date of the annual general meeting approving the 2013 Scheme
on 28 August 2013, without prior approval from the Shareholders. The number
of shares issued and to be issued in respect of which options granted and may
be granted to any individual in any one year is not permitted to exceed 1% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any point in time, without prior approval from
the Shareholders. Options vested immediately and may be exercised at any time
not exceeding a period of 5 years from the date on which the share options is
accepted.

During the Year, no share options under the 2013 Scheme were granted,
exercised, cancelled or lapsed. As at the end of the reporting period, the Company
has no outstanding share options under the 2013 Scheme.

As at 1 January 2022, 31 December 2022 and the date of this report, the total
number of shares available for issue under the 2013 Scheme is 35,006,863
shares, representing 1.8% of the share capital of the Company in issue at the date
of this report.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Share Option Scheme”, no equity-linked
agreement was entered into during the Year or subsisted at the end of the Year.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

Details of the retirement benefit schemes for the employees of the Group are
disclosed in the section headed “Other employee benefits — Retirement benefit
scheme and pension scheme” set out in note 2.4 to the consolidated financial
statements.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Detailed information on the Company’s corporate governance practices is set out
in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 60 to 73.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (“Dividend Policy”). The Company
considers stable and sustainable returns to the Shareholders to be its goal.
According to the Dividend Policy, in deciding whether to propose a dividend and in
determining the dividend amount, the Board shall take into account, inter alia:

(i) the general financial condition of the Group;

(if) the Group’s actual and future operations and liquidity position;

(iif) the Group’s expected working capital requirements and future expansion
plans;

(iv) the Group’s debt to equity ratios and the debt level;

(v) the retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Company and each
of the members of the Group;

(vi) the Shareholders’ and the investors’ expectation and industry’s norm;
(vii) the general market conditions; and
(viii)  any other factors that the Board deems appropriate.

The declaration and payment of dividend by the Company is also subject to
any restrictions under the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of
Hong Kong) and the Articles of Association and any other applicable laws and
regulations.

The Board will continually review the Dividend Policy and reserves the right in its
sole and absolute discretion to update, amend, modify and/or cancel the Dividend
Policy at any time.

The Dividend Policy shall in no way constitute a legally binding commitment by
the Group in respect of its future dividend and/or in no way obligate the Group to
declare a dividend at any time or from time to time.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the Board on the
basis of their merit, qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the Board after recommendation
from the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the time commitment and
responsibilities of the directors, the Company’s operating results, individual
performance and comparable market statistics.

PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this annual report, the
Company has maintained the prescribed public float as required under the Listing
Rules, based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Zensun Enterprises Limited

The Articles of Association provides that Director shall be entitled to be indemnified
out of the assets of the Company against all losses or liabilities incurred or
sustained by him as a Director. The Company has arranged appropriate Directors’
and officers’ liability insurance coverage for the Directors and officers of the Group
throughout the year.

MATERIAL LITIGATION AND ARBITRATION

During the Year, the Company was not involved in any litigation, arbitration or
claims of material importance and there was no litigation or claim of material
importance which was known to the Directors to be pending or threatened by or
against the Company.

CHANGE IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the change in the information of
the Directors subsequent to the publication of the interim report of the Company
for the six months ended 30 June 2022 is set out below:

With effect from 6 February 2023, Dr Li Huiqun is appointed as an independent
non-executive Director of Nine Dragons Paper (Holdings) Limited, whose shares
are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 2689).

With effect from 1 March 2023, Mr. Liu Da is appointed as an independent non-
executive director of Kimou Environmental Holding Limited, whose shares are listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 6805).

Save as disclosed above, there was no other matters that needs to be disclosed
pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED SECURITIES

During the Year, the Company repurchased and cancelled part of the US$200
million 12.5% senior notes due 2022 (“2022 Notes”) with an aggregated principal
amount of US$163.6 million from the open market. The Company has repaid the
2022 Notes in full at their outstanding amount of US$36.4 million together with
interest accrued at the maturity date on 13 September 2022.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the
Year.

IMPORTANT EVENTS SINCE THE YEAR END

Details of the important events since the year end are set out in note 45 to the
consolidated financial statements.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The 2023 AGM will be held on Wednesday, 7 June 2023 and the notice of the
2023 AGM will be published and despatched in the manner as required by the
Listing Rules and the Articles of Association in due course.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For the purpose of determining the Shareholders who are entitled to attend and
vote at the 2023 AGM expected to be held on Wednesday, 7 June 2023, the
register of members of the Company expected to be closed on Thursday, 1 June
2023 to Wednesday, 7 June 2023, both days inclusive. In order to qualify for
attending and voting at the 2023 AGM, all transfer documents should be lodged
for registration with the Company’s Share Registrar, Tricor Friendly Limited at 17/F,
Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong expected not later than
4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 31 May 2023.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by Emst & Young, who
retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at the 2023 AGM.

On behalf of the Board
ZHANG JINGGUO
Chairman, Executive Director

and Chief Executive Officer

30 March 2023
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The Company is committed to maintain a high standard of corporate governance,
formulate good corporate governance practice to improve accountability and
transparency in operations, and strengthen the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group from time to time so as to cope with the expectations
of the Shareholders.

Zensun Enterprises Limited

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has applied the principles and complied with all code provisions
(“Code Provision(s)”) and, where applicable, the recommended best practices of
the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules (“‘CG
Code”) throughout the Year, save for the deviations which are explained below.

Pursuant to Code Provision C.5.1 of the CG Code, Board meetings should be
held at least four times a year at approximately quarterly internals. Although only
two regular Board meetings were held during the Year, the Board considered
that sufficient meetings had been held as business operations were under the
management and the supervision of the executive Directors. In addition, senior
management of the Group has provided to the Directors the information in respect
of the Group’s business development and activities from time to time and, when
required, ad hoc Board meetings were held to discuss matters.

Pursuant to Code Provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman and chief
executive of the Company should be segregated. The Company is of the view that
it is in the best interest of the Company that Mr. Zhang with his profound expertise
in the property business, shall continue in his dual capacity as chairman and chief
executive officer. The Board believes that the balance of power and authority for
the present arrangement will not be impaired and is adequately ensured by the
current Board composition and structure taking into account the background and
experience of the Directors.

CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS AND
RELEVANT EMPLOYEES

The Company has adopted the model code as set out in Appendix 10 (“Model
Code”) to the Listing Rules as the code of conduct for securities transactions by
the Directors. The Company has made specific enquiries with all Directors and
each of them confirmed that they have compiled with the required standards set
out in the Model Code during the Year and up to the date of this annual report.

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities transactions by
the relevant employees of the Group who are considered likely to be in possession
of unpublished inside information of the Company or its securities on no less
exacting terms than the Model Code in relation to their dealings in the securities
of the Company pursuant to Code Provision C.1.3 of the CG Code. To the best
knowledge and belief of the Directors, all relevant employees have complied with
the required standard of such code.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Overall Accountability

The Board is accountable to the Shareholders and in discharging its corporate
accountability, every Director is required to pursue excellence in the interests of its
Shareholders and fulfil his fiduciary duties by applying the required level of skills,
care and diligence to a standard in accordance with the statutory requirements.
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Board Responsibilities and Delegation

The Board is responsible for formulating group policies and strategic business
directions, and monitoring business performances through implementation
of adequate risk management and internal control systems. The executive
Directors are delegated with the authorities and responsibilities for the day-to-day
management of the Group, operational and business decisions within the control
and delegation framework of the Group. The Non-Executive Directors (including
independent Non-Executive Directors) contribute valuable views, professional
opinions and proposals for the Board’s deliberation and decisions.

The duties of the Board in respect of the corporate governance functions include:

(i) developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance;
(i) reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous professional

development of Directors and senior management;

(i) reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(iv) developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to employees and Directors; and

(v) reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in
the Corporate Governance Report.

The Board has delegated some of its functions to the board committees, details of
which are set out below.

The Board reserves for its decisions all major matters of the Company, including
appointment of new Directors, approval of financial statements, dividend policy,
significant accounting policies, material contracts, significant appointments such as
company secretary and external auditors, terms of reference of board committees,
major corporate policies such as code of conduct, and other significant financial
and operational matters.

The Board is also responsible for maintaining and reviewing the effectiveness of
the risk management and internal control systems of the Group. It has carried out
review of the existing implemented systems, including control measures of financial
and operational compliance of the Group.

The Directors having material interest in the matter shall abstain from voting at such
Board meeting and the independent Non-Executive Directors with no conflict of
interest shall attend at such meeting to deal with the matters. All Directors ensure
that they can give sufficient attention to discharge their responsibilities to the affairs
of the Company and the Directors have disclosed to the Company the identity and
nature of offices held in any public organisation and other significant commitments
on an annual basis.

To the best knowledge of the Company, apart from the family relationship between
Mr. Zhang and Ms. Huang, there is no financial, business, family or other material
/ relevant relationship among our Directors. All of them are free to exercise their
independent judgments.

During the Year, regular Board meetings of the Company were held two times
to review, consider and approve, among others, annual and interim results and
to review the business operations, corporate governance and the effectiveness
of internal control systems and risk management of the Group. At least 14 days’
notice for each regular meeting is given to all Directors. All such minutes are kept
by the company secretary of the Company and are open for inspection at any
reasonable time on reasonable notice by any Director. Apart from the regular Board
meetings, the Chairman also met with the independent Non-Executive Directors
without the presence of Executive Directors during the Year.

Annual Report 2022 —F - " HFFR

ExecEHARERE
EXeaAtIERBBRRARRBEEB SR WEB
BETRENEREENNMEERREREBRA -
HITEFERTRASE 2 ERIREERANEAE
EETARERERMEFEEREREBARZENIRE
FFRTES(BRBUFATER)EREER
fif BERERNEZ HEFEEENREK -

EEehECEERREIEZEERENTRE

i) HE RS ARBEEE G ZBRELER

iy WBAREEREERSREBEZEILFES
R

(i) WA RERARRETERIERREZBER
RER

il

\

(iv)  HE - e REETATRIRESTEARNE
LREEZFM(MA) &

V) BAARFEETELEELRTAIEZERE
AIREREARETIHE -

EFeCRESOBETESESZES  FBEART
3o
ESeMRBYUADNAEREHEZRTE - BREEEN

BEE HAEVBEK REERE BASHEE &
REH  MEERRAWE RIMNEZBENEERNERT
EEXEeZ 8 BERE  TERFEENTATH
% UREMEAZHBREESTHFE -

EEeRB TR AENAKREZAREERA
MEEAGHOMEE  YHRBETZRARDETEMN
BF - EPEREHAKREZYBREEARENE
T -

HEFEANGEMNEE  HEEFRANEGHESS L
MERE MRENAGRNBIIFNITESAL
FZeEAREAHEEE 2REFRERSALT
RHERANBTHHARRER2RE  EFEFM
ARBARENEAXHABAEERCZ S RITE
VAR EL At B R -

BARRIFTRI - BROR ST A KHuangZ £ 2 B AV SR bk
BERN  SEEZRUEEMSSE - X5 KEME
MERIERERIR - (RSB 8B R EH B HIE -

RAFER  RRAREEGRITRAEG - AEH -
EREME(RPEE)FERTHES - URBRFIA
SEZEBENE - BEEIR R AEREERIE Z KA
LEBRER - FRETHIEH - 2REFHENRED
THOHAEEEA - MAEAESHLEERAREZ
AEMERE  AIHEMESEZHSEBNRRNME
MARKHEEH KRERBTEEGTIN TRV
AEEATEENTERRE TEBIIFNTEES
M| e

61



62

EREXERAF

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERBRE

Liability Insurance for the Directors

The Company has arranged for appropriate liability insurance to indemnify its
Directors against liabilities arising out of legal action on corporate activities. Such
insurance coverage is reviewed on an annual basis.

Zensun Enterprises Limited

Composition of the Board

As at 31 December 2022, the Board comprised six Directors including two
Executive Directors, one Non-Executive Director (“NED”) and three independent
Non-Executive Directors (“INEDs”). The biographical details of the Directors and the
senior management of the Group are set out on pages 35 to 39.

Mr. Zhang is the Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer of the
Company. He is primarily responsible for leadership and effective functioning of
the Board, ensuring key issues are promptly addressed by the Board, as well as
providing strategic direction of the Group, take primary responsibility for ensuring
good corporate governance practices with necessary procedures established and
also together with other executive Directors are responsible for the Group’s daily
operations and the effective implementation of corporate strategy and policies.

Executive Directors
As at 31 December 2022, there were two Executive Directors including Mr. Zhang
and Mr. Zhang Guogiang. Mr. Zhang is the spouse of Ms. Huang.

Non-Executive Director
As at 31 December 2022 there was one NED, Ms. Huang. Ms. Huang is the
spouse of Mr. Zhang.

Independent Non-Executive Directors and their Independence
As at 31 December 2022, there were three INEDs including Mr. Liu Da, Mr. Ma
Yuntao and Dr. Li Huiqun.

The Company has appointed a sufficient number of INEDs in accordance with
Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10A of the Listing Rules. With Dr. Li Huiqun and Mr. Liu
Da’s working experience and their academic background in economics, finance
and accounting, the Company considers that they are qualified persons with
appropriate professional knowledge in accounting and finance as required by Rule
3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

The Company has already received annual confirmation letters of independence
from all the INEDs and each of them have declared fulfilment of all the guidelines
for assessing independence in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
Accordingly, the Board considers that all INEDs are independent as defined in the
Listing Rules.

All the Directors, including the NED and INEDs, have entered into service
agreements with the Company for a term of three years and under which all
Directors must retire by rotation at least once every three years, and no Director
shall hold office for a continuous period in excess of three years, or past the
third annual general meeting, following the Director’s appointment or re-election,
whichever is longer, without submitting himself/herself for re-election at the annual
general meeting.

In compliance with Code Provision B.1.2 of the CG Code, an updated list of the
Directors identifying their role and function are available on the websites of the Company
(www.zensunenterprises.com) and the Stock Exchange (www.hkex.com.hk). The
Company will review the composition of the Board from time to time to ensure that the
Board possesses the appropriate and necessary expertise, skill and experience to meet
the needs of the Group’s business and to enhance the shareholders’ value.
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DIRECTORS’ TRAINING AND CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

All Directors are aware of their responsibilities to the Shareholders and have
exercised their duties with care, skill and diligence, in pursuit of the development of
the Group. Every newly appointed Director shall receive a formal, comprehensive
and tailored induction to ensure that he or she has a proper understanding of the
business and operations of the Group and that he or she is fully aware of his or her
duties and responsibilities as a director under applicable statutory and regulatory
rules and requirements.

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional development
so as to develop and refresh directors’ knowledge and skills and to ensure that
their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.

The Company regularly circulates training materials or briefings to all Directors
in respect of the updates on, among other things, the Listing Rules, the SFO
or guidelines, the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and relevant financial or
accounting standards which may be of the interest to Directors. During the Year,
all Directors have complied with the Code Provisions in relation to continuous
professional development, apart from reading materials relevant to the Company’s
business, director’s duties and responsibilities. The Company updates Directors
constantly on the latest developments regarding the Group’s business and other
applicable regulatory requirements, to ensure compliance and enhance their
awareness of good corporate governance practices. All Directors have provided to
the Company with their training records on a regular basis, and such records have
been maintained by the Company for accurate and comprehensive record keeping.
According to the training records maintained by the Company, the trainings
received by each of the Directors during the Year is summarised as follows:

Name of Directors

EEHR
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Type of trainings
EHER

Executive Directors

HITES

Mr. Zhang Jingguo Aand B

RAE L& AKB

Mr. Zhang Guogiang Aand B

SR 5R 5 A AKB

Non-executive Director

FHTES

Ms. Huang Yanping Aand B

Huang YanpingZ & AKB

Independent Non-executive Directors

BUKHTES

Mr. Liu Da Aand B

Ell=3iea AKB

Mr. Ma Yuntao Aand B

BERKLE AKB

Dr. Li Huiqun Aand B

TEEE L AKB

A attending seminars/webinars/conferences/forum (including anti-bribery and ~ A: HEMS g Bafae g wE(REREN
corruption training) 25559

B: reading newspapers, journals and updates relating to the economy, general  B: BB R A BLARE

business, real estate, corporate governance and director’s duties and
responsibilities.

EREZHE  HTIREHER -
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Board Committees

The Board has established three Board committees including the audit committee
(the “Audit Committee”), the remuneration committee (the “Remuneration
Committee”) and the nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”) to
assume responsibilities for and to oversee particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs with respective terms of reference. Details of the Board committees are
discussed below.

Zensun Enterprises Limited

All Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge their
duties and are empowered to obtain independent’ professional advice at the
Company’s expense in appropriate circumstances.

Attendance of Directors at various meetings
During the Year, details of the Directors’ attendance in the following meetings are
set out below:

ExEzZ8e
BEEgCRY-AEZS X8 eREERZER (&
“EZB®]) FMZEe((HFMEES ) RREEEE
2([REZEE]) REARERER FHEAEAN
ARAEBHEEEB 2 BE UM ETEE -EF
BLREEFBENT XA

MEEZESZRSCERHARER  UWETHEZR
ENRE  ARBAESEMNBATHAABIEERE
R BRABARRAE -

]

¢l

EENgEEEHER
RAFERN  EERATERZLFERFBEHINWT

Number of meetings attended/Number of meetings held

HEERRE BITEHRE

Annual

Audit Remuneration Nomination General
Directors Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting
B Bxg ENELES FHEzES REZEE® BREEFKE
Executive Directors
HITES
Mr. Zhang Jingguo 2/2 N/A 1/1 11 11
SRARE S TiEm
Mr. Zhang Guogiang 2/2 N/A N/A N/A 11
REE A TERA A A
NED
FHTES
Ms. Huang Yanping 2/2 N/A N/A N/A 1/1
Huang YanpingZZ & i A AN N3
INEDs
BYFYITES
Mr. Liu Da 2/2 2/2 N/A 11 11
2ExE ANE A
Mr. Ma Yuntao 2/2 2/2 1/1 N/A 11
HiER AL A
Dr. Li Huiqun 2/2 2/2 11 11 11

FEREL




AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee is primarily responsible for reviewing and monitoring the
financial reporting, risk management and internal control systems of the Company,
including reassessment of the financial and accounting policies, review of interim
reports, annual reports and financial information, etc. In addition, the Audit
Committee is responsible for making recommendations to the Board, to be put
to its Shareholders for approval at the annual general meeting (*“AGM”), in relation
to the appointment, re-appointment and removal of external auditor; review and
supervision of the external auditor in respect of its independence and objectivity,
the effectiveness of the audit procedures; formulation of policies on the provision
of non-audit services by the external auditor; handling any issues related to the
resignation or the removal of such auditor and the communication with the external
auditor on auditing matters.

As at 31 December 2022, the Audit Committee consisted of three members,
namely, Mr. Liu Da, Mr. Ma Yuntao and Dr. Li Huiqun who are all INEDs. Mr. Liu
Da is the chairman of the Audit Committee. The most up-to-date version of the
written terms of reference of the Audit Committee is available on the websites of
the Company and the Stock Exchange.

During the Year, two Audit Committee meetings were convened. The Audit
Committee had performed the followings tasks, among others:

(i) reviewed the annual results for the year ended 31 December 2021 and
interim results for the six months ended 30 June 2022;

(if) reviewed the appropriateness and effectiveness of risk management and
internal control systems and internal audit function;

(iii) discussed with the auditor of the Company and reviewed their audit
findings;

(iv) reviewed the auditor’s remuneration;

(v) reviewed all non-audit services provided by the auditors to determine the
provision of such services would affect the independence of the auditors (if
any); and

(vi) performed the corporate governance functions and reviewed the corporate

governance policies and practices.

After due and careful consideration with all necessary financial information, and
reports from management and the external auditors, the Audit Committee noted
that no suspected fraud or irregularities, significant internal control deficiencies, or
suspected infringement of laws, rules, or regulations had been found in respect
of the Group, and concluded at the meeting held on 30 March 2023 that the risk
management and internal control systems were adequate and effective.

On 30 March 2023, the Audit Committee meeting was convened to review the
Group’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2022, including the accounting principles and practices, in conjunction with the
Company’s external auditor. The Audit Committee endorsed the accounting
treatment adopted by the Company, and the Audit Committee had to the best of
its ability assured itself that the disclosure of the financial information in this annual
report has complied with the applicable accounting standards and the Listing
Rules and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. The Audit Committee therefore
resolved to recommend for the Board’s approval the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2022.
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The Audit Committee also recommended to the Board the re-appointment of Emst
& Young as the auditor of the Company and that the relevant resolution shall be
put forth for it Shareholders’ consideration and approval at the 2023 AGM.

Zensun Enterprises Limited

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee is mainly responsible for making recommendations
on and approving the remuneration policy and structure and packages of the
Directors and senior management to the Board. The Remuneration Committee
is also responsible for establishing transparent procedures for developing such
remuneration policy and structure to ensure that no Director or any of his associates
will participate in deciding his own remuneration, which remuneration will be
determined by reference to the performance of the individual and the Company
as well as the prevailing market conditions. The human resources department is
responsible for collection and administration of the human resources data for the
Remuneration Committee’s consideration.

As at 31 December 2022, the Remuneration Committee consisted of three
members, namely, Mr. Zhang Jingguo, Dr. Li Huigun and Mr. Ma Yuntao. Dr. Li
Huigun and Mr. Ma Yuntao are INEDs while Mr. Zhang Jingguo is an Executive
Director. Mr. Ma Yuntao is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee. The
most up-to-date version of the written terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee is available on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

During the Year, one Remuneration Committee meeting was held. The
Remuneration Committee had reviewed and approved the remuneration of
Executive Directors, NED and INEDs.

Pursuant to the extension of Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules which comes into
effect on 1 January 2023, the terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee
were amended and approved by the Board in December 2022.

Details of the Directors’ remuneration are set out in note 9 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE AND BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Nomination Committee is mainly responsible for reviewing the structure,
size, diversity and composition of the Board regularly and make any changes
to complement the Company’s corporate strategy, including making
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board that assist
complementation of the Company’s corporate policy.

As at 31 December 2022, the Nomination Committee consisted of three members,
namely, Mr. Zhang Jingguo, Dr. Li Huiqun and Mr. Liu Da. Mr. Zhang Jingguo is
an executive Director while Dr. Li Huiqun and Mr. Liu Da are INEDs. Dr. Li Huigqun
is the chairman of the Nomination Committee. The most up-to-date version of
the written terms of reference of the Nomination Committee is available on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The Company has adopted a Director nomination policy (the “Director Nomination
Policy”) for the Nomination Committee to identify and evaluate a suitable candidate
for nomination to (i) the Board for appointment; or (i) the Shareholders for election,
as Directors, at general meetings.

The Director Nomination Policy sets out a number of factors in making nomination,
including but not limited to the following:

o Skills, experience and professional expertise which are relevant to the
operations of the Group;

o Diversity in all aspects as set out in the Board Diversity Policy;

o Commitment in respect of sufficient time and participation to discharge
duties as a member of the Board and/or Board Committee(s);

° Character, experience and integrity, and is able to demonstrate a standard
of competence commensurate with the relevant position as a Director; and

o Requirements of independence of the proposed independent non-executive
Directors in accordance with the Listing Rules.

The Nomination Committee will review the Director Nomination Policy, as
appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness.

During the Year, one Nomination Committee meeting was held. The Board had
reviewed the current structure and composition of the Board and recommended
Mr. Zhang Guogiang and Mr. Liu Da to retire, and being eligible, offered themselves
for re-election in the AGM held on 7 June 2022 pursuant to Articles 78 and 79 of
the Articles of Association and Code Provision B.2.2 of the CG Code.
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Under Article 78 of the Articles of Association, at each AGM, one-quarter of the
Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not a multiple of four, the number
nearest to one-fourth) shall retire from office by rotation. According to Article 83
of the Articles of Association, any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual
vacancy or by way of addition to their number shall hold office only until the next
following AGM, and shall then be eligible for re-appointment. Every Director shall
be subject to retirement at least once every three years by rotation or offers himself
for re-election.

Zensun Enterprises Limited

The Company notes increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential element
in supporting the attainment of its strategic objectives, sustainable and balanced
development. The Company adopted a diversity policy (“Diversity Policy”) which sets out
the approach to diversify the Board from a number of aspects, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and education background, ethnicity, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service. The Nomination Committee reviews and assesses
Board composition on behalf of the Board and will recommend the appointment of new
Director, when necessary, pursuant to the Diversity Policy.

In designing the Board’s composition, the Board diversity has been considered based
on the Diversity Policy. The Nomination Committee will also consider factors based on
the Company’s business model, specific needs and meritocracy from time to time in
determining the optimum composition of the Board.

During the Year, the Board comprises six Directors, including two Executive Directors, one
NED and three INEDs, and as at 31 December 2022, out of the six directors, there are
four male directors and two female directors, thereby promoting critical review and control
of the management process. The Board is also characterised by significant diversity,
whether considered in terms of professional experience, skill and knowledge. Having
reviewed the Diversity Policy and the Board’s composition, the Nomination Committee is
satisfied that the requirements set out in the Diversity Policy had been met.

The Nomination Committee will review the Diversity Policy, on an annual basis to ensure
its effectiveness.

REMUNERATION OF AUDITORS

For the year ended 31 December 2022, remuneration paid or payable to
the Company’s auditors, Ernst & Young for the Group’s audit services was
RMB3,131,000. No non-audit services was provided by the auditors to the Group
for the Year.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial Statements and Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparation of the consolidated
financial statements of the Group that give a true and fair view in accordance with
applicable accounting standards and Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The Directors also acknowledge their responsibilities to ensure that the
announcements in relation to the consolidated financial statements on annual and
interim results of the Group are published in a timely manner, within three months
and two months respectively of the year end and the half-year period end.

The reporting responsibility of the external auditor of the Company on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group are set out in “Independent
Auditor’s Report” on pages 74 to 81.
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Going Concern

Save as disclosed under the heading “Material uncertainty related to going
concern” in the Independent Auditor’s Report and in note 2.1 to the consolidated
financial statements, the Directors confirm that, to the best of their knowledge and
having made appropriate enquiries, are not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern. The Directors are of the view that the Group
has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable
future and that, for this reason, it is appropriate for the Group to adopt the going
concern basis in preparing the consolidated financial statements.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board recognises its overall responsibilities for maintaining sound and
effective risk management and internal control systems including a review on their
effectiveness for achieving long-term sustainable development of the Group. The
risk management and internal control systems, under a defined management
structure with limits of authority, are designed for the Group to identify and
manage the significant risks to pursue its business objectives, safeguard its assets
against unauthorised use or disposition, enhance effectiveness and efficiency of
its operations, ensure the maintenance of proper accounting records for reliable
financial reporting, and ensure compliance with relevant laws and regulations.
Such systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate risks of failure in the
achievement of the Group’s business objectives and can only provide reasonable,
but not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board is responsible for the determination of the Group’s risk profile within its
acceptable tolerance levels in business operation, oversight of management in the
design, implementation and monitoring of overall risk management process from
risk identification, risk assessment, establishment of appropriate risk responses and
regular risk evaluation and monitoring, so as to ensure the systems are effectively
established and maintained.

The risk management process is structured from management of the Group from
respective business functions at execution level to the Board, together assisted
by the Audit Committee in decision-making and monitoring level. Management of
the Group identifies, assesses and prioritises the key existing and potential risks
through a detailed assessment process and determines the appropriate mitigation
strategies and control measures in response to the identified risks. Ongoing
evaluation and monitoring of the identified risks, respective measures, and results
are carried out and reported to the Board regularly. The Board at decision-making
level, assisted by the Audit Committee, reviews the risk appetite, risk management
process and strategies and also the internal control systems and provide
recommendations for any improvement on the systems on an ongoing basis to
ensure risk management effectiveness.

The establishment of the internal audit & compliance department promote the
importance and construction of the compliance into the corporate culture, monitor
the effectiveness of the existing internal controls system of the Group, and provide
reasonable assurance to the Board for oversight of the internal control system
operated by the management.
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The internal audit & compliance department conducts regular interal audit review
across principal divisions of the Group, and, on a regular basis reports their finding
results with improvements directly to the Audit Committee to ensure the internal
controls are in place and adopted properly and effectively as intended. The scope
of internal audit review included principal divisions from finance department, risk
management department, treasury department, purchasing department and
sales department, etc. to ensure material controls have been covered during
the internal audit review process. Any matter or areas of improvement shall be
communicated to the divisional management and had them followed up on a timely
basis. Upon review of the Annual Risk Management and Internal Control System
Report conducted by the internal audit & compliance department, the Audit
Committee and the Board reviews and evaluate the effectiveness of the Group's
risk management and internal control system, at least annually on a regular basis.

Zensun Enterprises Limited

The Board's annual review in respect of the year ended 31 December 2022 has
considered, among other things, (i) the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and budget of the Group’s accounting,
internal audit and financial reporting functions; (i) the scope and quality of the
management’s ongoing monitoring of risks and of the internal control systems
(including the work of internal audit function); (iii) the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems (including the extent and frequency of
monitoring results to the Board or the Audit Committee); and (iv) the effectiveness of
the Company's processes for financial reporting and the Listing Rules compliance.
The Board and the Audit Committee are of the view there are no material internal
control defects identified by the internal audit & compliance department during
the course of internal audit review. With the discussion between management, the
internal audit & compliance department and the Audit Committee, the Board (with
the concurrence of the Audit Committee) considered that the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group are effective and adequate. The review of the
risk management and internal control systems of the Group is an ongoing process
and the Board maintains a continuing commitment to strengthening the Group’s
internal control environment and processes.

DISCLOSURE OF INSIDE INFORMATION

The Group acknowledges its responsibilities under the SFO and the Listing
Rules and the overriding principle that Inside Information should be announced
immediately when it is the subject of a decision. The procedures and internal
controls for the handling and dissemination of Inside Information are as follows:

. the Group conducts its affairs with close regard to the disclosure
requirement under the Listing Rules as well as the “Guidelines on Disclosure
of Inside Information” published by the Securities and Futures Commission
of Hong Kong in June 2012;

° the Group has formulated inside information policies and disclosed its
policies on fair disclosure by pursuing broad, non-exclusive distribution
of information to the public through channels such as financial reporting,
public announcements and its website;

° the Group has strictly prohibited unauthorised use of confidential or Inside
Information; and

o the Group regularly reminds the directors and employees about due
compliance with all polices regarding the Inside Information, as well as
keeps them appraised of the latest regulatory updates.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary is responsible for facilitating the Board process, as well
as communication among board members. Mr. Yuen Ping Man, the Company
Secretary is a full time employee of the Company. He has confirmed that he has
attended not less than 15 hours of relevant professional training during the Year in
compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules. His biography is set out on page 39
of this annual report in the section of “Board of Directors and Senior Management”.

SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTOR RELATIONS

Communication Policy

The Board considers that having active communications with its Shareholders
and investors is important and this will enhance transparency and clarity in
public disclosures by the Company. Any significant events of the Group fall to be
disclosed will be published in a timely, accurate and complete manner through
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange, so as to safeguard its
Shareholders’ rights of information and participation. The Board considers that the
annual general meeting is an important opportunity for direct communication with
its Shareholders. The notice of the annual general meeting together with relevant
documents will be sent out to its Shareholders at least 21 clear days prior to the
date on which the annual general meeting will be held. The notice contains details
on the procedures for voting by poll as well as other relevant information related to
the proposed resolutions.

The Board considers that the implementation and effectiveness of the
Shareholders’ Communication Policy are affirmed and reflected by the active
participation of Directors and Shareholders to the Company’s general meetings
and other corporate events.

Annual General Meeting

The annual general meetings of the Company provide opportunity for Shareholders
to communicate directly with the Directors. The Chairman of the Company and the
chairmen of the Board Committees of the Company will attend the annual general
meetings to answer Shareholders’ questions. The external auditor will also attend
the annual general meetings to answer questions about the conduct of the audit,
the preparation and content of the auditor’s report, the accounting policies and
auditor independence.

Shareholders’ Rights

(1) Procedures for Shareholders to convene an extraordinary
general meeting (“EGM”)
Shareholders may request the Directors to convene an EGM of the
company. The Directors are required to call an EGM if the Company has
received requests to do so from Shareholders representing at least 5% of
the total voting rights of all the Shareholders having a right to vote at general
meetings. Such request must state the general nature of the business to
be dealt with at the EGM and may include the text of a resolution that may
properly be moved and is intended to be moved at the EGM. The request
may be sent to the Company in hard copy form or in electronic form and
must be authenticated by the shareholder(s) making it.

The Directors are required to call an EGM within 21 days after the date on
which the Directors become subject to the requirement. The EGM called
must be held on a date not more than 28 days after the date of the notice
convening the meeting.

If the Directors do not call an EGM, the Shareholders who requested the
meeting, or any of them representing more than one half of the total voting
rights of all of them, may themselves call the EGM. The EGM must be called
for a date not more than 3 months after the date on which the Directors
become subject to the requirement to call the EGM.
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(3)

BERRE

Procedures for putting forward proposals at Shareholders’
meeting

Eligible Shareholders (as defined below) may submit a written request to
make proposals or move a resolution at the annual general meeting (the
“Request”). “Eligible Shareholder(s)” means:

(i) Shareholders representing at least 2.5% of the total voting rights of
all the Shareholders who have a right to vote on the resolution at the
annual general meeting to which the requests relate; or

(ii) at least 50 Shareholders who have a right to vote on the resolution
at the annual general meeting to which the requests relate.

The Request may be sent to the Company (a) in hard copy form or in
electronic form; (b) must identify the resolution of which notice is to be
given; (c) must be authenticated by the shareholder(s) making it; and (d)
must be received by the Company not later than (i) 6 weeks before the
annual general meeting to which the requests relate; or (i) if later, the time
at which notice is given of that meeting.

The Company must then send a copy of the resolution at the Company’s
own expense to each shareholder entitled to receive notice of the annual
general meeting (a) in the same manner as the notice of the meeting; and
(b) at the same time as, or as soon as reasonably practicable after, it gives
notice of the meeting.

An Eligible Shareholder may request the Company to circulate, to the
Shareholders entitled to receive notice of a general meeting, a statement
of not more than 1,000 words with respect to (a) a matter mentioned in a
proposed resolution to be dealt with at that meeting; or (b) other business
to be dealt with at that meeting (the “Statement”).

The expenses of the Company in circulating the Statement need not be paid
by the Eligible Shareholders who requested the circulation of the statement
if (@) the meeting to which the requests relate is an annual general meeting
of the Company; and (b) requests sufficient to require the Company to
circulate the statement are received in time to enable the company to send
a copy of the statement at the same time as it gives notice of the meeting.
Otherwise, (a) the expenses of the Company in circulating the Statement
must be paid by the Eligible Shareholders who requested the circulation of
the Statement unless the Company resolves otherwise; and (b) unless the
Company has previously so resolved, it is not bound to comply with the
circulation of the Statement unless there is deposited with or tendered to
it, not later than 7 days before the meeting, a sum reasonably sufficient to
meet its expenses in doing so.

Shareholders’ enquiries to the Board

A shareholder may send an enquiry to the Board at the registered office
of the Company at 24th Floor, Wyndham Place, 40-44 WWyndham Street,
Central, Hong Kong for the attention of the Board in written form, which
shall state the nature of the enquiry and the reason for making the enquiry.
In addition, Shareholders can contact Tricor Friendly Limited, the share
registrar of the Company, for any questions about their shareholdings.
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There was no change in the Articles of Association of the Company during the
Year. A copy of the latest version is available on the website of the Stock Exchange
and the Company’s website.

DISCLAIMER

The contents of the section headed “Shareholders’ Rights” are for reference and
disclosure compliance purposes only. The information does not represent and
should not be regarded as legal or other professional advice from the Company to
the Shareholders. Shareholders should seek their own independent legal or other
professional advice as to their rights as Shareholders. The Company disclaims all
liabilities and losses incurred by the Shareholders in reliance on any contents of the
section headed “Shareholders’ Rights”.

CONCLUSION

Going ahead, the Group will continue to review regularly its corporate governance
practices to maintain high level of transparency, to enhance the Company’s
competitiveness and operating efficiency and to ensure its sustainable development
and to generate greater returns for the stakeholder.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
BB &

Zensun Enterprises Limited

Ernst & Young ZXKETH ST

27/F, One Taikoo Place BEHRF

979 King’s Road HEEITIR
EYﬁj( Quarry Bay, Hong Kong Ao —RE27i2

To the members of Zensun Enterprises Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Zensun Enterprises
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 82
to 186, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2022, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2022, and
of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
(“HKSAS”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the HKICPA'’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the
“Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO GOING
CONCERN

We draw attention to Note 2.1 to the consolidated financial statements, which
states that as at 31 December 2022, the Group’s current portion of bank and
other borrowings amounted to RMB RMB4,693,151,000, while its cash and
cash equivalents amounted to RMB488,199,000. This condition, along with
other matters as set forth in Note 2.1, indicates that a material uncertainty exists
that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. In addition to the matter described in the MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY
RELATED TO GOING CONCERN section, we have determined the matters
described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated
financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do
not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our
description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for
the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report, including
in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance
of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results of our audit
procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters below,
provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial
statements.

Key audit matter
BREEZEE

Valuation of investment properties

REYFEZIGE

As at 31 December 2022, investment properties amounted to approximately
RMB584,960,000, which was material to the consolidated financial statements.
To support management’s assessment of the fair value of the properties, it is the
Group’s policy that property valuations are performed by an external valuer at the
end of the reporting period.

Significant judgement is required to determine the fair values of the investment
properties, which reflect market conditions as at the end of the year. The use
of different valuation techniques and assumptions could produce significantly
different estimates of fair values.

The accounting policies and disclosures of the valuation of investment properties
are included in notes 2.4, 3 and 15 to the consolidated financial statements.
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter
BENERNNEERREZSE

We performed the following procedures to address the
valuation of investment properties:

- We evaluated the competency, independence
and objectivity of the external valuer, and
assessing the valuation approach used by the
external valuer;

- We involved our internal valuation experts to
assess the reasonableness of the assumptions
such as the market rent, term yield and reversion
yield used in the valuations by comparing
them to available industry data, taking into
consideration comparability and market factors;

- We tested the accuracy of the property related
data used as inputs for the valuations; and

- We also assessed the relevant disclosures in the
notes to the Group’s financial statements.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Key audit matter

BARERER

HREELEE(R)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EMNELNARERRERSE

Assessment of net realisable values of properties under development and completed properties held for sale

HERRTYE RS B2 BRI Y2 TR FE

As at 31 December 2022, the carrying amounts of properties under development
(“PUD”) and completed properties held for sale (“PHS”) situated in Mainland China
were approximately RMB42,475,033,000 and RMB10,212,953,000, respectively.
The Group carried out assessment on the net realisable values at the end of the
reporting period and compared them to the costs.

This matter was significant to our audit because the determination of net realisable
values of PUD and PHS involved critical accounting estimates on the selling price,
variable selling expenses and estimated costs to completion of PUD.

The related accounting policies and disclosures are included in notes 2.4, 3, 20
and 21 to the consolidated financial statements.
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We performed the following procedures to address the
assessment of the net realisable values of PUD and
PHS:

- We understood and evaluated the internal
control over the Group’s process in determining
the net realisable values of PUD and PHS based
on prevailing market conditions;

- We assessed the reasonableness of
management’s key estimates:

(i) We compared the estimated selling price
to the recent market transactions, such
as the Group’s selling price of the pre-
sale units in the same project or the
prevailing market price of the comparable
properties with similar size, usage and
location;

(ii) We compared the estimated percentage
with the historical average selling
expenses to revenue ratio of the Group;
and

(iii) We reconciled the estimated costs to
completion to the budgets approved
by management and examined, on a
sample basis, the construction contracts
or compared them to the actual costs
of similar completed properties of the
Group; and

- We also assessed the relevant disclosures in the
notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Key audit matter

BARERER

Provision for land appreciation tax (“LAT”)

THIBER ([ LR E )

The subsidiaries of the Company that are engaged in property development
in Mainland China are subject to LAT. LAT is levied on the sale of properties
at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% based on the appreciation of
land value. At the end of each reporting period, the management of the Group
estimates the provision for LAT based on its understanding and interpretation of
the relevant tax rules and regulations, and the estimated total sales of properties
less total deductible expenditure, which includes lease charges for land use rights,
property development costs, borrowing costs and development expenditure.
When the LAT is subsequently determined, the actual payments may be different
from the estimates. For the year ended 31 December 2022, a provision for LAT of
approximately RMB158,875,000 was recorded in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.

The accounting policies and disclosures for the provision for LAT are included in
notes 3 and 11 to the consolidated financial statements.
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HREELEE(R)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EMNELNARERRERSE

We performed the following procedures to address the
provision for LAT:

— We involved our internal tax specialists to
perform a review on the LAT provision, including
the review of the estimates and assumptions
used by the Group;

- We tested the underlying data used to evaluate
LAT provision, including estimated total sales,
property development costs, borrowing costs
and tax rates;

- We recalculated the tax computation and
comparing our calculations with the amounts

recorded by the Group; and

- We also assessed the relevant disclosures in the
notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Key audit matter

BARERER

Impairment of goodwill

BERE

As at 31 December 2022, the carrying value of goodwill in the consolidated
financial statements amounted to RMB300,357,000. In accordance with HKFRSs,
the Group is required to perform an impairment test for goodwill at least on an
annual basis. The impairment test of goodwill is based on the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit to which the goodwill is allocated. The recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit is the value in use using cash flow projections
based on a financial budget. Management, assisted by an external valuer,
evaluated the impairment of goodwill by comparing the recoverable amount and
the carrying value of the cash-generating unit. This matter was significant to our
audit because the impairment test process was complex and involved significant
judgements and estimates.

The related accounting policies and disclosures are included in notes 2.4, 3, and
16 to the consolidated financial statements.
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HREELEE(R)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EMNELNARERRERSE

We performed the following procedures to address the
assessment of impairment of goodwill:

— We obtained an understanding of the process of
estimating the future cash flows;

- We assessed the competency, objectivity and
independence of the external appraiser used by
management;

= We evaluated management’s main assumptions
including the selling price, estimated
construction costs to completion, etc;

- We examined the differences between cash flow
projections and actual cash flows and checked
the cash flow projection by comparing it to the
market available data and industry outlook;

- We involved our internal valuation experts to
assist us in evaluating the methodologies and

key assumptions, such as discount rate; and

- We also assessed the relevant disclosures in the
notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Annual Report, other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the Company
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to do
SO.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging
their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our
report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 405 of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.
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Zensun Enterprises Limited 1[FRIEXEEAT

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
BB &

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement
and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to express
an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear
on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or
safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the
public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is
Siu Fung Terence Ho.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

30 March 2023
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
IIV_\éﬁﬁ_éﬁE
Year ended 31 December 2022  #ZE2022F 12 831 A ILFE

2022 2021
2022%F 20214
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Ff & AR®T R AR®TT
REVENUE &3 5 9,657,056 13,421,496
Cost of sales SHERCAR (8,830,013) (12,158,760)
Gross profit EF 827,043 1,262,736
Other income HAb A 5 18,820 44,024
Other gains and losses, net H bl zs & E518)F 58 6 (8,167,711) (71,192)
Administrative expenses THER (194,667) (237,360)
Sales and marketing expenses HERTHEERER (117,264) (249,643)
Finance costs B AN 7 (114,768) (89,917)
(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAX BB AT (&518) s F 8 (2,748,547) 658,648
Income tax expense B #ifsE 11 (193,980) (273,606)
(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR EE(ER),RR (2,942,527) 385,042
Attributable to: THIE TR
Owners of the Company RARER A (2,946,113) 399,470
Non-controlling interests IR 3,586 (14,428)
(2,942,527) 385,042
(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE EAREEABEER
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS (&8), BF
OF THE COMPANY
Basic (RMB cents) EARN(ARESD) 13 (154.0) 20.9
Diluted e N/A N/A
TEA TNiE M
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
AEETEHWER

Year ended 31 December 2022  #HZE2022F12 A31H IEF[E

2022 2021
2022%F 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBT T
(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FE(ER) RF (2,942,527) 385,042
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME Hi 2wk
Other comprehensive (loss)/income that may be reclassified to  AJgER BB HIEH D EE B2 2
profit or loss in subsequent periods: Hi 2w (EE), W
Exchange difference on translation of foreign operations BMEBINEMELAZER =58 (375) 3,300
(375) 3,300
Other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified REEZHHEBETeEN P EERER
to profit or loss in subsequent periods: 2B
Exchange difference on translation of non-foreign operations BMEIEBINERMEEZEL EZ5E 64,490 76,484
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FRHEHMEZE K (BE)
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX 64,115 79,784
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)/INCOME FEREE(EE) WS EE
FOR THE YEAR (2,878,412) 464,826
Attributable to: THIETT A
Owners of the Company RARER A (2,882,438) 479,526
Non-controlling interests PR R A 4,026 (14,700)

(2,878,412) 464,826
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Zensun Enterprises Limited

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e P EIR R R

31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

31 December

31 December

2022 2021
2022%F 20214
12A31H 12A31H
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B S ARETR ARET T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BB RERE 14 572,668 574,628
Investment properties REYE 15 584,960 531,595
Goodwill FEES 16 300,357 424,722
Intangible assets mIAE 17 112,284 157,105
Deferred tax assets RIERITE A B 30 555,315 443,790
Pledged deposits [EEigiikec 19 - 4,587
Total non-current assets IEMEE ELATE 2,125,584 2,136,427
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Completed properties held for sale HEHEZE I WE 20 10,212,953 9,028,002
Properties under development R 21 42,475,033 47,834,930
Deposits and prepayments paid for land acquisitions 2 15 + it Y B iz & N T8~ 208 22 - 1,220,087
Accounts receivable, other receivables and FEUSBR =X ~ Eoth fE UL A K
other assets HEtEE 23 3,072,002 2,683,744
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss BRAFEFABRZEREE 24 247,725 423,968
Prepaid income tax and tax recoverable BT S HE & Al Yr Bl 7518 1,418,983 1,404,769
Pledged deposits SRRk 19 137,515 211,289
Restricted bank balances ZIR BRI TAEBR 19 1,365,905 1,457,690
Cash and cash equivalents ReERIRELEEER 19 488,199 1,838,967
Total current assets MEBEEEE 59,418,315 66,103,446
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Accounts payable, deposits received and accruals FEREER - BRIRE NESTER 25 7,358,246 6,350,361
Contract liabilities BRAE 26 31,327,733 30,654,098
Amounts due to related companies FETREE A R A 27 1,038,106 1,976,226
Loans from a related company RE—FHBEEARZER 28 7,243,579 8,204,904
Bank and other borrowings RITREMBEE 29 4,693,151 5,894,516
Tax liabilities RIEEE 676,048 621,477
Total current liabilities BB EERE 52,336,863 53,701,582
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEERE 7,081,452 12,401,864
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EEAERTBEE
LIABILITIES 9,207,036 14,538,291
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31 December

TRITEER

31 December

2022 2021
2022%F 20214
12A381H 12A31H
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B S AR¥TR AR® T
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Rental deposits received BlWHEZRS 25 9,440 6,492
Bank and other borrowings RITEREMER 29 3,506,232 5,900,814
Deferred tax liabilities EEFHIBAE 30 371,119 432,328
Total non-current liabilities EMB B EETE 3,886,791 6,339,634
Net assets BEFE 5,320,245 8,198,657
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to owners of the Company ARARIER AEIhER
Share capital A% A €l 5,326,923 5,326,923
Reserves et 32 (10,889) 2,871,549
5,316,034 8,198,472
Non-controlling interests JEFE R R = 4,211 185
Total equity e AR EE 5,320,245 8,198,657

Zhang Jingguo
RN
Director

EE

Zhang Guogqgiang
RER
Director

EZE
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EREXERAF

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
RERRREX

Year ended 31 December 2022

HZE2022F12 A31HIEFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

RARERARL
Capital PRC* Non-
Share reduction statutory Exchange Retained controlling Total
capital reserve* reserve* reserve* profits* Total interests equity
BRI HEERE
R4 i R NERE  REEW & FERER ERAE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARMTz AR%Tn ARETn  ARETn ARETr ARETrn ARETR
(note 31) (note 32) (note 32)
(Hraz3t) (HzE32) (Kraz32)
At 1 January 2021 R202151 /1A 5,326,923 119,330 261,431 226,016 1,940,230 7,873,930 14,885 7,888,815
Profit/loss) for the year FEafl/ (Bi8) - = = = 399,470 399,470 (14,428) 385,042
Other comprehensive income/{oss) EREMEERE/(BE) :
for the year:
Exchange differences on translation HEZERZS - - - 80,056 - 80,056 272) 79,784
Total comprehensive income/(loss) FREENE/ (BR)&E
for the year - - - 80,056 399,470 479,526 (14,700) 464,826
Transfer to PRC statutory reserve BEEHETTRHE - = 42613 = (42,613 - - -
2020 final dividend paid Bff2020E K HR 8 = = - - (154,984) (154,984) - (154,984)
At 31 December 2021 R2021512A31A 5,326,923 119,330 304,044 306,072 2,142,103 8,198,472 185 8,198,657
Attributable to owners of the Company
RRFEEAEL
Retained
Capital PRC* profits/ Non-
Share reduction statutory Exchange (accumulated controlling Total
capital reserve* reserve* reserve* loss)* Total interests equity
BRI HEERE RERH/
RA i R NERE  (RRER) & FEREE BRAE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR  ARMTR AR%Tn  ARETn  ARETn ARETr ARETR ARETR
(note 31) (note 32) (note 32)
GEXIY (Hz£32) (Kr32)
At 1 January 2022 R2022%F1A1A 5,326,923 119,330 304,044 306,072 2,142,103 8,198,472 185 8,198,657
(Loss)/profi for the year FE(BR)/wH - - - - 946113 (2946113 3586 (2942,521)
Other comprehensive income for the year: ~ FREM2EE :
Exchange differences on translation BEEN S - - - 63,675 - 63,675 440 64,115
Total comprenensive income/{loss) FR2ENRE/ (BR)4E
for the year - - - 63675  (2,946,113)  (2,882,438) 4026 (2,878,412
Transfer to PRC statutory reserve BRENETT R - - 27,521 - (27,521) - - -
At 31 December 2022 R2022%12A31R 5,326,923 119,330 331,565 369,747 (831,531) 5,316,034 4211 5,320,245

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated negative reserves of *

RMB10,889,000 (2021: RMB2,871,549,000) in the consolidated statement of

financial position.

Hok

PRC refers to the People’s Republic of China. For the purposes of these financial ~ **

statements only, except where the context specifies otherwise, references to
Mainland China or the PRC exclude Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan.

ZEREREERS MM BEANZERE BRHEEA
R #%10,889,0007T (20214 : AR #2,871,549,000

JT) e

REEPEARKNE - ERZEHBHRERMS

IXZEZAREN  HPREAMKGREE R RE

A e B -

B



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
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nv_\ é EE: ﬁ )ﬁ % %
Year ended 31 December 2022  #ZE2022F 12 831 A ILFE
2022 2021
2022%F 20214
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Fi ARBTT ARBT T
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES K& EBHAERERE
(Loss)/profit before tax B AT (B 1R), & (2,748,547) 658,648
Adjustments for: KRB IEFE :
Fair value loss/(gain) on financial assets at BAFEFABR . EREE
fair value through profit or loss ZAFEEE () 6 207,039 (112,618
Fair value (gain)/loss on investment properties HEMEANTEWS) BB 6 (19,319) 104
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME  MEREEITE 8 20,036 2,158
Interest income FEUA 5 (7,492) (30,793)
Write-down of properties under development WORZE B R Y% &
and completed properties held for sale RIEREZERIYE
to net realisable value FA[ I FEE 6 2,656,869 166,764
Provision for impairment of goodwill EERERE 6 124,365 -
Impairment losses on accounts receivable JE ST AR R % L A FE LR IE
and other receivables BEE B 6 11,604 -
Finance costs A& KA 7 114,768 89,917
359,323 774,180
Increase in accounts receivable, FEUIAR R « Ho R WK IE
other receivables and other assets H A& EE N (376,654) (574,779)
Decrease/(increase) in restricted bank deposits from VIHETBEMGREEEZ
pre-sale proceeds of properties SR ISR SR A (3 hn) 91,785 (809,055)
Decrease in properties under development R AP YR D 5,321,984 1,882,907
Increase in completed properties held for sale BIEHE 2B TYEE N (2,329,172) (2,265,015)
Decrease in deposits and prepayments paid B Ttk iEES &
for land acquisitions TEA FRIE R > 1,220,087 1,426,006
Increase/(decrease) in accounts payable, deposits JERTERFR - BUIRE L EAE
received and accruals a0 CRi4) 1,513,054 (959,585)
(Decrease)/increase in contract liabilities AHBECHD), (148,849) 6,656,926
Cash from operating activities LELIKFTSIR® 5,651,558 6,131,585
Tax paid B @FiE (326,357) (650,845)
Net cash flows from operating activities AR MBHSREFH 5,325,201 5,480,740
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

> A o —1
mEHESRER
Year ended 31 December 2022  #ZE2022F 12 831 A ILFE
2022 2021
2022%F 20214
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Ff & AR®T R AR®TT
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES BREZHMEBEESRE
Interest received B F 8 7,492 34,960
Purchases of items of property, plant and equipment ﬂ%)\%% MR KR EER (4,808) (2,806)
Net cash flows from investing activities BEEEMSREFEE 2,684 32,154
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES RMETBMERESRE
Release of pledged deposits FRRRE IR S 205,005 298,095
Placement of pledged deposits EHREERZS (126,644) (155,700)
New bank and other borrowings raised IR R EMER 1,749,251 5,240,896
Repayment of bank and other borrowings BERTREMES (5,858,830) (8,479,570)
Interest paid EFLE (749,418) (1,346,699)
Repayment to related companies BEBE A RIIE (1,294,055) (2,458,150)
Advance from related companies TEUEE R R RIE 355,935 333,415
Loans repaid to a related company EE—ME I%EL ﬁga‘” (2,263,580) (1,678,518)
Loans received from a related company W En — el g & B 1,302,255 1,508,449
Dividends paid BAIARE - (158,486)
Net cash flows used in financing activities BB B TR SREFE (6,680,081) (6,891,268)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND RERRESESEEFEBRDFHE
CASH EQUIVALENTS (1,352,196) (1,378,374)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year E/\\\E%}]Zﬁ%&iﬁﬁﬁfglﬁ =] 1,838,967 3,218,611
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net GINGE P SR B B £ 5B 1,427 (1,270)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RERZBESRBESEEER
AT END OF YEAR 19 488,199 1,838,967
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND HeRBRESESEEBEHRIN
CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the (RE AR REATIERZ
consolidated statement of financial position HE&RIBE&EEIEH 19 488,199 1,838,967




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 R R B =

31 December 2022

1.

2.1

2022412 A31H
CORPORATE INFORMATION

Zensun Enterprises Limited (the “Company”) is a public limited liability
company incorporated in Hong Kong with its shares listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The registered office of the Company is located at 24th
Floor, Wyndham Place, 40-44 Wyndham Street, Central, Hong Kong.
In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the immediate holding
company of the Company is Joy Town Inc., a private limited liability
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI”). The ultimate
holding company of the Company is Vistra Trust (Singapore) Pte Limited,
a private limited liability company incorporated in Singapore, as trustee of
a discretionary trust which is set up by Ms. Huang Yanping (“Ms. Huang”),
a non-executive director of the Company. Ms. Huang is the settlor and
protector of the discretionary trust. Mr. Zhang Jingguo (“Mr. Zhang”), the
Chairman and an executive director of the Company, is the spouse of Ms.
Huang.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities of
its subsidiaries are set out in note 44. The Company and its subsidiaries are
hereinafter collectively referred to as the Group.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”),accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have
been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for investment
properties and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss which
have been measured at fair value. These financial statements are presented
in Renminbi (“RMB”) and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand
except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022. A subsidiary is an
entity (including a structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the
Company. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights
that give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the
investee).

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights results in
control. When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority
of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an
investee, including:

(@) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the
investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.
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2.1

2022412 H31H
BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same
reporting period as the Company, using consistent accounting policies. The
results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the Group
obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that such
control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group and to the non-
controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control described above. A change in the ownership interest
of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the assets
(including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (i) the carrying amount
of any non-controlling interest and (jii) the cumulative translation differences
recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration
received, (i) the fair value of any investment retained and (i) any resulting
surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of components
previously recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit
or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the same basis as would be
required if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

Going concern basis

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s current portion of bank and other
borrowings amounted to RMB4,693,151,000, while its cash and cash
equivalents amounted to RMB488,199,000.

The directors of the Company have evaluated the sustainable operation
ability for 12 months from the end of the reporting period, which is affected
by the macroeconomic environment, industry environment and credit
environment superimposing the impact of multiple rounds of epidemic and
came to an opinion that the liquidity risk of the company is facing periodic
challenges.
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2.1

BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)

Going concern basis (continued)
Certain measures have been and are being taken to manage its liquidity
needs and to improve its financial position which include the following:

(@) The Group continues to generate positive operating cash flows
for the next twelve months by implementing various strategies
to improve the Group’s income from sales of properties, project
management and sales, hotel operations, rentals from investment
properties and dividend income from financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss to generate additional operating cash inflows
and putting extra efforts on the collection of outstanding sales
proceeds and other receivables;

(b) The Group is actively reviewing its debt structure and looking for
funding opportunities; the Group is actively negotiating with several
financial institutions to obtain new loans at a reasonable cost;

(c) The Group continues to monitor capital expenditure to balance and
relieve cash resource to support operations; and

(d) The Group continues to take actions to tighten cost controls over
various operating expenses.

The directors of the Company have reviewed the Group’s cash flow forecast
covering a period of twelve months from the end of the reporting period.
They are of the opinion that, taking into account of the above-mentioned
plans and measures, the Group will have sufficient working capital to
finance its operations and meet its financial obligations as and when they
fall due in the foreseeable future. Accordingly, the directors believe it is
appropriate to prepare the consolidated financial statements of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2022 on a going concern basis.

Notwithstanding the above, given the volatility of the property sector in
China and the uncertainties to obtain continuous support by the banks
and the Group’s creditors, material uncertainties exist as to whether
management of the Company will be able to achieve its plans and measures
as described above.

Should the going concern assumption be inappropriate, adjustments may
have to be made to write down the values of assets to their recoverable
amounts, to provide for any further liabilities that might arise, and to
reclassify non-current assets and non-current liabilities as current assets
and current liabilities, respectively. The effects of these adjustments have
not been reflected in the consolidated financial statements.
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2022412 H31H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRSs for the first time for
the current year’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 37

Annual improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020

Reference to the Conceptual Framework

Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds
before Intended Use

Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a
Contract

Amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9,
lllustrative Examples accompanying
HKFRS 16, and HKAS 41

The nature and the impact of the revised HKFRSs that are applicable to the
Group are described below:

(@)

Amendments to HKFRS 3 replace a reference to the previous
Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial
Statements with a reference to the Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting (the “Conceptual Framework”) issued in
June 2018 without significantly changing its requirements. The
amendments also add to HKFRS 3 an exception to its recognition
principle for an entity to refer to the Conceptual Framework to
determine what constitutes an asset or a liability. The exception
specifies that, for liabilities and contingent liabilities that would
be within the scope of HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 if they were
incurred separately rather than assumed in a business combination,
an entity applying HKFRS 3 should refer to HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int
21 respectively instead of the Conceptual Framework. Furthermore,
the amendments clarify that contingent assets do not qualify for
recognition at the acquisition date. The Group has applied the
amendments prospectively to business combinations that occurred
on or after 1 January 2022. As there were no business combinations
during the year, the amendments did not have any impact on the
financial position and performance of the Group.

Amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit an entity from deducting from
the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment any proceeds
from selling items produced while bringing that asset to the location
and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the
manner intended by management. Instead, an entity recognises the
proceeds from selling any such items, and the cost of those items as
determined by HKAS 2 Inventories, in profit or loss. The Group has
applied the amendments retrospectively to items of property, plant
and equipment made available for use on or after 1 January 2021.
Since there was no sale of items produced prior to the property,
plant and equipment being available for use, the amendments did
not have any impact on the financial position or performance of the
Group.

22 BHERBREZEE

AEBEERAFEZ P HEHRR B RFER T
BRI BBMEIMELER -

R BMEER HERAEL A
ECTACTIRS

R gL YE - B RRE
FE1BSRIERT A TEREE FHA5 B AT 15

HHE

R EHEL EREH) —BTTEAIA)
EITHRAEAT A 22

2018%F 220204 BB RELRNE -
BB BB TS AER
BRIy FEEE RN BEMBRE

AE RI 25 1655 BE P 554 AR
g BB ERE
ASRAEET A

BRARAEENKETEEN RS LT
BRZESIIWT

(a)

BRI RELERIFEIFHISFT ALA2018
FORBMYBREESIEZL([HSIE
B ZIRIABARBR RN HBHRE 2
ERZERRD METEAREEE
ko ZEERMAB BN BRELERES
SRR ZHIsN - BEA2EH
DIEREBETEERBBEIRBRER - %
BISMERIRTE » HREBMIERERE
PR EERBRE SR ERIEI75
EX(BBRUBEREREZES) 2E
FoRMABERKAGE  KASSEY
EHREEREIFHNERED HIIRAES
SRR EI7IRKE S (BRI 53k s 2
BZEe) -RBFE215%  MIEBSIE
8o o ZFEFTRBRAREERIK
BEHARFAERER - AEEERR
2022F 1 A1 B2 83 £ 2 ¥ 56 HtR1
BEMEAZEEE] - ARFERTEEE
A ZEBITHASE BB R
KRBV EEBR ML -

BB G EAFE165RE I AL I F K
ME - BEREEBEKAFRINBREE
EREEEZDNERBRTEZEENR
IR 2SR R EA 2 THE 25
FIE - AR BRAREBEE=THERALE
TMEREBEE ZHBRBRIRERES
TEBIFE2OHREFEEE KA - AEH
ERR2021F1 A1Bs 2 Al HER 2
M¥E  BELEEEBEBEBPEAZEE
5] c AREFEME - BB K& B HE
AR ENEFMNELENTER @ HZE
BRTHAEE 2 B ISR s R IR I B
AT 2 o



2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

()

Amendments to HKAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of assessing
whether a contract is onerous under HKAS 37, the cost of fuffilling
the contract comprises the costs that relate directly to the contract.
Costs that relate directly to a contract include both the incremental
costs of fulfilling that contract (e.g., direct labour and materials)
and an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling that
contract (e.g., an allocation of the depreciation charge for an item
of property, plant and equipment used in fulfilling the contract as
well as contract management and supervision costs). General and
administrative costs do not relate directly to a contract and are
excluded unless they are explicitly chargeable to the counterparty
under the contract. The Group has applied the amendments
prospectively to contracts for which it has not yet fulfilled all its
obligations at 1 January 2022 and no onerous contracts were
identified. Therefore, the amendments did not have any impact on
the financial position or performance of the Group.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 sets out amendments
to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, lllustrative Examples accompanying HKFRS
16, and HKAS 41. Details of the amendment that is applicable to the
Group are as follows:

° HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees that an
entity includes when assessing whether the terms of a new
or modified financial liability are substantially different from
the terms of the original financial liability. These fees include
only those paid or received between the borrower and the
lender, including fees paid or received by either the borrower
or lender on the other’s behalf. The Group has applied the
amendment prospectively from 1 January 2022. As there was
no modification or exchange of the Group’s financial liabilities
during the year, the amendment did not have any impact on
the financial position or performance of the Group.
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2.3

2022412 H31H

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs, that
have been issued but are not yet effective, in the financial statements:

Amendments to HKFRS 10

and HKAS 28 (2011)
Amendments to HKFRS 16
HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKFRS 17

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture?

Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback?

Insurance Contracts?

Insurance Contracts’ 5

2.3 %g%ﬁ@ﬁ*i&&ZE%Wﬁﬁ%

ZAER B W R B SRR FE A T 21 B AR AR R
R #R] RAMERT BB 5 E AR

Amendment to HKFRS 17 Initial Application of HKFRS 17 and HKFRS

9 — Comparative Information®

Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current
(the "2020 Amendments”)? 4
Non-current Liabilities with Covenants
(the “2022 Amendments”)?
Disclosure of Accounting Policies’

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates'’
Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single

Transaction’

Amendments to HKAS 12

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024
8 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption
4 As a consequence of the 2022 Amendments, the effective date of the

2020 Amendments was deferred to annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2024. In addition, as a consequence of the 2020 Amendments
and 2022 Amendments, Hong Kong Interpretation 5 Presentation of
Financial Statements — Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan
that Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause was revised to align the
corresponding wording with no change in conclusion

5 As a consequence of the amendments to HKFRS 17 issued in October
2020, HKFRS 4 was amended to extend the temporary exemption that
permits insurers to apply HKAS 39 rather than HKFRS 9 for annual
periods beginning before 1 January 2023

6 An entity that chooses to apply the transition option relating to the
classification overlay set out in this amendment shall apply it on initial
application of HKFRS 17
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be applicable
to the Group is described below.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-
current clarify the requirements for classifying liabilities as current or non-
current, in particular the determination over whether an entity has a
right to defer settlement of the liabilities or at least 12 months after the
reporting period. Classification of a liability is unaffected by the likelihood
that the entity will exercise its right to defer settlement of the liability. The
amendments also clarify the situations that are considered a settlement
of a liability. In 2022, the HKICPA issued the 2022 Amendments to further
clarify that, among covenants of a liability arising from a loan arrangement,
only those with which an entity must comply on or before the reporting
date affect the classification of that liability as current or non-current. In
addition, the 2022 Amendments require additional disclosures by an entity
that classifies liabilities arising from loan arrangements as non-current when
it has a right to defer settlement of those liabilities that are subject to the
entity complying with future covenants within 12 months after the reporting
period. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2024 and shall be applied retrospectively. Earlier application
is permitted. An entity that applies the 2020 Amendments early is required
to apply simultaneously the 2022 Amendments, and vice versa. The Group
is currently assessing the impact of the amendments and whether existing
loan agreements may require revision. Based on a preliminary assessment,
the amendments are not expected to have any significant impact on the
Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies require entities
to disclose their material accounting policy information rather than their
significant accounting policies. Accounting policy information is material
if, when considered together with other information included in an entity’s
financial statements, it can reasonably be expected to influence decisions
that the primary users of general purpose financial statements make on
the basis of those financial statements. Amendments to HKFRS Practice
Statement 2 provide non-mandatory guidance on how to apply the concept
of materiality to accounting policy disclosures. Amendments to HKAS 1 are
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and earlier
application is permitted. Since the guidance provided in the amendments
to HKFRS Practice Statement 2 is non-mandatory, an effective date for
these amendments is not necessary. The Group is currently revisiting the
accounting policy disclosures to ensure consistency with the amendments.

Amendments to HKAS 8 clarify the distinction between changes in
accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies. Accounting
estimates are defined as monetary amounts in financial statements that
are subject to measurement uncertainty. The amendments also clarify how
entities use measurement techniques and inputs to develop accounting
estimates. The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and apply to changes in accounting
policies and changes in accounting estimates that occur on or after the
start of that period. Earlier application is permitted. The amendments
are not expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.
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2.3
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2022412 H31H

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

Amendments to HKAS 12 narrow the scope of the initial recognition
exception in HKAS 12 so that it no longer applies to transactions that
give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences, such as
leases and decommissioning obligations. Therefore, entities are required
to recognise a deferred tax asset (provided that sufficient taxable profit is
available) and a deferred tax liability for temporary differences arising from
these transactions. The amendments are effective for annual reporting
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and shall be applied to
transactions related to leases and decommissioning obligations at the
beginning of the earliest comparative period presented, with any cumulative
effect recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained
profits or other component of equity as appropriate at that date. In addition,
the amendments shall be applied prospectively to transactions other than
leases and decommissioning obligations. Earlier application is permitted.
The amendments are not expected to have any significant impact on the
Group’s financial statements.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method.
The consideration transferred is measured at the acquisition date fair value
which is the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets transferred
by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to the former owners of
the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects
whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are
present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share
of net assets in the event of liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate
share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components of non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are
expensed as incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when the acquired
set of activities and assets includes an input and a substantive process that
together significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets
and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation in
accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and
pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the separation
of embedded derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of
the consideration transferred, the amount recognised for non-controlling
interests and any fair value of the Group’s previously held equity interests in
the acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities assumed.
If the sum of this consideration and other items is lower than the fair value
of the net assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment, recognised
in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment annually or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
value may be impaired. The Group performs its annual impairment test
of goodwill as at 31 December. For the purpose of impairment testing,
goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units, or groups of cash-
generating units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group
are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which the goodwill
relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (group of
cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is
recognised. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a
subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or group of
cash-generating units) and part of the operation within that unit is disposed
of, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is included in the
carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss on the
disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is measured based
on the relative value of the operation disposed of and the portion of the
cash generating unit retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties and financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss at fair value at the end of each reporting period.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the
absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the
asset or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market must be
accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured
using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the
asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic
pest interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a
market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset
in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair
value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the
use of unobservable inputs.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 R R B =

31 December 2022 2022412 A31H
2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

Zensun Enterprises Limited

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Fair value measurement (continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in
the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy,
described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level

input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on
a recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred
between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on
the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole) at the end of each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required (other than inventories, deferred tax assets,
financial assets, and investment properties), the asset’s recoverable amount
is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or
cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal,
and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets
or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is determined
for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. In testing a cash-
generating unit for impairment, a portion of the carrying amount of a
corporate asset (e.g., a headquarters building) is allocated to an individual
cash-generating unit if it can be allocated on a reasonable and consistent
basis or, otherwise, to the smallest group of cash-generating units.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged
to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises in those
expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to whether
there is an indication that previously recognised impairment losses may
no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss
of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset,
but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would have
been determined (net of any depreciation/amortization) had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an
impairment loss is credited to the statement of profit or loss in the period
in which it arises, unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which
case the reversal of the impairment loss is accounted for in accordance
with the relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 FESTHERBEE)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Related parties BEAL
A party is considered to be related to the Group if: ERATMEER TNERNERABAER 2
BEAL :
(a) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family and (a) ZHhR—BAATHZBAT 2R
that person: FBAT
0] has control or joint control over the Group; (i) A ZN 5 (B 75 2 6 4 sl R4
#E
(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or (ii) HASBBEATES + 3K
(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the Group (il AErEEIAEBTRRZERK
or of a parent of the Group; BEBABZ—
or %
(b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions applies: (b) ZhE—EERITFE A TEM—IEIK
1% :
0] the entity and the Group are members of the same group; (i) ZEBRAEERR KB 2K
EUNCIE
(ii) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or (ii) —EERAS—BER(IZS K
of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other entity); A SN 1= PNEIEAEE
BRE) ZEE ARG SR
(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same third (iii) ZERBRAEERRA—F=72
party; AP
(V)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other vy —EEBAE—RFE=FEBEZE
entity is an associate of the third entity; EhE ME—BBAZE=A
B2 NT
(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit (v) ZERDDAAEENEANERS
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to the FE B2 E BBz B
Group; s EAIETE
(viy  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person (vi) ZEBHEMAEZATESISK
identified in (a); R
(vi)  a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the (i)  R@ )()Fﬁ%EZ/\i HZERE
entity or is a member of the key management personnel of Ej{a’iﬁ&ﬁ ZEE(ZERE
the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and ZERE)ZEREBAEZ—
&
(vii)  the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, (vii) ZEE - HEMBEEERZEMAK
provides key management personnel services to the Group BRA - ﬁ$%i$%2
or to the parent of the Group. NERHEZEE ABRY -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 R R B =

31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and location
for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment have
been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally
charged to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred.
In situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for
a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as a
replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and equipment are
required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as
individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost of
each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual value over its
estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose are as
follows:

Over the shorter of the lease terms and
2%
Hotel 2.78% to 10%
Leasehold improvement Over the shorter of the lease terms and
6.67% to 20%
Furniture, office equipment and 20% to 50%
motor vehicles

Land and buildings

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful
lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis among the
parts and each part is depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives
and the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at
least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant part
initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss
on disposal or retirement recognised in profit or loss in the year the asset
is derecognised is the difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings (including the
leasehold property held as a right-of-use asset which would otherwise meet
the definition of an investment property) held to earn rental income and/or
for capital appreciation, rather than for use in the production or supply of
goods or services or for administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary
course of business. Such properties are measured initially at cost, including
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties
are stated at fair value, which reflects market conditions at the end of the
reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment
properties are included in the statement of profit or loss in the year in which
they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment property
are recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the year of the retirement
or disposal.

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-occupied properties,
the deemed cost of a property for subsequent accounting is its fair value
at the date of change in use. If a property occupied by the Group as an
owner-occupied property becomes an investment property, the Group
accounts for such property in accordance with the policy stated under
“Property, plant and equipment and depreciation” for owned property and/
or accounts for such property in accordance with the policy stated under
“Right-of-use assets” for property held as a right-of-use asset up to the
date of change in use, and any difference at that date between the carrying
amount and the fair value of the property is accounted for as a revaluation
in accordance with the policy stated under “Property, plant and equipment
and depreciation” above.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at
cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business combination is
the fair value at the date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets
are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives
are subsequently amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may
be impaired. The amortization period and the amortization method for an
intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial
year end.

Contract benefit is recognised as intangible assets and amortized on the
straight-line basis over the following estimated useful economic lives:
Contracts benefit 50 months

The useful life of contract benefit is assessed based on the remaining period
of the property development.
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Zensun Enterprises Limited 1[FRIEXEEAT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 R R B =

31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (continued)

Contract benefit

Contract benefit acquired in a business combination is recognised at fair
value at the acquisition date, which is related to the future acquisition of
the land use right. Before completing the acquisition of the land use right,
contract benefit is tested for impairment annually and is not amortised. And
after completing the acquisition of the land use right, contract benefit is
subsequently carried at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment
losses. The useful life of contract benefit is assessed based on the
remaining period of the property development. Amortization is calculated
using the straight-line method over the period of the property development.

Properties under development
Properties under development are intended to be held for sale after
completion.

Properties under development are stated at the lower of cost comprising
land costs, construction costs, borrowing costs, professional fees and
other costs directly attributable to such properties incurred during the
development period and net realisable value.

Properties under development are classified as current assets except
those will not be realised in the normal operating cycle. On completion, the
properties are transferred to completed properties held for sale.

Completed properties held for sale

Completed properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined by an apportionment of the total costs
of land and buildings attributable to the unsold properties. Net realisable
value takes into account the price ultimately expected to be realised, less
estimated costs to be incurred in selling the properties.

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or
contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-
term leases of offices and motor vehicles (that is those leases that have a
lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not
contain a purchase option).

Lease payments on short-term leases are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception (or when
there is a lease modification) each of its leases as either an operating lease
or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified as operating
leases. When a contract contains lease and non-lease components, the
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to each component on a
relative stand-alone selling price basis. Rental income is accounted for on
a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is included in revenue in the
statement of profit or loss due to its operating nature. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on
the same basis as rental income.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee are accounted for as finance
leases.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently
measured at amortised cost and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the
financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and the Group’s
business model for managing them. With the exception of accounts
receivable that do not contain a significant financing component or for
which the Group has applied the practical expedient of not adjusting the
effect of a significant financing component, the Group initially measures a
financial asset at its fair value, plus in the case of a financial asset not at
fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Accounts receivable that
do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Group
has applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price
determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set out for
“Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised
cost or fair value through other comprehensive income, it needs to give rise
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”) on
the principal amount outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that are
not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss,
irrespective of the business model.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets refers to how it
manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows. The business
model determines whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual
cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both. Financial assets classified
and measured at amortised cost are held within a business model with the
objective to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows,
while financial assets classified and measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income are held within a business model with the objective
of both holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets
which are not held within the aforementioned business models are classified
and measured at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on
the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the
effective interest method and are subject to impairment. Gains and losses
are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised, modified or
impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the
statement of financial position at fair value with net changes in fair value
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

This category includes equity investments which the Group had not
irrevocably elected to classify at fair value through other comprehensive
income. Dividends on equity investments classified as financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss are also recognised as other income in the
statement of profit or loss when the right of payment has been established,
it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will
flow to the Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of
a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed
from the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position) when:

- the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

- the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the
asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows
in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset
or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what
extent, it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset. When
it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to
recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises an associated liability.
The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis
that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of
the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could
be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (“ECLs”)
for all debt instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs
are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due
in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original effective
interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the
sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the
contractual terms.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there
has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events that are
possible within the next 12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit
exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected
over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the
default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk on a
financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition. When
making the assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default occurring
on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition and
considers reasonable and supportable information that is available without
undue cost or effort, including historical and forward-looking information.
The Group considers that there has been a significant increase in credit risk
when contractual payments are more than 30 days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual
payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases, the Group
may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or
external information indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the
outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account any credit
enhancements held by the Group.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment under the
general approach and they are classified within the following stages for
measurement of ECLs except for accounts receivable and which apply the
simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 - Financial instruments for which credit risk has not increased
significantly since initial recognition and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to 12-month
ECLs

Stage2 - Financial instruments for which credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition but that are not credit-
impaired financial assets and for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 - Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting date
(but that are not purchased or originated credit-impaired) and
for which the loss allowance is measured at an amount equal
to lifetime ECLs
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Simplified approach

For accounts receivable and that do not contain a significant financing
component or when the Group applies the practical expedient of not
adjusting the effect of a significant financing component, the Group applies
the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the simplified approach,
the Group does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a
loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group
has established a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and
the economic environment.

For accounts receivable and that contain a significant financing component
and lease receivables, the Group chooses as its accounting policy to adopt
the simplified approach in calculating ECLs with policies as described
above.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as loans and
borrowings or payables, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of
loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction
costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include accounts payables, amounts due
to related companies, loans from a related company, bank and other
borrowings, and financial liabilities in other payables, deposits and accruals.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities is as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

After initial recognition, banks and other borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method unless
the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are stated
at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities
are derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate amortization
process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortization is included in
finance costs in profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

Zensun Enterprises Limited

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those contracts
that require a payment to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss it
incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. A financial guarantee
contract is recognised initially as a liability at its fair value, adjusted for
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the
guarantee. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group measures the
financial guarantee contracts at the higher of: (i) the ECL allowance
determined in accordance with the policy as set out in “Impairment
of financial assets”; and (ii) the amount initially recognised less, when
appropriate, the cumulative amount of income recognised.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is
discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a
derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and
the difference between the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is
reported in the consolidated statement of financial position if there is a
currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and
short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
and have a short maturity of generally within three months when acquired
which are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s
cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks, including term
deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash, which are not restricted as to
use.

24

TERETHERAE(E)

cHeE(E)

EAET B ()

HBERER

RE BB H M EERE N RBERNFTIARE
EREEARBEEBSARERRESTAK
FRE RN RMBRIBRNEL - FBE
RENNRZATERBREE  URERS
BREHZERNZZEUAEHAE - 9nHE
RiE - ARBERUATMERNRSEAENE
FEREQ  (RE SBEERE I HRREE
ZHEBEEBERER  R)NRERHNSER
(FEM) R EERBALHE -

RIEBITHAE
B BE THRBWER - BUEREH - Al
REBBKILEREE -

EREERARERE R -REANS B
FEENESBAERRL - HREBEOERKR
B BUERTHS - ZIARMBKAER] S RAER L
RREAELRERFAR  SANRESEE
BN BEEMRER o

HEEMITA

3R B 7 £ — R A AR LR BIRITR R -
AHEEEERTE  BERAFRGEELREK
BREAERENER  ReREERSRAE
AT - WEFE R ALZA T BIRRIHREK -

ReRkREEEHEE
HEERLRERMNE B hkRLFEEAR
BREFRRS REHER  ARFER LIRS
EAZERS  BEZHEARIK  —KRK
BR=ZEANIBNENRERAKRE (ARE
REEVLBRAEERSERERAD) °

MR MBI BEME REeERRESFHER
BEeERAETXRHNFERE RRTER(E
BERFFRARRSBLUEEEE) -



2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or constructive)
has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable that a future outflow
of resources will be required to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised for a
provision is the present value at the end of the reporting period of the future
expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation. The increase
in the discounted present value amount arising from the passage of time is
included in finance costs in profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating to items
recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss, either
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to
be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the country in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences,
except:

= when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of
goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

- in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, when the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences,
and the carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses.
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses can be utilised, except:

- when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary
differences arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time
of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss; and

- in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will
reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed
at the end of each reporting period and are recognised to the extent that it
has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow
all or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability
is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only if the
Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and
current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the
same taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend either to settle
current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attaching
conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over the periods that
the costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of
goods or services is transferred to the customers at an amount that reflects
the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for
those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the
amount of consideration is estimated to which the Group will be entitled
in exchange for transferring the goods or services to the customer. The
variable consideration is estimated at contract inception and constrained
until it is highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in the amount
of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the associated
uncertainty with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which provides the
customer with a significant benefit of financing the transfer of goods or
services to the customer for more than one year, revenue is measured at
the present value of the amount receivable, discounted using the discount
rate that would be reflected in a separate financing transaction between the
Group and the customer at contract inception. When the contract contains
a financing component which provides the Group with a significant financial
benefit for more than one year, revenue recognised under the contract
includes the interest expense accreted on the contract liability under the
effective interest method. For a contract where the period between the
payment by the customer and the transfer of the promised goods or
services is one year or less, the transaction price is not adjusted for the
effects of a significant financing component, using the practical expedient in
HKFRS 15.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable for the sale of properties and services provided in the ordinary
course of the Group’s activities. Revenue is shown net of taxes.

(a) Sale of properties
Revenue from the sale of properties in the ordinary course of
business is recognised at a point in time when the purchaser obtains
the physical possession or the legal title of the completed property
and the Group has the present right to payment and the collection
of the consideration is probable.

(b) Project management services
Revenue from project management services derived from the
provision of management and sale services in connection with
development of property projects is recognised when the relevant
services are rendered and the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group.

(c) Hotel operation
Revenue from room sales and other ancillary guest services is
recognised over time on a daily basis, and revenue from the sale of
goods is recognised at the point in time when control of the goods is
transferred to customers.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from other sources

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over the lease
terms.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right to receive
payment has been established, it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the
dividend can be measured reliably.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective interest
method by applying the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future
cash receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or a payment
is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the Group transfers the
related goods or services. Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue
when the Group performs under the contract (i.e., transfers control of the
related goods or services to the customer).

Contract costs

Other than the costs which are capitalised as inventories, property, plant
and equipment and intangible assets, costs incurred to fulfil a contract with
a customer are capitalised as an asset if all of the following criteria are met:

(@) The costs relate directly to a contract or to an anticipated contract
that the entity can specifically identify.

(b) The costs generate or enhance resources of the entity that will be
used in satisfying (or in continuing to satisfy) performance obligations
in the future.

(c) The costs are expected to be recovered.

The capitalised contract costs are amortised and charged to the statement
of profit or loss on a systematic basis that is consistent with the transfer
to the customer of the goods or services to which the asset relates. Other
contract costs are expensed as incurred.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Other employee benefits

Retirement benefit scheme and pension scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident Fund
retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all of its employees. Contributions
are made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and
are charged to the statement of profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF
Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the
employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiary which operates in Mainland China
are required to participate in a pension scheme (the “Pension Scheme”)
operated by the local municipal government. This subsidiary is required to
contribute a certain percentage of its payroll costs to the Pension Scheme.
The contributions are charged to the statement of profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the Pension Scheme.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation of
such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing
costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing
costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection
with the borrowing of funds.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are approved by the
shareholders in a general meeting. Proposed final dividends are disclosed in
the notes to the financial statements.

Foreign currencies

The Company’s functional currency is the Hong Kong dollar. These financial
statements are presented in RMB. Each entity in the Group determines its
own functional currency and items included in the financial statements of
each entity are measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are initially recorded
using their respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling
at the end of the reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or
translation of monetary items are recognised in the statement of profit or
loss.
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2.4

2022412 H31H

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Foreign currencies (continued)

Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss with the exception of
monetary items that are designated as part of the hedge of the Group’s
net investment of a foreign operation. These are recognised in other
comprehensive income until the net investment is disposed of, at which
time the cumulative amount is reclassified to the statement of profit or loss.
Tax charges and credits attributable to exchange differences on those
monetary items are also recorded in other comprehensive income.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the
initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the
fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of a non-
monetary item measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition
of the gain or loss on change in fair value of the item.

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the related asset,
expense or income on the derecognition of a non-monetary asset or
non-monetary liability relating to an advance consideration, the date of
initial transaction is the date on which the Group initially recognises the
non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the advance
consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, the
Group determines the transaction date for each payment or receipt of the
advance consideration.

The functional currencies of certain Hong Kong and overseas subsidiaries
are currencies other than the RMB, including the Hong Kong dollar (HK$),
United States dollar (‘USD”) and Singapore dollar (“SGD”). As at the end of
the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated
into RMB at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting
period and their statements of profit or loss are translated into RMB at the
weighted average exchange rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal
of a foreign operation, the component of other comprehensive income
relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation and any fair
value adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities arising on
acquisition are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and
translated at the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the cash
flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into RMB at the exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows
of overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are translated into
RMB at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires management
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and their
accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in
outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Going concern consideration

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, apart from those
involving estimations, management has prepared the consolidated financial
statements on the assumption that the Group will be able to operate as a
going concern in the coming year, which is a critical judgement that has
the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated
financial statements. The assessment of the going concern assumption
involves making a judgement by the directors, at a particular point of time,
about the future outcome of events or conditions which are inherently
uncertain. The directors consider that the Group has the capability to
continue as a going concern and the major events or conditions, which
may give rise to business risks, that may individually or collectively cast a
significant doubt upon the going concern assumption are set out in note 2.1
to the financial statements.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management
has made the following judgements, apart from those involving estimations,
which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
financial statements:

Deferred tax on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred taxes arising from investment
properties that are using the fair value model, the directors of the Company
have reviewed the Group’s investment property portfolios and concluded
that the Group’s investment properties — senior housing communities
located in the United States of America (the “USA”) — are held under a
business model whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment properties over time rather
than through sale whereas those situated in Hong Kong and Singapore are
not held under such a business model. Therefore, the presumption that the
carrying amounts of investment properties are recovered entirely through
sale is rebutted for properties of senior housing communities but is not
rebutted for properties located in Hong Kong and Singapore. The Group
has not recognised any deferred taxes on changes in fair value of these
investment properties located in Hong Kong and Singapore as the Group is
not subject to any income taxes on disposal of these investment properties.

Deferred tax on withholding taxes

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for withholding corporate income
taxes that would be payable on the unremitted earnings that are subject
to withholding taxes of the Group’s subsidiaries established in the PRC.
Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount
of deferred tax liabilities, based upon the likely distribution level of such
earnings from these subsidiaries in the foreseeable future. The amount of
deferred tax liabilities arising from the withholding tax associated with the
investments in subsidiaries established in the PRC for the year ended 31
December 2022 was RMB60,247,000 (31 December 2021: 60,247,000).
Further details are contained in note 31 to the financial statements.
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2022412 H31H

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on an annual
basis. This requires an estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating
units to which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating the value in use requires
the Group to make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from
the cash-generating units and also to choose a suitable discount rate
in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows. The carrying
amount of goodwill at 31 December 2022 was RMB300,357,000 (2021:
RMB424,722,000). Further details are given in note 16 to the financial
statements.

Provision for expected credit losses on accounts receivable and
other receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for accounts receivable
and other receivables. The provision rates are based on days past due for
groupings of various customer segments that have similar loss patterns (i.e.,
by geography, product type, customer type and rating).

The expected loss rate is initially based on the Group’s historical observed
default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to adjust the historical
credit loss experience with forward-looking information. For instance, if
forecast economic conditions (i.e., gross domestic product) are expected
to deteriorate over the next year which can lead to an increased number
of defaults in the manufacturing sector, the historical default rates are
adjusted. At each reporting date, the historical observed default rates are
updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed default rates,
forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a significant estimate. The
amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and forecast
economic conditions. The Group’s historical credit loss experience and
forecast of economic conditions may also not be representative of a
customer’s actual default in the future. The information about the ECLs on
the Group’s accounts receivable and other receivables is disclosed in note
23 to the financial statements, respectively.

Estimation of fair value of investment properties
In the absence of current prices in an active market for similar properties,
the Group considers information from a variety of sources, including:

(@) current prices in an active market for properties of a different nature,
condition or location, adjusted to reflect those differences;

(b) recent prices of similar properties on less active markets, with
adjustments to reflect any changes in economic conditions since the
dates of the transactions that occurred at those prices; and

(c) discounted cash flow projections based on reliable estimates of
future cash flows, supported by the terms of any existing lease
and other contracts and (when possible) by external evidence such
as current market rents for similar properties in the same location
and condition, and using discount rates that reflect current market
assessments of the uncertainty in the amount and timing of the cash
flows.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Estimation of fair value of investment properties (continued)

The carrying amount of investment properties at 31 December 2022 was
RMB584,960,000 (2021: RMB531,595,000). Further details, including the
key assumptions used for fair value measurement and a sensitivity analysis,
are given in note 15 to the financial statements.

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment for
all non-financial assets at the end of each reporting period. An intangible
asset not yet available for use is tested for impairment annually and at other
times when such an indicator exists. Non-financial assets are tested for
impairment when there are indicators that the carrying amounts may not be
recoverable. An impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or a
cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher
of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The calculation
of the fair value less costs of disposal is based on available data from
binding sales transactions in an arm’s length transaction of similar assets or
observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset.
When value in use calculations are undertaken, management must estimate
the expected future cash flows from the asset or cash-generating unit and
choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of
those cash flows.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the losses
can be utilised. Significant management judgement is required to determine
the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon
the likely timing and level of future taxable profits together with future tax
planning strategies. The carrying value of deferred tax assets relating to
recognised tax losses at 31 December 2022 was RMB181,464,000 (2021:
RMB159,300,000). The amount of unrecognised tax losses at 31 December
2022 was RMB1,013,474,000 (2021: RMB554,526,000). Further details are
contained in note 30 to the financial statements.

PRC land appreciation tax (“LAT”)

The Group is subject to LAT in the PRC. The provision for LAT is based
on management’s best estimates according to the understanding of the
requirements set forth in the relevant PRC tax laws and regulations. The
actual LAT liabilities are subject to the determination by the tax authorities
upon the completion of the property development projects. The Group has
not finalised its LAT calculation and payments with the tax authorities for all
its property development projects. The final outcome could be different from
the amounts that were initially recorded, and any differences will impact
on the LAT expenses and the related provision in the period in which the
differences realise.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Net realisable value assessment of properties under development
and completed properties held for sale

The Group carried out assessment on net realisable value of properties
under development and completed properties held for sale at the end
of each reporting period and compared the costs and its net realisable
value. The net realisable value is the estimated future selling price less
estimated cost of completion or the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale (if any). The estimated future selling prices are estimated by
management with reference to the Group’s pre-sale selling prices and
the recent selling prices of similar properties in the nearby or relevant
locations. The management also estimated the future selling expenses
and the expected costs to completion by reference to the actual selling
expenses of the Groups’ completed projects, adjusted by certain current
market data, the legal and regulating framework and general market
conditions. The Group’s properties under development and completed
properties held for sale are all situated in the PRC, details of which are set
out in the consolidated statement of financial position and notes 20 and 21
to the financial statements. At 31 December 2022, the carrying amounts
of properties under development and completed properties held for sale
were approximately RMB42,475,033,000 (2021: RMB47,834,930,000)
and RMB10,212,953,000 (2021: RMB9,028,002,000), respectively, which
are expected to be recovered through future sales and stated at the lower
of cost and net realisable value. The Group carried out assessment on
net realisable value at the end of the reporting period and recognised
RMB1,2683,639,000 (2021: RMB225,073,000) and RMB1,449,493,000
(2021: RMB91,691,000) of the write-down for properties under
development and completed properties held for sale as at 31 December
2022, respectively. When there is any decrease in the net realisable value
of the properties and it is lower than the cost of the properties, loss will be
recognised on the properties under development and completed properties
held for sale in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had contingent liabilities relating
to guarantees amounting to approximately RMB19,274,110,000 (2021:
RMB18,002,298,000) in respect of mortgage facilities provided by certain
banks in connection with the mortgage loans entered into by property
buyers of the Group’s properties. Pursuant to the terms of the guarantees,
upon default in mortgage payments by these property buyers, the Group
would be responsible for repaying the outstanding mortgage principals
together with accrued interests thereon and any penalties owed by the
defaulted buyers to the banks. The Group would be entitled to take over
legal title to and possession of the related properties. These guarantees
will be released upon the earlier of (i) the satisfaction of the mortgage
loan by the buyers of the property; and (i) the issuance of the property
ownership certificate for the mortgage property and the completion of
the deregistration of the mortgage. In the opinion of the directors of the
Company, no provision for the guarantee contracts was recognised in
the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2022 as in case of default in payments, the net realisable value of the
related properties can cover the outstanding principal together with the
accrued interests and penalties. Should the actual outcome be different
from expected, provision for losses will be recognised in the consolidated
financial statements.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business units
based on their products and services and has six reportable operating
segments as follows:

(@) Property development in the PRC

(b) Project management services in the PRC
(c) Hotel operations in the PRC
(d) Property investment and management in the United States of

America (“USA” or “US”) in American Housing REIT, Inc. (“AHR”)

(e) Property investment other than AHR
() Securities trading and investment

The Group has property investment and/or management businesses in
Hong Kong, the USA and Singapore. Other than AHR which is operated in
the USA, the property investment businesses in other regions are evaluated
together and assessed as one operating segment by the management
previously and up to 31 December 2022.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating segments
separately for the purpose of making decisions about resources allocation
and performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on
reportable segment profit/(loss), which is a measure of adjusted profit/(loss)
before tax. The adjusted profit/(loss) before tax is measured consistently
with the Group’s profit/(loss) before tax except that certain other gains
and losses, corporate and unallocated income and expenses (including
unallocated finance costs) are excluded from this measurement.

Segment assets exclude deferred tax assets, unallocated head office and
corporate assets as these assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude deferred tax liabilities, tax liabilities and
unallocated head office and corporate liabilities as these liabilities are
managed on a group basis.

Except for the new reportable operating segment of hotel operations in the
PRC since January 2022, there are no differences from the Group’s annual
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022 on the basis
of segmentation or on the basis of measurement of segment profit or loss,
segment assets and liabilities.
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2022412 H31H

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

Segment revenue and segment results

4. RKEIWERRE)

2 EB s K o0 B SRAR

Segment revenue Segment results

2 ez DEBELE
2022 2021 2022 2021
20224 20214 20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AR®TR ARBTT AR®TT
Property development in the PRC 7 B 2 1) 2 54 & 9,591,489 13,321,003 (2,395,838) 492,287
Project management services R E 218 E B8RS
in the PRC 11,366 61,825 4,348 58,734
Hotel operations in the PRC R ZBE &8 12,456 = (1,503) =
Property investment and BAHRETT Z MERE &
management on AHR =i 14,738 14,441 9,683 9,912
Property investment other than AHR AHRIASM 2 #1345 & 10,897 9,493 21,065 2,038
Securities trading and investment  EFHEE RIKE 16,110 14,734 (190,930) 127,351
9,657,056 18,421,496 (2,553,175) 690,322
Unallocated corporate income APDEARUWA 820 326
Other gains and losses H e g5 18 (187,153) (16,942)
Unallocated corporate expenses RAOBEAFRALZ (9,039) (15,058)
(Loss)/profit before tax M AT (E1E) & A (2,748,547) 658,648
2022 2021
2022%F 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETT
Segment assets DERE
Property development in the PRC R B YR 59,913,866 66,687,630
Project management services in the PRC N E 718 B &1 RE 5,030 62,444
Hotel operations in the PRC R B2 5 & 8 132,668 =
Property investment and management on AHR HAHRETZMERERERE 223,768 202,296
Property investment other than AHR AHRUASNZ M ERE 397,348 357,273
Securities trading and investment HEEENKE 251,586 427,489
Segment assets DEPEE 60,924,266 67,737,132
Unallocated assets KOBLEE 619,633 502,741
Total assets 1BEE 61,543,899 68,239,873
Segment liabilities SEEE
Property development in the PRC AR B YR 54,989,960 58,804,650
Project management services in the PRC KB 218 B EERE 682 1,676
Property investment and management on AHR HAHRETZMERERER 62,409 63,024
Property investment other than AHR AHRUASINZ 3% E 120,927 115,475
Segment liabilities DEPEE 55,173,978 58,984,825
Unallocated liabilities AOBRAR 1,049,676 1,056,391
Total liabilities BEE 56,223,654 60,041,216
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. REFTER(E)
(CONTINUED)
Other segment information HibpHER
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZE2022F12A31B L EE
Property
Project investment and Property
Property  management Hotel management investment  Securities
development services  operations onAHR  otherthan tradingand  Segment
inthe PRC inthe PRC  inthe PRC in the USA AHR  investment total  Unallocated Total
RERY
RbEZ AHREfTZ
RbEZ EREE  MeElz NERE AHRMSNZ  BAEE
NERR B EEEE REE  N¥RE kRkE  A04E AARB @it
RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
AEETR  ARETR ARMTR  ARETR ARETr ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
Addtions to investment properties  RANERNE - BER
and property, plant and equipment  REZAE 570 - 4213 - - - 4,783 2% 4,808
Depreciation of property, plantand ~~ ¥1% « BE KR ETE
equipment 16,526 - 4,735 - 2 - 21,287 1,254 22,541
Amortisation of infangble assets EVEERS 44,887 - 2 - - - 44,909 - 44,909
Fair value oss)/gain oninvestment %A NE 2 ATE(ER)/
properties W& - - - (135) 19,454 - 19,319 - 19,319
Fair value loss on financial assets at ~ RAT(EFABRZEBE
fair value through profit or loss EZATERR - - - - - (207,039)  (207,039) - (207,039)
Write-clown of properties on properties St ERERIFELE
under development and completed VB ZIAEENE
properties held for sale to net L EE S
realisable value 2,656,869 - - - - - 2,656,869 - 2,656,869
Provision for impairment of goodwil ~ EE I E&R 124,365 - - - - - 124,365 - 124,365
Impairment losses on accounts JEMES RE NGB
receivable and other receivables HEER 11,604 - - - - - 11,604 - 11,604
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4, REFHFER(E)
(CONTINUED)
Other segment information (continued) Hib o IHER (E)
For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE2021F12A31BLLEE
Property
investment
Project and Property
Property management management  investment  Securities
development services onAHR  otherthan trading and Segment
inthePRC  inthe PRC inthe USA AHR investment total  Unallocated Total
REEHAHR
AhEZ Rz ETzUE  AHRMSNZ HHEE
WERR BAEERE REREE NERE k&& pair L B @zt
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR  ARETR ARETR ARMTR AR%Tn  AR¥TR  AR¥TR  ARETR
Addltions to investment properties ~ REWERNEZ  BER
and property, plant and equipment  FXEZRE 532,305 - - - - 532,305 12 532,317
Depreciation of property, plant % BERAENE
and equipment 2,551 58 6 - - 2,615 1,133 3,748
Amortisation of intangible assets B AESH 41,89 - - - - 41,8% - 41,89
Fair value gain/(oss) on investment &% 2 AFER/
properties (BR) - - 129 (23 = (104) = (104)
Fair value gain on financial assets at  RATEF ARz 2R
fair value through profit or loss RE NHEYE - - = = 112,618 112,618 = 112,618
Write-down of properties on HRERE RFHE
properties under development HEZBRINE
and completed properties held ERES VD
for sale to net realisable value 2R FE 166,764 - - - - 166,764 - 166,764
Geographical information & & R
Revenue from
external customers Non-current assets
REIMBEF Wz FREBEE
2022 2021 2022 2021
20224 20214 20224 20215
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARBT T ARBTT ARETT
The PRC i 9,616,380 183,383,569 932,408 1,118,698
The USA EYe 15,482 29,633 217,740 200,562
Singapore ESDIIE: 7,438 6,740 317,236 267,549
Hong Kong B 17,756 1,554 102,885 101,241
9,657,056 13,421,496 1,570,269 1,688,050

The geographical information of revenue from external customers is
based on the geographical markets of the customers, and the locations
of properties and investments. The geographical information of the non-
current assets, excluding deferred tax assets and financial instruments, is
based on the locations of the assets.

Information about major customers
During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, no single customer
has contributed 10% or more of the Group’s total revenue.
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TRITEER

REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME 5. WaRkHEAMUA
An analysis of revenue is as follows: WA T -
2022 2021
2022%F 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR ARBT T
Revenue from contracts with customers EFE &K
Sales of properties in the PRC B E Y E 9,591,489 13,321,003
Project management services in the PRC R 218 B EERT 11,366 61,825
Hotel operations in the PRC PR B 2 B S i 12,456 -
9,615,311 13,382,828
Revenue from other sources E iz KR
Gross rental income from investment properties HEMFEAS WA B 25,635 23,934
Dividend income from financial assets at fair value BAFEFABRZEREELZ
through profit or loss & B WA 16,110 14,734
9,657,056 13,421,496
Revenue from contracts with customers EESHWME
(i) Disaggregated revenue information (i) Was 5 I
For the year ended 31 December 2022 BZE2022512831B L EE
Project
Sales of management Hotel
properties services operations
Segments Panil in the PRC in the PRC in the PRC Total
A
i ZIEH RHEZ
HEWE EER% BIEEE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARET T ARETT ARETR
Type of goods or services and & IRTE 2 8B K%
geographical markets B miE
Sale of properties in the PRC iaal k=27 E3 9,591,489 - - 9,591,489
Project management services KRB Z I8 B &R
in the PRC - 11,366 - 11,366
Hotel operations in the PRC AR B 2 B G i - - 12,456 12,456
Total revenue from contracts with ~ NEER E & AN a5 4858
external customers 9,591,489 11,366 12,456 9,615,311
Timing of revenue recognition W2
Goods transferred at a point in time FA % — i i BhiE i ) 9,591,489 - 5,602 9,597,091
Services transferred over time I P i) 5 28 AR 7 - 11,366 6,854 18,220
Total revenue from contracts with ~ NEER P A #4858
external customers 9,591,489 11,366 12,456 9,615,311
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5. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME (CONTINUED) 5. WakHEAMUWA(E)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued) EEEHWE(E)
(i) Disaggregated revenue information (continued) (i) Wiz &R ()
For the year ended 31 December 2021 BZE2021F12831HILEE
Project
Sales of management
properties services
Segments 2 EB in the PRC in the PRC Total
R RHEZ
HEWE 15 EER%E st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETT ARETR

Types of goods or services and BRI RE 2 FERI K

geographical markets Bl W5
Sale of properties in the PRC R EEYE 13,321,003 - 13,321,003
Project management services R ZIEE B8 R%E

in the PRC - 61,825 61,825
Total revenue from contracts HNERR A MM ES 4R EE

with external customers 13,321,003 61,825 13,382,828

Timing of revenue recognition W i e AR B A

Goods transferred at a point in time A — B i B iE 13,321,003 - 13,321,003
Services transferred over time I3 B T 838 8 AR 7S - 61,825 61,825
Total revenue from contracts SRR P A A e 4 EE
with external customers 13,321,003 61,825 13,382,828
Revenue recognised in the current reporting period that was AR EEHEERL T AREHONZENEE
included in the contract liabilities at the beginning of the reporting ZUEITE
period:
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R AR¥T T

Sale of properties in the PRC AR EY s 7,713,410 10,125,280




5.

REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME (CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
(i) Performance obligations

Information about the Group’s performance obligations is

summarised below:

Sale of properties

The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of the
properties and advance payments are required pursuant to the

terms of sale and purchase agreements.

Rendering of project management services

The performance obligation is satisfied over time as services are

rendered and bills are issued when services are rendered.

Hotel operations

The performance obligation is satisfied as services are rendered or
goods are delivered and payment is generally received in advance.

The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the remaining
performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) as at 31

December 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

5.
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Wi R E A (&)
EF &S (H)

(i)

B EE
ERASBERENEE2ERBMRMT

YR E
BHEEDIRINDERERT  BA
RIBEE B W R IR FROR -

FEMIR A B FEIRIE
FR#VE ETH 10 B4R A AR5 2 AE 4R (AR 7%
1R ) BLBR B8 BEPE RFFE B AT ©

JBJE EE
HRERUEBREXRERNERE—RE
SEWEIE - At BAOE TREERK -

R20225 20216124310 - A E
BRTBROBECRBITHIDRET) Z
RHEHRMAT

2022 2021
2022%F 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBT T
Within one year —&F R 18,797,317 12,103,855
After one year —F 1% 15,721,954 21,878,848
34,519,271 33,982,703

An analysis of other income is as follows: HEMBRAZ AT -
2022 2021
2022%F 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARET T
Interest income B U A 7,492 30,793
Government grants HAT& B 87 2,914
Others Hith 11,241 10,317

18,820 44,024
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rates ranging from 4.75% to 12.50% (2021: 4.95% to 12.80%) per annum.

[EZ=12.50[E (20214 : 4.95
FIRF LB A o

6. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES, NET 6. HiRBIREEFEHE
2022 2021
2022%F 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F R AR¥TR
Fair value gain/(loss) on fair value of investment WEMENFEZ A ERZ
properties (note 15) (E518) (Mf5E15) 19,319 (104)
Fair value (loss)/gain on financial assets at fair value RATEGFABR EREEL
through profit or loss ANFE(ER), W (207,039) 112,618
Exchange losses [& 5 518 (187,153) (16,942)
Write-down of properties under development WORERFUERIFIELEZ
and completed properties held for sale to B LY¥EnZEFE
net realisable value (2,656,869) (166,764)
Provision for impairment of goodwill (note 16) EEREREE(HE16) (124,365) -
Impairment losses on accounts receivable and other & Uk BR 7k K L 4th i U 3 0B R (B 5 18
receivables (note 23) (FfzE23) (11,604) -
(3,167,711) (71,192)
7. FINANCE COSTS 7. ®WERX
2022 2021
2022%F 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AR¥TT
Interests on: ATEEZFE
Bank and other borrowings RITREMBEE 719,716 1,323,241
Interest arising from revenue contracts B R E & 2 T E 1,691,864 1,525,514
Less: Capitalised in properties under development B RERPYEEARLE (2,296,812) (2,758,838)
114,768 89,917
Borrowing costs from bank and other borrowings have been capitalised at KEARTLREMEE ZEEKRAD ENTF4.75

EZE12.80E) 7%



(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The Group’s (loss)/profit before tax is arrived at after charging:
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BRBiAT (E518) 8RR

AREZBRBA(BR) EHMENRTIISE

2022 2021
2022%F 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARBTT
Cost of properties sold B EMEKA 8,805,512 12,152,459
Cost of services R 75 Ak AN 20,977 3,091
Total employee benefit expenses: B EBFIFRA A%
Directors’ emoluments (note 9) EEHMN(FIE9) 1,049 1,023
Other staff: HEMET :
Salaries and other benefits e R EMET 90,379 122,661
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIKE R B K 8,949 9,168
100,377 132,852
Less: Capitalised in properties under development o REBEERYEEZ AL (6,418) (27,144)
93,959 105,708
Auditor’s remuneration 1% 25 A 55 M 2,880 2,380
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - BMELEEITE 20,036 2,158
Lease payments not included in the measurement of ~ SREt AR E B B EMHEEN T
lease liabilities 368 1,483
The Group’s (loss)/profit before tax is AEBEZBRER(EBR),SEFMEFTA
arrived at after crediting: T3&1E -
Interest income B WA 7,492 30,793
Gross rental income from investment properties REMERS WA BT 25,635 23,934
Less: Direct operating expenses incurred for: B TEAZ EEEERAY -
— investment properties generating rental income —EAHSRAZIREYE (3,371) (3,068)
— investment properties not generating rental income ~ — W E4AES WA Z RE W% (153) (142)
(3,524) (8,210)
22,111 20,724
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9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 9. EBEERFETHAEETM
REMUNERATION
Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, disclosed RIE EWHRA - FE QA KB % 383(1)()
pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong (b) * OEROEARAR(HBESMEER)HE
Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of BIE2EIRTE 2 FAEE R FEETHA B HFH A
Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows: o
2022 2021
2022%F 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARET T
Fees W 636 597
Other emoluments: E A B -
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e SRR EMER 368 381
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIKEFIFHEIE 5K 45 45
1,049 1,023
For the year ended 31 December 2022 B ZE2022F128318LLEE
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefit
and benefits scheme
Fees in kind contributions Total
e ERR EBREF
e EYEF sHEIfER wst

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTRT AR®BTR AR®BTR

Executive directors: HITEE -
Mr. Zhang* aR ST - - - -
Mr. Zhang Guogiang ok BY SR SE A - 368 45 413
Non-executive director: FHTTESE -
Ms. Huang Huang# =+ - - - -

Independent non-executive directors: B FHEHTTEE -

Mr. Liu Da L= AE 212 - - 212
Mr. Ma Yuntao BERiE 212 - - 212
Dr. Li Huiqun*** B L 212 - - 212

636 368 45 1,049
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9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 9. EERTETHAEEM(E)
REMUNERATION (CONTINUED)
For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE2021F12831HLLFE
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefit
and benefits scheme
Fees in kind contributions Total
e R EBKRERE
Hwe REVEF E RS st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%ETrT AR%®Tx AR%®Tx AR%®Tx
Executive directors: HITESE -
Mr. Zhang* RIAE - - - -
Mr. Zhang Guogiang o B 58 S A - 381 45 426
Non-executive director: FERTTEE -
Ms. Huang HuangZ + - - - -
Independent non-executive directors: B HHTEE -
Mr. Liu Da Bz AE 199 - - 199
Dr. Liu Qiao** LR 159 - - 159
Mr. Ma Yuntao @i E 199 - - 199
Dr. Li Huiqun*** THEEHE L 40 = = 40
597 381 45 1,023

Mr. Zhang is also the chief executive of the Company.

ke

Dr. Liu Qiao was resigned as an independent non-executive director of
the Company on 18 October 2021.

Dr. Li Huiqun was appointed as an independent non-executive director
of the Company on 18 October 2021.

There was no arrangement under which the directors waived or agreed to
waive any remuneration during the reporting period (2021: Nil).

RELEMARRRITHAEE, -

21518 £ 1N2021F10 18 B BHEAR R AL
FEMITES -

ZEHELN2021F10A 18R EEEAARA
RIB IERITES -

HEMEAMBEER LA R LR ERREM
FeRHE (20214 « &) o

129



/*

130  Zensun Enterprises Limited IFRIEXERAT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 R R B =
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10. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 10. EEEREHF AL
The five highest paid employees during the year were neither a director nor FRNABERFATWIFEARAIESHIEETE
chief executive of the Company (2021: Nil), details of whose remuneration FEHAB (20214 : &) » HEKREEI > 21
are set out in note 9 above. Details of the remuneration for the year of the HR EXKHF9 - BEERNTR(2021F : A)E
five (2021: five) highest paid employees who are neither a director nor chief R AT (WHFEARREZEEMIEEZTETHA
executive of the Company are as follows: B)¥HM BT
2022 2021
2022%F 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARET T
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EBREYEF 4,373 4,377
The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest paid Mfif'\?—'?ﬁ”%ﬁﬂ”z;%%/\i(3F§$&3EI
employees whose remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows: ZIBAB)Z BT
2022 2021
2022%F 20214
HK$500,001 to HK$1,000,000 500,00178 7L E1,000,000/8 7T 4 3
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7T 21,500,000/ 7T 1 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7c=2,000,0007% 7T - 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001/ 7L £2,500,0007% 7T - -
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 75 £3,000,0007 7T - -
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001/ L %3,500,000/% 7T - -
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11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 11. Fr8®iRExX

2022 2021
2022%F 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F R AR¥TR

Current tax — charge for the year REAFIE — F AR
- Hong Kong Profits Tax — BEBFIEH - -
- PRC CIT — BB EMET 207,911 291,669
- PRC LAT — BB £ M 3B (E R 158,875 126,325
— Overseas Corporate Income Tax —BIMEERTISR 106 118
Over provision in prior years BAFEBRERE (31) (10)
366,861 418,102
Deferred tax (note 30) IRIERL (HTa£30) (172,881) (144,496)
Total tax charge for the year FABIRF AR 193,980 273,606

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made in the consolidated
financial statements as the Group had no assessable profits generated in
Hong Kong for both years.

PRC CIT is calculated at the applicable income tax rate of 25% on the
assessable profits for both years. In accordance with the PRC Corporate
Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding income tax will be levied on dividends
declared to foreign investors from the enterprises with foreign investments
established in the PRC. The Group is therefore liable to withholding taxes
on dividends distributable by those subsidiaries established in the PRC in
respect of their earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

PRC LAT is levied at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% on the
appreciation of land value, being the proceeds of sales of properties less
deductible expenditures including cost of land use rights and all property
development expenditures.

The subsidiaries in the USA are generally subject to Federal Income Tax at a
rate of 21% (2021: 21%) on the taxable income and the statutory regulation
of State Income Tax in different jurisdiction for the year ended 31 December
2022. Certain of these subsidiaries retained with undistributed income are
also subjected to an additional personal holding company tax at 20% on
the taxable income. Certain subsidiaries are limited liability companies which
are by default disregarded entities (i.e. viewed as divisions of the holding
company) and would be taxed as part of their holding company for federal
tax purposes.

HRAARERMEFERNDERESELER
Bom A - F W ERER S M B HRRABEFE
W B

BEREHETE - BREPBRCEMEHE -
FERBIRKZINE S ERINERE E SRR
BBHEBR10%BINAERH - Bt - AEBEA
LA R BIRK 37 A BT B A B 5 20084F1 A1 H LA
BREL A B A PR S A AR B8 FB 0% -

PELHIEER IR EREERIONE
60% 2 ZEFRBY - BEBRRHEWEMRS
FIERG L ERAEERRMEYEERMAX
FREFNIR B ST HOBREE o

B E2022F12A31HIEFE » RER KB
RNA— MR T RIERBUAILZ21% (2021 F -
21%) 2B BAAEHBHE RN HBLFTETT
B aEERMATEHE ZEEHRG - BBERDIR
WAZETZERB AR NS ERH WA Z
20% 2 B AR R R ANER - B T HEB A A
BERRAR @ RETHEAEE(AEAERA
AlZPE) - iSpEEHE M S EFERA A —3
DETERIE -
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31 December 2022
11.

12.

2022412 H31H

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED) 11. FiEHAX (&)
Income tax expense for the year is reconciled to the profit before tax per the FERNFTERFE S BAR A B IR TR AT R A
consolidated statement of profit or loss as follows: HERIAT -
2022 2021
2022%F 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR ARBT T
(Loss)/profit before tax BRE R (E1R), & (2,748,547) 658,648
Tax at the statutory tax rate of 25% (2021: 25%) A ERE25%(20214F : 25%)
AHE A (687,137) 164,662
Effect of different tax rates on operations in FEHMRAER S ERETR 2
other jurisdictions p (53) (168)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax purpose  NRI 17 5z H 2 Bl 75 52 28 138,260 12,857
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose BERBMAZ RIS 2 (10,075) (31,838)
PRC LAT R B 1 (E R 158,875 126,325
Tax effect of PRC LAT R+ IR ER 2 BB (39,719) (31,581)
Tax effect of temporary differences not recognised AERE R EZRE 2 RGTE 519,123 18,306
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERZHBEE 2 RS2 117,473 16,027
Utilisation of tax losses previously not recognised B AT ARRER 2 FHIBEE (2,736) (974)
Over provision in prior years BEFEBEEE (31) (10)
Income tax expenses for the year FRRERHEX 193,980 273,606
DIVIDENDS 12. RE

The directors of the Company did not recommend the payment of a
dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: Nil).

LFEFEEZRE

RABESWNEHIKITEZE2022F12 A31H
(20214F : &) ©
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(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE  13. ZAASBEARLESR(EE) B
TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY I

The calculation of basic (loss)/earnings per share is based on: BREN(EER) BFTHEATERE
2022 2021
2022%F 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBT T
(Loss)/earnings (E58) B
(Loss)/profit attributable to owners of the Company NREHAE ARG (ER),%HH
used in the basic (loss)/earnings per share calculation BRI EGREAR(EE), BF (2,946,113) 399,470
2022 2021
2022%F 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBT T
Shares 4l
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in FREEITEBRNELSE
issue during the year used in the basic AR ESRERN(ER) BT
(loss)/earnings per share calculation 1,913,387 1,913,387
No diluted (loss)/earmnings per share amounts were presented for the years AR AEBRE 20224 K2021E12 A31H
ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 as the Group had no potentially I EEYEEFH S RTE R - WA

dilutive ordinary shares in issue during these years. FEERED TR EE (FR) AT o
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31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

14. V¥ - - BERRXRE

Furniture,
office
Land Leasehold equipment
and improve- and motor
buildings Hotel ment vehicles Total
HE & -BOZE
TREF EIE MEEE BRERRE met
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R AR®FR AR%T AR¥TF R AR¥TR
31 December 2022 2022F12A31H
Cost: 2%
At 1 January 2022 202261 A1H 434,177 138,481 2,281 22,223 597,162
Additions NE - - - 4,808 4,808
Transfer from investment property & EIRE Y 13,467 - - - 13,467
Exchange realignment [ 5 A 2,750 - 128 61 2,939
At 31 December 2022 M2022%12A31H 450,394 138,481 2,409 27,092 618,376
Accumulated depreciation: ZHFE
At 1 January 2022 M2022%1 818 5,982 - 1,751 14,801 22,534
Depreciation provided WERE 14,309 4,735 142 3,355 22,541
Exchange realignment PE H A% 495 - 71 67 633
At 31 December 2022 M2022%12A31H 20,786 4,735 1,964 18,223 45,708
Net carrying amount: BREFE :
At 1 January 2022 202291 81H 428,195 138,481 530 7,422 574,628
At 31 December 2022 R2022%F12A318 429,608 133,746 445 8,869 572,668




14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Annual Report 2022

14. % - BER&EE)

TRITEER

(CONTINUED)
Furniture,
office
Land Leasehold equipment
and improve- and motor
buildings Hotel ment vehicles Total
HE &R BAZE
T RIEF IS MEEE - RERAE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR AR¥T T ARMF T AR¥TR ARMTF T
31 December 2021 2021F12A31H
Cost: A
At 1 January 2021 202161 A18 44,554 - 2,382 20,664 67,600
Additions NE 391,030 138,481 - 2,806 532,317
Disposals HE - - - (1,183) (1,183)
Exchange realignment b 5 A% (1,407) - (101) (64) (1,572)
At 31 December 2021 72021F12831H 434177 138,481 2,281 22,223 597,162
Accumulated depreciation: ZHFE .
At 1 January 2021 20211 /1R 5,129 - 1,732 13,417 20,278
Depreciation provided WERE 1,030 = 89 2,629 3,748
Disposals HeE - - - (1,183) (1,183)
Exchange realignment M 5 (177) - (70) (62) (309)
At 31 December 2021 M2021612H31H 5,982 - 1,751 14,801 22,534
Net carrying amount: BREEE :
At 1 January 2021 20211 A1H 39,425 = 650 7,247 47,322
At 31 December 2021 M2021F12H31H 428,195 138,481 530 7,422 574,628
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31 December 2022

15.

2022412 A31H
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

15. BREYE

2022 2021

2022%F 20214

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETR AR¥TR

Carrying amount at 1 January M B1B ZEREE 531,595 552,154
Transfer to owner-occupied property BEREHA ANMhRAYE (13,467) =
Net gain/(loss) from a fair value adjustment FARANFEz Y (FE)FE 19,319 (104)
Exchange realignment BE H, F#E 47,513 (20,455)
Carrying amount at 31 December K12 A31H 2 RAEE 584,960 531,595

All of the Group’s property interests held under operating leases to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are measured using the fair
value model and are classified and accounted for as investment properties.
The investment properties with an aggregate fair value of RMB495,852,000
(2021: RMB444,765,000) have been pledged to secure the Group’s
borrowings (note 38).

The fair values of the investment properties situated in Hong Kong,
Singapore and the USA as at 31 December 2022 are based on the
valuations carried out by APAC Asset Valuation and Consulting Limited
(“APAC”). APAC is the member of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors and
Valuers and an independent qualified professional valuer not connected
with the Group.

In estimating the fair value of the investment properties, the highest and
best use of the investment properties is the current use. The fair values of
the investment properties are derived from the capitalisation of net income
method with due allowance for the reversionary income.

At the end of the reporting period, management of the Group works with
valuers to establish and determine the appropriate valuation techniques
and inputs for Level 3 fair value measurements. Where there is a material
change in the fair value of the assets, the causes of the fluctuations will be
reported to the directors of the Company.

The investment properties are leased to third parties under operating leases,
further summary details of which are included in note 18 to the financial
statements.

REFFANEEHEREABRNESNE
EAABZHERZERAFERAGE -
WREBREDMEAR - R FEAEARE
495,852,000 (20214 : A R ¥ 444,765,000
T 2 WEMECEMURE R E® 2 £ (M
££38) °

IRAEE - FT I KRR Z KB MER 20225
12A31 B 2 R FEHENTREETHRE
BMARAR([BRDFTETHEETE - BAA
Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors and Valuers
SEHEASEVEBEZBIAREREEM
Ef -

EAHREMELATER REVERTERH &
ERERRRFAE - REMEAFERRAF
BENMUERE - UAERKRAELBEERME -

NBEMHEEER AREEEERGEMNS
1B RME=MAVEFERLNREEE 2
BERMEBABE - HEEZAFEBERNK
8 HEBHREASRARAESRSE -

REMERBEEHERATE=T  HE—
FHBHBRN I B REM 8 -
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15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED) 15. REVE(E)
Fair value hierarchy AFEER
The following table illustrates the fair value measurement hierarchy of the TR RAEFBEEY R AN EAEELR ¢

Group’s investment properties:

31 December 31 December
2022 2021
2022%F 20214
12A31H 12A31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBT
Fair value measurement using significant RAEAXT AJ BRI A5
unobservable inputs (Level 3) RNFEFE(E=AR)
Recurring fair value measurement for investment AR IR 2 REE 2
properties located in REENTESE
- Hong Kong —&8 63,443 63,485
— Singapore — sk 303,777 267,548
- USA —XH 217,740 200,562
584,960 531,595
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements FERN P —REE —F B EE AR A F
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3 (2021: Bt @B 25N B mizfsE A siEHE

Nil). =2 ER (20214 « ) o
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31 December 2022

Set out below is a summary of the valuation technique used and the key
inputs to the valuation of the Group’s significant investment properties

categorised into Level 3:

2022412 H31H
15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED) 15.

REMEE)

TXEHINAEESERE=RzETEREMF
HEMERZHERMREZGABIBZME

Range or weighted average

YIRS E)
Properties Valuation technique Significant unobservable inputs 2022 2021
L/ES fh{E i ERFAEREA#E 20224 20214
Offices located in Hong Income capitalisation Monthly market rent (HK$ per sq. ft.) 44.9 48.6
Kong with a carrying value approach FAmEAS(BFAFRET)
of RMB63,443,000 W AE AR Term yield (per annum) 2.0% 2.0%
(2021: RMB63,485,000) FHIW S R (FF)
NREBRABAREK Reversion yield (per annum) 2.2% 2.2%
63,443,0007T (20214 : BRI R(EE)
AR #63,485,0007T )
ZHRE
Commercial and residential Income capitalisation Monthly market rent (SGD per sg. ft.) 4.1-7.1 3.7-7.5

units located in Singapore
with a carrying value of
RMB303,777,000
(2021: RMB267,548,000)
LR ET AN RRE(EA R
303,777,000 (20214 :
AR#267,548,0007T )
ZERAREEEA

Senior housing communities
located in the USA with a
carrying value of
RMB192,074,000
(2021: RMB177,217,000)

R ERREEARE
192,074,0007T (2021 4F :
AR¥177,217,0007T)
ZREFERE

approach

WABARLE

Income capitalisation
approach

WABERNEE

B ATSAE (BFRRIINHET)
Term yield (per annum)
FHWRE(BF)

Reversion yield (per annum)
EREE ()

Annual market rent (USD per sg. ft.)
BFEMIHEE(FFHRET)
Term yield (per annum)
FHWHE(BEF)

Reversion yield (per annum)
BRI (54

2.6%-3.0%

2.8%-3.2%

22.0-24.7

7.5%-8.5%

8.0%-9.0%

2.6%-2.8%

2.8%-3.0%

22.0-24.4

7.5%-8.5%

8.0%-9.0%

A significant increase (decrease) in the market rent in isolation would
result in a significant increase (decrease) in the fair value of the investment
properties. A significant increase (decrease) in the term yield and reversion
yield in isolation would result in a significant decrease (increase) in the fair
value of the investment properties.

There has been no change from the valuation technique used in the prior
years.

Mz EBEAREMORD) @ EBIREME
RFEREENORD) o FHUE R REHIK
BmEFEBABEMORD) EEEREMERT
EXRERD &) °

PR S E R SR FEAER o
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16. GOODWILL 16. BHE
RMB’000
AR¥T T
At 1 January 2021 and 31 December 2021: 720211 A1H KX2021F12H318 :
Cost BN 424,722
Accumulated impairment Z2ERE -
Net carrying amount BREFE 424,722

Cost at 1 January 2022, net of accumulated impairment
Impairment during the year

Cost and net carrying amount at 31 December 2022

At 31 December 2022:
Cost IB#N

Accumulated impairment

Net carrying amount

Impairment testing of goodwill

The recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit has been determined
based on a value in use calculation using cash flow projections based
on financial budgets covering a four-year period approved by senior
management. The discount rate applied to the cash flow projections is
30.13% (2021: 29.68%).

Assumptions were used in the value in use calculation of the cash-
generating unit for 31 December 2022. The following describes the key
assumption on which management has based its cash flow projections to
undertake impairment testing of goodwill:

Discount rate — The discount rate used is before tax and reflects specific
risks relating to the relevant unit.

Selling price — Management determined the selling price based on the
selling price of the pre-sale units in the same project or the prevailing market
price of the comparable properties with similar size, usage and location.

Costs to completion — Management determined the costs to completion
based on the budgets approved by management, which is estimated
according to the past project construction experience and its knowledge of
expected market prices of land and construction cost.

The value assigned to the key assumptions is consistent with external
information sources.

R2022%F1 A1 8 2k A (Fkk RHRE)
RERZRE

R2022%12 31 B 2 A K BREFE

2EHRIE

FREDFE

424,722
(124,365)

300,357

M2022F12H311 :

424,722
(124,365)

300,357

EMERERR

R EEBN 2 A Y E €58 R IEE A EET
HET Z:TEFCHANESREBIERSR
EEEMLEZRENFTEE 2 MBEEE - 1
&R ETERE R Z 8538 % 530.13% (20214 :
29.68%) °

FTE2022F 12 A31B 2B e EABMAFEAEE
BEFARE - TEEEARERSREEANEE
EEITRE R 2 BRI T

BRI R — PR MR R BT ATRE R X - kIR
SRR BB 2 FERAR ©

EE-EEERERA-—HEREENL 2 EER
ERERE BeRMIEZA LBMEZET
mEEEEE -

TIXA-EEERBEEREEHAEACHESE

SEIRA  BEDREBEBERAERERKLE
A SRR ATRETE 2 T M5 o

HTRERER SRBEEIINDERRIR 5
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31 December 2022

17.

18.

2022412 H31H

INTANGIBLE ASSETS 17. B EE
Contract
benefit
ERM=E
RMB’000
AR® T
Cost and net carrying amount at 1 January 2021 7R2021F1 A1 8 2 A M EREFE 199,000
Accumulated amortisation EETEEE (41,895)
Cost and net carrying amount at 31 December 2021 and R2021F12A31H &2022F1A1HZ
1 January 2022 AR EREFE 157,105
Additions NE 88
Accumulated amortisation BN T (44,909)
Cost and net carrying amount at 31 December 2022 2022412 A31 B 2 A R BREFE 112,284
The amortization is recorded into the property under development and Bt ARBERYEL EERWEE —FE A

transferred to the profit or loss together with the revenue is recognized.

LEASES

The Group as a lessor

The Group leases its investment properties (note 15) consisting of offices,
commercial and residential units, senior housing communities located in
Hong Kong, Singapore and the USA under operating lease arrangements.
The terms of the leases generally require the tenants to pay the security
deposits and provide for periodic rent adjustments according to the then
prevailing market conditions. Rental income recognised by the Group during
the year was RMB25,635,000 (2021: RMB23,934,000), details of which are

included in note 5 to the financial statements.

At 31 December 2022, the undiscounted lease payments receivable by
the Group in future periods under non-cancellable operating leases with its

Bz e
18. #HE

AEBERAEBEA
AEBBELCEHELHEAEMRES
i REBENKEYWE(KE15) @ 215
AN HAREEELA  REEERS - HE(K
FEEERAFP I MIERIZS  UREERR
AN TEHAERS - AEBFEARINES
WA B AR #25 6350007 (20214 : AR
23,934,0007T) © HFFBEH R BIREKMES ©

R2022%F12A31H - HEASBERIEEEHEF
AR ST E R BRI ERIE N

tenants are as follows: T:
2022 2021
2022%F 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARBT T
Within one year —FER 24,612 22,810
After one year but within two years —F U EERFERA 19,815 17,764
After two years but within three years MELA FE=FAA 17,113 16,191
After three years but within four years ZFEBEEFEUA 17,498 16,440
After four years but within five years & EEBRFLRA 17,891 16,810
After five years BBERF 24,987 40,667

121,916 130,682
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PLEDGED DEPOSITS, RESTRICTED BANK CiRHERS SREIBTESBRE
BALANCES AND CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS EREESEEEHR
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETT
Pledged deposits BEfEe
— Current —BNER 137,515 211,289
- Non-current —JERNHEA - 4,587
137,515 215,876
Restricted bank balances SRR IR TS 24 1,365,905 1,457,690
Cash and cash equivalents RENRRESEMBEIER 488,199 1,838,967

Pledged deposits represent bank deposits of RMB130,921,000 (2021:
RMB198,421,000) and deposits held with financial institutions of
RMB6,594,000 (2021: RMB17,455,000) pledged to banks and financial
institutions to secure the facilities granted to the Group and the mortgage
loan facilities granted by certain banks to certain property buyers of the
Group’s properties. The pledged deposits will be released upon the
settlement of the relevant borrowings and the expiry of the mortgage
guarantees provided to the property buyers. There is no bank deposits and
deposits held with financial institutions (2021: RMB4,587,000) have been
pledged to secure the Group’s non-current borrowings which are classified
as non-current assets.

Restricted bank balances are required, pursuant to the relevant regulations
in the PRC, that certain amount of presale proceeds of properties be placed
as guarantee deposits in designated bank accounts for the construction
of the relevant properties. The deposits can only be used for payments for
construction costs of the relevant properties with approval.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating or fixed rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited with creditworthy banks
with no recent history of default. The carrying amounts of cash and cash
equivalents approximate to their fair values.

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances of the
Group denominated in RMB amounted to RMB1,974,886,000 (2021:
RMB3,488,635,000). The RMB is not freely convertible into other
currencies, however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other
currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

EHEFZRSCECERTRITESHMERE ZF
TR AR #130,921,0007T (20214 : AR
¥ 198,421,000 ) R E MBI FTRAR
# 6,594,000 7T (2021 4F = A R # 17,455,000
TL)  MESR T AEBZ@MERETHRITRT
AEBMYEZETYEERZEBERRME -
ERFZESEREBREEEEERIEETYE
BRZIZBERIBERE - WERTERAK
S RMEPTEITE R (20214 © AR #4,587,000
JO) B WESAEEIERNHER - AltH
HAERBDEE -

R GIRITESRIBRBEDRBERN - AlD
EXEEMBHBEZE TEEFAEERITAA
ERHEBENEREETRZARBVE 2R - &KL
% BRERBEH RN EBYEZZ
SERA o

RITRERE A FRITERNEZZHHEE
M ERBREA R o RITERD T ALHL TR
R AEAREZRT - BE AR FEERR
ZARHERE A HERE

RBREHEEER AEBUARBEZR
& RIB1TRE R A AR EE1,974,886,0007T (2021
& AR #3,488,6350007T) ° AR T4
BB AEMEE - AW BREFBEALZ
CONEZIRIEH ) RLEE - EEURGESER
) AREREEAEREEITINEZISHR
TARKESREEMEE -
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31 December 2022
20.

21.

22,

23.

2022412 H31H

COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE 20. BHEHEZERIY=E
Completed properties held for sale are all situated in the PRC. The BEREZETIVEEZURTE - AEH
Group carried out assessment on the net realisable value at the end R A E B R S RFEETIH - R
of the reporting period and recognised RMB1,449,493,000 (2021: 2022F12A31H ' BRMBFIELEEZERL
RMB91,691,000) of write-down for completed properties held for sale as at Y% AR ¥1,449,493,0007T (2021 4F : AR¥E
31 December 2022. 91,691,0007T) °
PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 21. BREAPYE
Properties under development are all situated in the PRC. The Group carried BERAMEZLMNRAPE - REBRNHE
out assessment on the net realisable value at the end of the reporting HREEsE YA EFEETIG R
period and recognised RMB1,263,639,000 (2021: RMB225,073,000) of 202212 A31H  BMARMBER T W
write-down for properties under development as at 31 December 2022. A R #1,263,639,000 7t (2021 F : A R #&
225,073,0007T) °
DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS PAID FORLAND 22. B+ #hRERERFEBENHIE
ACQUISITIONS
The amount represented deposits and prepayments paid for land ERsEERNTRIKETEREMEAZE
acquisitions arising from the acquisition of land use rights in the PRC. MLt iEiEe RFBAKE ZEESBRL
These deposits will be converted into properties under development upon WERRF TR EERAEERYE  HMKEE
completion of the land acquisition process and fully refundable if the N oRAIH - BIZEREGR(E o
acquisition is not successful.
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, OTHER RECEIVABLES 23. FEWE - HittEWRIER EME
AND OTHER ASSETS E
2022 2021
2022%F 20215
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AR®TT
Accounts receivable JE W BR 3R 16,546 12,210
Less: Impairment B RE (1,063) -
15,483 12,210
Prepaid value-added taxes and other taxes TARHEER R HEMTIE 1,611,784 1,993,816
Deposits and prepayments e RIEMNFIE 446,349 243,054
Costs of obtaining contracts BBE 2K 261,855 286,408
Other receivables H th fE W R E 747,722 148,906
3,067,710 2,672,184
Less: Impairment B ORE (11,191) (650)
3,056,519 2,671,534
3,072,002 2,683,744




AND OTHER ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Accounts receivable represent receivables from sales of properties,
project management services, dividend receivables and rental receivables.
Receivables arising from sales of properties and services are due for
settlement in accordance with the terms of the related agreements. The
settlement terms of rental receivables are upon presentation of demand
notes.

An aging analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the reporting
period, based on the invoice date and the net of loss allowance, is as
follows:
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23. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, OTHER RECEIVABLES 23. FEUWBRF - HttEWFIER EME

E(&E)

e PR FIEHE W - HE BRRS 2 A
H - REERRFUAREERKHE - KEHE
M2 R FRIARIAR BB EUFIATIRE
EHABE 2GR NEE - BREES 2 &R
GRBE RERBMERES -

RBERR - REZFZAHRAGBRRER
ME PR KRB DT T

2022 2021

20224 20214

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥F R ARET T

Within 1 year 1F R 14,419 10,083
1to 2 years 1E2ME - _
2 to 3 years R = 34F - _
Over 3 years 3FLAE 1,064 2,127
At end of year RER 15,483 12,210

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using a
provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. The provision rates
are based on days past due for groupings of various customer segments
with similar loss patterns. The calculation reflects the probability-weighted
outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and supportable
information that is available at the reporting date about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.

BEDITTIN SRS B HAE R B EERET
NAERMEREER BEXDLDERZEA
BRUEBERA TP 2 #8485l 7078 8K B
TE o At BERBMEAEINEAER - GEEEE
BEARREEARASEBBESMF - /M
AEARREERR TN SRR A EER -
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23. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, OTHER RECEIVABLES 23. FEUWBRF - HttEWFRIER EME
AND OTHER ASSETS (CONTINUED) E
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TP R AR R 1S AN SR E AT A B AR
RZeMEERBNEERRNER

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on the

Group’s financial assets included in accounts receivable using a provision

matrix:

As at 31 December 2022

R20225612H31H

Gross carrying

Expected credit

amount losses

BRE4AE EHEESE

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T R AR¥TR

Individual evaluation of expected credit losses TREEE B8 2 @ RIFE 2,127 1,063
Assessment of expected credit losses by BREERBAAFTETER

credit risk portfolio EEEE 14,419 -

At end of year NER 16,546 1,063

As at 31 December 2021

"2021F12H31H

Gross carrying

Expected credit

amount losses
IREAE EHEEES
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARETR
Assessment of expected credit losses #EiREERRAES T TEA
by credit risk portfolio EEEE 12,210 -
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23. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, OTHER RECEIVABLES 23. FEWRZ - HEWZER EME

24.

AND OTHER ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Deposits and other receivables mainly represent deposits with suppliers and
other receivables due from third parties. Where applicable, an impairment
analysis is performed at each reporting date by considering the probability
of default, expected credit losses are estimated by applying a loss rate
approach with reference to the historical loss record of the Group. The
loss rate is adjusted to reflect the current conditions and forecasts of
future economic conditions, as appropriate. The expected credit losses
was RMB11,191,000 as at 31 December 2022 (31 December 2022:
RMB650,000).

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of accounts and other
receivables are as follows:

E(&E)

Ze R HMERFIBEEBEEERZS RER
FZHHMEWRIE - ER - REDIT IR
SHREAHEBEEELN A REMETT - A
EEBIEIZER2EAEENFELIBRILEE
FIBRRFEITH - BAXRSERAE - U
B E B AR 5 R AR SR A AR FBRI (0@ A ) o
R2022F 12 A31H EHEEEBREAAR
#11,191,0007T (202212 A31H : AR
650,0007T) ©

JRE AT B R 2 L A Mk RRTEDRI(E 2 S IR R v
R :

2022 2021

2022%F 20214

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TR AR® T

At beginning of year REW] 650 650
Impairment losses TREEE 11,604 =
At end of year NER 12,254 650

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS

24. BAVEFABEZERMEE

2022 2021

2022%F 20214

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TR AR¥TT

Equity securities listed in Singapore FRFT NS _E T 2 BRARRE 4,716 4,444
REIT securities listed in the USA MER EH 2 BEREETES 243,009 419,524

247,725 423,968
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2022412 H31H

25. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE, DEPOSITS RECEIVED 25. ERRF - EWREREFEHR

AND ACCRUALS

2022 2021

20224 20214

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETR ARET

Accounts and bills payable EREBERREE 209,544 221,514

Accrued construction costs (Note) g Y N D) 6,211,261 5,428,927

Rental deposits received BlWHERS 10,393 8,330

Retention deposits and payable REB e REMNFIA 304,058 262,011

Real estate and other taxes payable R EERREMFIIE 324,662 82,324

Other payables and accruals HEiENRIBEREEA 307,768 353,747

7,367,686 6,356,853

Less: Rental deposits received — non-current B BEREERE —IERE (9,440) (6,492)

7,358,246 6,350,361

Note: Included in accrued construction costs are amounts due to a related
company controlled by Ms. Huang’s daughter, Ms. Zhang Huiqgi (“Ms.
Zhang”), of approximately RMB682,551,000 (2021: RMB523,479,000)
for its construction work.

An aging analysis of the trade and bills payables as at the end of the

Miet - FERTERER AR A A A R #682,551,0007T
(20214 : AR#523,479,00070) A5t H s
T2 imER —MEE AR (BHuangZ £ 2 &
FaR B A+ (R4t DIRH]) 2 708 -

RBEMRZBEHRNFELENRBRIZER

reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows: HERZ BRI T :
2022 2021
2022%F 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR AR®TT
Within 1 year —FER 3,316,514 3,229,724
1to 2 years —EWE 2,833,891 1,352,075
2 to 3 years ME=F 194,644 744,335
Over 3 years HBiE=F 75,756 324,307
At end of year RER 6,420,805 5,650,441




26.

27.

28.

CONTRACT LIABILITIES

The amounts represented advance payments from customers based on
schedules as established in the property sale contracts. The increase in
contract liabilities as at 31 December 2022 was due to more property
projects having started pre-sale during the current year.

AMOUNTS DUE TO RELATED COMPANIES

The amounts due to related companies are unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand. Ms. Huang and together with her spouse, Mr.
Zhang, and her daughter, Ms. Zhang, have the controlling interests over
these related companies.

LOANS FROM A RELATED COMPANY

The Group has entered into loan agreements with a related company,
Henan Zensun Real Estate Co., Ltd. (“Zensun Real Estate”), which is
ultimately controlled by Ms. Huang, pursuant to which Zensun Real Estate
will provide unsecured loans to the Group.

The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. Those
amounts were shown under the current liabilities as Zensun Real Estate had
the discretionary rights to demand immediate repayment.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the carrying amounts of the
loans approximated their fair values at initial recognition.

26.

27.

28.

r\
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BHNEE

ZECHERBEYEHEEANHENRERXA
REUWEHTE FUIB - KR2022F12831HA 4]
BEENTHREZYEIEERNAFERIBE
S -

FEAS BB 1 RIFRIE

ENBEBERARFESEER RO RERE
& ° Huang R TE R A RBRAEERAE LR R
LR EEENRER TR ER

RE—HBEEQXRZER

AEEHEBEARTEENEFARAR(IE
BEZ | AHuangXZ T H&RIEH 2 A F)) %]
EXtz Bt EEEXHREEKFER
FAER o

ZECHEAEER  RERAREREE -
RIEFEXAEEEN ZRKAEER - 8
FHEBIERBAE -

F
%5

ARREERR  ZEERZREELERER
I FERRE 2 N FERE
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31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

29. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 29. SRITRHMEE
2022 2021
2022%F 20214
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
per annum per annum
(%) Maturity RMB’000 (%) Maturity RMB'000
BB BB
FH= FH=
(%) Elpi)=| AR¥TR (%) Z8A ARETR
Current B
Bank loans - secured RITER—FHEE 1.76-9.98 2023 2,734,671 2.20-8.30 2022 2,908,958
2023F 2022
Other loans - secured HEHR—HHH 2.80-10.50 2023 552,012 5.21-11.00 2022 1,720,530
2023%F 20224
Other loans - unsecured HiEH— mE 2.80-5.50 2023 37,380 - = -
2023F
Senior notes - unsecured (a) BREE - EEHE) 12.50 2023 1,369,088 12.50 2022 1,265,028
2023F 20224
4,693,151 5,894,516
Non-current FEBDER
Bank loans - secured RITET—HHEA 1.76-9.98 2024-2030 2,143,760 1.61-9.98 2023-2030 3,015,551
20244 —2030F 2023F 220304
Other loans - secured HihEm—HER 2.80-5.50 2025 145,301  10.10-10.50 2023 611,150
202545 20234
Other loans - unsecured Hip & — EE R 2.80-5.50 2025 125,145 - - -
2025
Senior notes - unsecured (@)(b)  BAZE-EEHE)D) 1250 2024 1,092,026 12,50 2023-2024 2,274,113
20244 20234F £20244F

3,506,232 5,900,814

8,199,383 11,795,330
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29. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (CONTINUED) 29. $#{TRHEMEE (&)
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARET T
Analysed into: DA
Bank and other borrowings repayable: RIS HBEEZRITREMEE :
Within one year —FER 4,693,151 5,894,516
In the second year F_F 2,803,531 3,529,949
In the third to fifth years, inclusive E-ZFERF(BHEERME) 702,701 2,364,150
Beyond five years BiBRF - 6,715
8,199,383 11,795,330

The carrying amounts of bank and other borrowings at the end of the
reporting period were denominated in the following currencies.

REHEEER  RITREMEE 2 REE
TIA TSI E®5IME -

2022 2021

20224 20214

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETR ARETT

SGD AN T 63,468 62,646
USD £ 2,569,380 3,646,840
RMB AR 5,566,535 8,085,844
8,199,383 11,795,330
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2022412 H31H

29. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

Notes:

(@)

On 3 October 2019, the Company issued senior notes at a principal
amount of US$220 million carrying interest of 12.8% per annum due
on 3 October 2021 in accordance with the terms and conditions of the
subscription agreement (the “2019 Original Notes”). Subsequently on
20 December 2019, the Company issued additional senior notes at a
principal amount of US$120 million under the same terms and conditions
of the subscription agreement of the 2019 Original Notes. The additional
senior notes are consolidated with the 2019 Original Notes and form a
single series at an aggregate principal amount of US$340 million carrying
interest of 12.8% per annum due on 3 October 2021.

In September 2021, US$142,420,000 of the 2019 Notes, representing
approximately 42.01% of the total aggregate principal amount of the
outstanding 2019 Notes, have been validly tendered for exchange and
accepted pursuant to the terms and conditions of the exchange offer in
exchange for the new notes to be issued, and the remaining outstanding
amount of US$196,580,000 were repaid upon maturity. Such amount
of US$142,420,000 were in exchanged for the new notes issued on
18 September 2021. Details of the Exchange Offer are set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 8 September 2021.

On 13 September 2021, the Company issued senior notes at a principal
amount of US$200 million carrying interest of 12.5% per annum due
on 13 September 2023. The US$200 million senior notes are listed
and traded on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong. Such amount of
US$142,420,000 were in exchanged for the 2019 Notes due on 3
October 2021 (as detailed in note a above), and the remaining amount
of US$57,580,000 were intended for project developments and general
corporate purposes. Details of the issuance of the senior notes are set
out in the Company’s announcements dated 14 September 2021.

On 24 September 2021, the Company issued senior notes at a principal
amount of US$160 million carrying interest of 12.5% per annum due on
23 April 2024. The US$160 million senior notes are listed and traded
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong. The net proceeds of the senior
notes were intended to refinance existing indebtedness and for project
developments and general corporate purposes. Details of the issuance of
the senior notes are set out in the Company’s announcements dated 24
September 2021.

Certain of the Group’s bank and other borrowings are secured by the
Group’s pledged deposits, investment properties, completed properties
held for sale and properties under development with the total carrying
amount of RMB15,369,276,000 (2021: RMB15,799,849,000). In addition,
shares of certain subsidiaries were pledged as securities to obtain certain
bank and other borrowings granted to the Group as at 31 December 2022
and 2021. Details of pledged assets are disclosed in note 38 to the financial
statements.

In additions, as at 31 December 2022, the Group’s senior notes and bank
and other borrowings were guaranteed by related companies. Details of the
guarantees are disclosed in note 41 to the financial statements.

29.
FifE

(@)

RITREMEE (F])

2019410 A3 H + 2R R Al RIR R HE 173 5% 2 15 N B 5
438177820214-10 A3 B |8 2 X %220,000,0003
TEE128EBEZE([2019F RHERE ) - HER
2019412 A20H + AR RIIRIZ20195F R 18 RIE RS
1o 5% 2 4 [F] {4 3K B2 {6 14 B8 9N 3% 97 7K & %8 120,000,000
ETELAER  c BIMEERBRE2019F RIBEES
BtAE—EZRS] - BR2021F10 ASE BIH 2 A& 458
340,000,000F LF E12.8EBAERE -

MR2021F9A  2019F F#:142,420,000% 7T (5 K E
B2019F ZE A S AFEA42.01%) ERIERIBBE LN
ERRIGEHEERIRRER AN B REER - URBE T
BITHF SRR - Mk FARERES58196,580,000% TE,
R EHAB (B8 © 5%2142,420,000% 0B X #14202149
R1BABTHNER - RREANFBHRAARA
B A2021F9 A8HM AL -

M2021F9 130 » AN AEEFTR20234F9 A13H H|
82 78 € §8200,000,000FE L F E12.5E B L 2K ©
7%200,000,000E LB AR BERBESH A ETRE
& ° 142,420,000 7T & 3 17 LA 2 #2 74 2021 £ 10 A
SHEHIZ2019F Z4& (40 £ XX sEafratil) « 82 T
57,580,000k T AEEE H#RUAR —REERR -
FRBEZRBEETHNFBEHN AR R A R2021F9
A14BHALE -

MR2021F9A248 + RAREEITN2024F 4 A23H 2
Hi2 N4 %8160,000,000% 7T F B12.5E B A ZE © %
160,000,000 LB EZBNRESHIA LM RES -
BAEBMBRBFEHRAEREELERE - HE
BRUAR—MEERR - FHELZERBETNFER
RARAE B EA2021FE9A24HMAE -

AEEETROREMEBE I EASERAZ
B A R ¥ 15,369,276,000 T ( 2021 &£ : A R #&
15,799,849,0007T) 2 Bz ¢ « EWE - #FEH
EZETIMERBREFWEERR o 1o - 1K2022

F K 2021F12 A31H

CETH B ARz R EFEE

;o ARBASEMERZE TRITREMGES - A
D BB E 2 IEN M RR M 38 R -

tEoh

2022412 8318 « AEE 2 BEEEARR

TREMEERBERRER - AEERZFERY
IR META1HKEE -



30.

DEFERRED TAX

The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities arising from temporary
differences are as follows:
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IEAER IH

EREEEL Y BEHASERABZ BB
T

Deferred tax assets EEMREEE
Write-down
Accrued of properties
Provision expenses for under
Tax loss for LAT tax purpose development Total
+ B ER REtHE WA
BIEEE B BX BEPYE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R AR TR AR¥ETR AR¥T AR¥ETR
At 1 January 2021 20211 81H 125,658 42,081 119,413 37,500 324,652
Credited to profit or loss during FRRERE
the year (note 71) sTA(HEET1) 33,642 9,744 52,367 23,385 119,138
Deferred tax assets at R2021F12A31H K&
31 December 2021 and 20221 A1HZ
1 January 2022 LRI A E 159,300 51,825 171,780 60,885 443,790
Credited to profit or loss during FARBRER
the year (note 11) StAHET1) 22,164 594 15,934 72,833 111,525
Deferred tax assets at R2022F12A318 2
31 December 2022 RIERIBEE 181,464 52,419 187,714 133,718 555,315

During the year ended 31 December 2022, deferred tax assets were
recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that
relevant future taxable profits will be available against for utilisation. These
unused tax losses were in respect of certain PRC subsidiaries carried
forward at the end of 2022 and the directors of the Company are of the
opinion that these certain PRC subsidiaries will generate sufficient future
taxable profits.

At 31 December 2022, the Group had total unrecognised unused tax
losses of RMB1,013,474,000 (2021: RMB554,526,000) and unrecognised
temporary differences of RMB2,149,714,000 (2021: RMB73,224,000) which
were subject to agreement with the respective tax authorities, available to
offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised
in respect of these unused tax losses as they have arisen in subsidiaries
and the Company that have been loss-making for some time and it is not
considered probable that taxable profits will be available against which
the tax losses can be utilised. Except for tax losses incurred in the PRC
amounting to RMB605,897,000 (2021: RMB147,584,000) will expire within
five years since the date of carryforward, these unrecognised unused tax
losses can be carried forward indefinitely, subject to fulfilment of certain
conditions or rules.

HZE2022F12A31BILFE - WAlBEEBEEE
R ERF R A K - AlemAkeARIE
BEBERABRCHBEE - 25 ABHEHEERE
T A5 TR BB AR R2022F K& E T
MARREERE  2EE5THEMBRRG
EERMZ RRERBRF

R2022%F 12 A381H * ASEBEARBRADAH
THES B AR A ARE1,013,474,000 7T (2021
£ AR#554,526,0007T) B oK FE 2 R =
FARYD2 149,714,000 (20214 : AR ¥
73,224,0007T) * BB AR IEEEETLZ ek
Al AERINARFE - ARFHIEBEIAEE
BE—BEEEZHNBRATRARAELERTAA
REA FE R Bl m A A A DAIK S B TR S 1B - MO 4B
MZERDATEEERRELEHBEE - K
R B EE 2 FHIEEE A RK605,897,00070
(20214 : AR #¥147,584,0007T) # B 48 H
B AFAEMI  ZERERARD AR EES
B ER AR WEARESE TIRGRA -
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30. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED)

Zensun Enterprises Limited

Deferred tax liabilities

Accelerated

tax of investment

30. EFERIE (M)
EEREAE

Revaluation
of properties
acquired

Withholding
tax on
distributable

Revaluation under profits of the
business Group’s PRC

depreciation properties combination subsidiaries Total
EEEFE
EBEH ip=pNGil)
NEBIE REME EHTREZ DIKBEEZ
nE B MEER FAMB met
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T AR%T R AR¥T AR¥T T AR¥TR
At 1 January 2021 M202141 A18 (55) (1,877) (380,049) (75,745) (457,726)
Credited to profit or loss during FRRERE
the year (note 17) SEA(HTET1) - - 9,860 15,498 25,358
Exchange realignment P& 5 % ©) 49 - - 40
Deferred tax liabilities at R2021F12A318 K
31 December 2021 and 2022F1A1B2
1 January 2022 BEFREAE 64) (1,828) (370,189) (60,247) (432,328)
Credited to profit or loss during FARERR
the year (note 1) STA(HTET1) - - 61,357 = 61,357
Exchange realignment PE 5 AR ©) (139) - - (148)
Deferred tax liabilities at M2022%F12A31H
31 December 2022 ERERIBRE (73) (1,967) (308,832) (60,247) (371,119)

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding tax is
levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from the foreign investment
enterprises established in Mainland China. The requirement is effective
from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A
lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty between
Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. The Group is
therefore liable for withholding taxes at applicable rate of 10% on dividends
distributed by those subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect of
earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

At 31 December 2022, the aggregate amount of temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries in Mainland China for which
deferred tax liabilities have not been recognised totalled approximately
RMB902,453,000 (31 December 2021: RMB902,453,000). In the opinion
of the directors, it is not probable to distribute these earnings in the
foreseeable future.

RIEFRBEERBRE  RPBEAMKY 28
IMEBENRKRE FEIMNTEEE - AHK
BB 10% 2 BT - Z R ER2008F1 A1 H#E
AN E AR 2007F12 H31 B 2 B & F| - 40
F B i B2 AN % & B BT TE R A MR @ R] A B UK
WE  AEARREENHEER - At - A5£E
B BRI AR 2 B A B s 200841 A 1
AZREANBIRSHOBREZERTEI10%
BRIBEFIR -

202212 A31H » HR W EERIELERIEE
ENFEANEHEARMNKREREc YRER
#@EE 4 A R % 902,453,000 7T (2021 412 A 31
BH : AR¥0902,453,0007T) - EER A R
RAARRAIETEDIRZERF -
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SHARE CAPITAL 31. &
2022 2021
20224 20215
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AR® T

Issued and fully paid: BETRERE :
1,918,386,669 (2021: 1,913,386,669) 1,913,386,669% (20214 :

ordinary shares 1,913,386,669/% ) & 1@ % 5,326,923 5,326,923

A summary of movements in the Company’s share capital is as follows:

ARRRELBESHIMT -

Number of
ordinary
shares in issue Share capital
BT
TEREE [N
RMB’000
AR® T
At 1 January 2021 R2021F1A1H 19,133,866,698 5,326,923
Share Consolidation (Note) & Br(HraE) (17,220,480,029) =
At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 and R2021F12 A31 B % 20224F
31 December 2022 1H1B8 k2022412 H31H 1,913,386,669 5,326,923
Note: HtaE -

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed by shareholders at the extraordinary
general meeting of the Company held on 5 August 2021, the share consolidation
on the basis that every ten issued ordinary shares in the share capital of the
Company be consolidated into one ordinary share in the share capital of the
Company became effective on 9 August 2021 (the “Share Consolidation”).

All the shares issued during 2021 rank pari passu with other shares in issue in all
respects.

BIERRN2021F8 A5 H BTN AR RIFRIBRRAS
FRBNEBRAZER  REAARBRATETREE
1T IR A FF R A A RIRRA S — B @ RoE 17 M A i)
BHER2021F8 A9REM(TRINEH]) -

2021 FEHITHMBRMNEMA T ERELMBEEITR
NERRFHLAL -
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31 December 2022

32.

33.

2022412 A31H
RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein for the
year ended 31 December 2022 are presented in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity.

(@) PRC statutory reserves

In accordance with the PRC Company Law and the articles of
association of the subsidiaries established in the PRC, these
entities are required to appropriate 10% of their net profits after tax,
as determined under the Chinese Accounting Standards, to the
statutory surplus reserve until the reserve balance reaches 50% of
its registered capital. Subject to certain restrictions set out in the
relevant PRC regulations and in the articles of association of the
entities, the statutory surplus reserves may be used either to offset
losses, or to be converted to increase share capital provided that the
balance after such conversion is not less than 25% of the registered
capital of the Group. The reserve cannot be used for purposes other
than those for which it is created and is not distributable as cash
dividends.

(b) Exchange reserve
The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences
arising from the translation of the financial statements of group
entities. The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the accounting
policy set out in note 2.4.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to
shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. In
view of the Group’s expansion strategy, the Group has sourced funding
from banks, financial institutions, senior notes and its related companies in
which Ms. Huang has beneficial interests and continued to look for other
external financing sources. The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged
from the prior year.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on an annual
basis. As part of this review, the directors of the Company consider the
cost of capital and the risks associated with the share capital. Based on
recommendations of the directors of the Company, the Group will balance
its overall capital structure through the payment of dividends, new share
issues, raising of new borrowings or redemption of debts.
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33. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 33. EXEREE(E)

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which includes
bank and other borrowings, amounts due to related companies and loans
from a related company, net of cash and cash equivalents, restricted bank
balances and pledged deposits. The gearing ratio as at the end of the

reporting period was as follows:

REEK

TRITEER

AEEEARBOEABEE  DEERTR
i fE®  mAMELARERKRE —MEE
RALERSZEER - FRHB
TRHBREERES - RESHR 2 EAEAE
T

2022 2021

2022%F 20214

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETR AR¥TR

Amounts due to related companies FETREE A T ZIE 1,038,106 1,976,226
Loans from a related company KE—MEEQRZER 7,243,579 8,204,904
Bank and other borrowings (current and non-current) 817 R EMEE GRBI RIERE)) 8,199,383 11,795,330
Less: Cash and cash equivalents o R RIRSFEIEE (488,199) (1,838,967)
Restricted bank balances X PR HIERITAE R (1,365,905) (1,457,690)
Pledged deposits (current and non-current) BIIFIES R8I RIERE)) (137,515) (215,876)

Net debt BEEZE 14,489,449 18,463,927
Total assets BB E 61,543,899 68,223,815
Gearing ratio BEBELE 24% 27%
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 34. RERE S 2EMITA

REPR - FELMIAZREAEBENT

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments as
at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

2022
Financial assets

20224
PHEE

Financial assets

at fair value Financial
through profit assets at
orloss amortised cost
BRAFEFA RS R A
BRzERMEE TEZL2REE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBT T
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss BAFEFABRZERHEE 247,725 -
Accounts receivable JE W BR X - 15,483
Financial assets included in other receivables and FTAEMBURIEREMEE
other assets CRIEE - 736,531
Pledged deposits [mEiErE - 137,515
Restricted bank balances IR BIRITAEER - 1,365,905
Cash and cash equivalents BekBEeEMEER - 488,199
247,725 2,743,633
Financial liabilities THEE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
REHEE A
TExemAE
RMB’000
AR® T
Accounts and bills payables ERERRENER 209,544
Financial liabilities included in other payables, FFAEMERNIE  BEREFERZ
deposits and accruals TREE 6,833,480
Amounts due to related companies FEf BB A RIZRIE 1,038,106
Loans from a related company RE—HEERARZER 7,243,579
Bank and other borrowings WITREMEER 8,199,383
23,524,092



34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
(CONTINUED)

2021
Financial assets

Annual Report 2022

34.

20215
EHEE

Financial assets

TRITEER

RERES 2T A(E)

at fair value Financial
through profit assets at
orloss amortised cost
RAOTE R
FFAB®EZ RAGTHEZ
SREE SREE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETT
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss BAFEFABEZERMEE 423,968 =
Accounts receivable FEUSBR X = 12,210
Financial assets included in other receivables and FTAEMBURIEREMEEZ
other assets CRIBE - 148,256
Pledged deposits BEFES - 215,876
Restricted bank balances SRR AIRTTAE R - 1,457,690
Cash and cash equivalents BekBEeEHEER = 1,838,967
423,968 3,672,999
Financial liabilities THEE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
E278: £)2%:N
ECEmAE
RMB’000
AR® T
Accounts and bills payables ERERRENEE 221,514
Financial liabilities included in other payables, FTAEMBERNIE  REREFERZ
deposits and accruals TRAE 6,036,957
Amounts due to related companies FETREE R AR 1,976,226
Loans from a related company RE—HEEARIZER 8,204,904
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE 11,795,330
28,234,931
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35. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instrum
at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

ents as

35. SR TEAZAFERLAFEER

RIERR  SREMTAZRERENT

Carrying amounts Fair values
REE AYE
2022 2021 2022 2021
20225 20214 20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARET T ARBTT AR®TR
Financial assets EREE
Financial assets at fair value EAFEFABRZ
through profit or loss STREE 247,725 423,968 247,725 423,968
Financial liabilities oA=L
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE 8,199,383 11,795,330 8,139,778 11,591,687

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash
equivalents, restricted bank balances, pledged deposits, accounts
receivable, financial assets included in other receivables and other assets,
accounts payable, financial liabilities included in other payables and
accruals, amounts due to related companies and loans from a related
company approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the short
term maturities of these instruments.

The Group’s finance department headed by the finance manager is
responsible for determining the policies and procedures for the fair value
measurement of financial instruments. The finance manager reports
directly to the chief financial officer. At each reporting date, the finance
department analyses the movements in the values of financial instruments
and determines the major inputs applied in the valuation. The valuation is
reviewed and approved by the chief financial officer.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at
the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current
transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

The fair values of listed equity investments are based on quoted market
prices.

The fair values of bank and other borrowings have been calculated by
discounting the expected future cash flows using rates currently available
for instruments with similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities. The
changes in fair value as a result of the Group’s own non-performance risk
for bank and other borrowings as at 31 December 2022 were assessed to
be insignificant.

ERECEMERERREEEEAE  XBRHIR
1ThERR - CEMZRS - BRI - ST AEME
WHRIAREMEEZ SREE - BIRX - &
AEMBENRBEREAERAZERAE BN
MERRFIERKE —MEEAR ZERAF
BERARAEABES  THRZETAIH
HE&EATE -

AEBEMPBEETENN B  AERES
BMTARAFEFEZHENEF HBEER
ERMEFEVBERE - NSRS B - MK
S TANEER B HE GHETER
ZERHANE - HEHEFENEEEHRAE

THEERABNAFENEENAHERS
FEREXZFHBRTAZ G  BASERHE
ZeRMEERBBBRI -

B ETRAKRE 2 A FERTISRETE -

BITRHEMEEZ AFEDEBEBEHANRR
SREBRARITARABEUGK - FERR X
BTEHEMZ TAZMERETHIRAE - B
202212318 ' AEBEBEB@RITREMEER
N TBHOERERNATFELSBHMICE -



35. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Fair value hierarchy

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy of the

Group’s financial instruments:

Assets measured at fair value:
As at 31 December 2022

35.
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(\%ESQIEZ’D\$1E&’D\$EJ§?&
IIE

NP EER
TRITAEECRIAZ A FEANEER

BAFPHEHIABZEE -
R2022%F12H31H

Fair value measurement using

ERUTHEHEZATE

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
SERTIE BEAUTERE BEAFAHE
ZHE WABE WABE
(B-#) (B=#) (B5=8) met
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARBT ARBTR AR®BTR
Financial assets at fair value BATFEFABRZ
through profit or loss PREE 247,725 - - 247,725
As at 31 December 2021 Ro021F12H31H
Fair value measurement using
FERAUNTHEGEZATE
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
SERT 5 BEAUBR BERATABR
ZHE BWARE WAZE
(%) (=) (B=8) st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T AR¥ T AR¥ T AR¥ T
Financial assets at fair value BAFEFAEBRZ
through profit or loss CTREE 423,968 - - 423,968

The Group had no financial liabilities measured at fair value as at 31

December 2022 (2021: Nil).

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3 for both
financial assets and financial liabilities (2021: Nil).

R2022F12A31H » AEE W EEMIZATE
FrECemAE(2021F « &) -

FR - eMEENSBREESE —AHEE LY
HRIZ NS = = Pvd - B ) ¥ 3 B e 3
BE=R(20214F : ) o
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35. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 35. S EQI BEZ2AFERAFEER

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) (48)

Fair value hierarchy (continued) AFEER(E)
Liabilities for which fair values are disclosed: WENFEZEE
As at 31 December 2022 R2022F12H31H

Fair value measurement using

ERUTBEHEZ A VE

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
SERT S BERTEE BERATAHE
ZHE BWAHE BWAHE
(B—-%) (=) (B=8) met
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR%BTT AR%TR AR®TR AR®TR

Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE - 8,139,778 - 8,139,778

As at 31 December 2021 Ro0214F12H31H

Fair value measurement using

FRANTEESEZAFE

Quoted prices Significant Significant

in active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

SERTIE BEAUTERE BEAFAHE

ZHE WABE WABE
(5—#%) (=) (F=8) st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT AR®TT AR®TR AR®TR

Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE - 11,591,687 - 11,591,687




36.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments mainly include cash and
cash equivalents, restricted bank balances, accounts receivable, other
receivables, accounts payable, other payables and accruals and amounts
due to related companies, which arise directly from its operations. The
Group has other financial assets and liabilities such as pledged deposits,
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, bank and other
borrowings and loans from a related company. The main purpose of these
financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are interest
rate risk, equity price risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity
risk. Generally, the Group introduces conservative strategies on its risk
management. The Group does not hold or issue derivative financial
instruments for trading purposes. The board of directors reviews and agrees
policies for managing each of these risks and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to risk for changes in market interest rates relates
primarily to the Group’s bank and other borrowings with floating interest
rate set out in note 29. The Group does not use derivative financial
instruments to hedge interest rate risk. The Group manages its interest cost
using a mix of fixed and variable rate borrowings.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible
change in interest rates, with all other variables held constant, of the
Group’s profit before tax.

36.
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MEERERER FERBEEK

AEENIZERTATZRERSRASSE
BB - ZEHIRITESR - BRIRR - EME
WHIR -« EAERR - BN FERESER
NMENBEARNE REeMITARERS
MEEEL ASEEFEMCEREERA
- MEERRE RATEAABRRZESR
BE ROREBGEERRE —HBEQRZ
EXR - ZEeRTANIZANERRAEE
ZEBERE -

AEETMTREENTERAR AN EER
BRABRKREAR  SMNERR - FERBRREREHE
EEE - —KRMF - ARELEEREERR
RTHRREE - AEBARFAXRBETARIZH0T
Ee@MTA BEEghJYREZSTRARER
KSR - Eatan T e

F=E

7R 5% (58 T g ) T 355 1) 3 2 3 o = 2 B Y 29
PEAEEFSRTRAMEERR - AEE
WEERTESR T EEDRXRER - NEEH
ERAESREEEEEREFSKA

TRIREMREEMAZRERRFTENER
T MENSEARESGFREDTHAEE
BB 2 & -

Increase/
Increase/ (decrease)
(decrease) in profit
2022 in basis points before tax
HEEH R BE A0 %
20224 S (T ) #m, Ghd)
RMB’000
AR®TRT

Loans and borrowings denominated in LRIEEFEZERREE
uSsD EIW 100 (1,083)
USD =S (100) 1,083
SGD N T 100 (635)
SGD EDIlIE o (100) 635
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 36.

AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

MEERERERRRBEKE)

Interest rate risk (continued) FlZR (&)
Increase/
Increase/ (decrease)
(decrease) in profit
2021 in basis points before tax
2 BBt A%
20214 A (FER) #2m, G8d)
RMB’000
ARET

Loans and borrowings denominated in ITIEEFE 2B REE

USD e 100 (1,077)
UsD e (100) 1,077
SGD N T 100 (626)
SGD T (100) 626

Equity price risk IR A (B 4% B B

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity securities decrease
as a result of changes in the levels of equity indices and the value of
individual securities. The Group is exposed to equity price risk arising from
listed investments classified as financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss. The management manages this exposure by regular review of price
fluctuation.

Price sensitivity

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the
exposure to price risks of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
at the end of the reporting period.

RABRERRRAEZOKT RERZESEE

BEEBR A

F R FETEzZRER - ANEE

AEXWOBBRATVEFABRZEREEZ
LFHRERAERRER - EEEEBTEHAER

ERIRIEE R R o

BERBRE

AT S8EE DT AR E ARRAFEFABR
ZERMBEEEBRMAXRABRERE -

Increase/

Increase/ (decrease)

(decrease) in profit

in market price before tax

& B AT A

EH(TE) #hn, GEd)

% RMB’000

AR® T

31 December 2022 2022912 A31H 10 24,773
(10) (24,773)

31 December 2021 2021912 A31H 10 42,397
(10) (42,397)



36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such exposures arise
from transactions by operating units in currencies other than the units’

functional currencies.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of the reporting
period to a reasonably possible change in the HK$, USD and SGD
exchange rates, with all other variables held constant, of the Group’s

36.
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TRITEER

MERERERRRBEEKR)

SN LB

$EIEE¥T* BE¥ER -
REBRIABMMTGEEHE AN EEETR

ZMEL o

TRINTEREEMAERZRIFIED
™ ARETT %fu&*ﬂ]ﬂﬁﬂ:[TE’J/\ﬁT
Ab“EMZKEIE"#&iﬂﬂﬂiE’ﬂ%ﬁHumi"Z@ﬁl

ZERBRTIRAR

B

If the HK$ strengthens against the RMB
If the HK$ weakens against the RMB

profit before tax (due to changes in the fair values of monetary assets and REAM(BEREEEERAGBZATFEZSMR
liabilities). ﬁz) g
Increase/
(decrease) Increase/
in exchange (decrease)
rate of foreign in profit
currency before tax
SNEE R BRBE A5
LA (THE) #m, Cl)
% RMB’000
ARETR
2022 20224
If the HK$ strengthens against the USD fini 7 70 H R T HHE 1 (22,379)
If the HK$ weakens against the USD BT A ETEE (1) 22,379
If the SGD strengthens against the USD fisi 3 D3 T 3 S T HHE 1 (551)
If the SGD weakens against the USD fisi % D3 7T 3 SR TR B (1) 551
If the HK$ strengthens against the SGD i 78 70 A5 # i T AHE 1 48
If the HK$ weakens against the SGD sl 785 70 5 #T AN T B2 (B (1) (48)
If the HK$ strengthens against the RMB BT A REHE 1 19
If the HK$ weakens against the RMB i mH AREERE (1) (19)
2021 20214
If the HK$ strengthens against the USD 1878 7T 5 = T HHE 1 (31,335)
If the HK$ weakens against the USD MBI AR E Q) 31,335
If the SGD strengthens against the USD fisi %7 D03 T K 2T HHE 1 (508)
If the SGD weakens against the USD M ¥ N3 T X TTi A (1) 508
If the HK$ strengthens against the SGD i 785 70 53 AN T HHE 1 39
If the HK$ weakens against the SGD 8B T A F AN TTE (1) (39)
f
f

WS TTHAREAE
WS R A R E

1
Q)

163



/*

164

Zensun Enterprises Limited 1[FRIEXEEAT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 R R B =

31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third parties. It is
the Group’s policy that all customers who wish to trade on credit terms are
subject to credit verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances are
monitored on an ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is
not significant.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum exposure to
credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy, which is mainly based on
past due information unless other information is available without undue
cost or effort, and year-end staging classification as at 31 December.

The amounts presented are gross carrying amounts for financial assets.

36.

MEERERERRRBEKE)

FERR
AEBEEEERAREBRIZE=ZTETR
Z o WBAKRENEE - A BRIREEHRTE
TRGNEPHERIEERERFF ° UL
AEESHEEEREFTIRAERBR - MA%E
B2 ERARIENEX

REARR FRER
TRINTERAKEEERRNEEEARRR

AEERRBA - TEERNBEBHERN(ER
tEMBREBZRAEE HEAE) kK12 A
B1HZFRIERDH -

25 eRATREEMAREE

As at 31 December 2022 Ro022F 1231 H
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
12{8 A A
EEFE 2HEHEEEE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
BB EoRER IR KPS st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ TR AR¥TR AR¥TR AR¥TR AR¥TR
Accounts receivable* Wi B 3R - - - 5,960 5,960
Accounts receivable JRE Wi BR 3R
- Normal** — g 10,586 - - - 10,586
Financial assets included in other 5t A E 4l fE UL ZRIE K2
receivables and other assets HitWBEZSREE
— Normal** —E&E* 747,072 - - - 747,072
— Doubtful* — TR - - 650 - 650
Pledged deposits BEERRe
— Not yet past due — R 137,515 - - - 137,515
Restricted bank balances R FISRI TR
— Not yet past due — R H 1,372,596 - - - 1,372,596
Cash and cash equivalents RekBReEEER
— Not yet past due — K78 493,365 - - - 493,365
2,761,134 - 650 5,960 2,767,744
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
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36. FKEREEEREREEKE)

Credit risk (continued) EERE(E)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued) RERERER FEAEER(E)
As at 31 December 2021 Ro0214F12H31H
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
12{8 A 785
EEFR 2HEHEEER
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
SE1PEER E2ME R EIM R KPS st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T AR¥T R AR¥ TR AR% TR AR¥TR
Accounts receivable* JFEE L B 0 - - - 2,127 2,127
Accounts receivable JRE Ui BR 3R
- Normal* — g 10,083 - - - 10,083
Financial assets included in other &+ A E At & U 2B K2
receivables and other assets HWBEZSREE
— Normal** —Eg 148,256 - - - 148,256
- Doubtful** — TR - - 650 - 650
Pledged deposits BERRe
— Not yet past due — K@ H 215,876 - - - 215,876
Restricted bank balances R HIRITAE
— Not yet past due — RiH 1,457,690 - - - 1,457,690
Cash and cash equivalents RekBRE&EMEEL
— Not yet past due — R 1,838,967 - - = 1,838,967
3,670,872 - 650 2127 3,673,649
* For accounts receivable to which the Group applies the simplified - A H fE A B TS Rk MY sE 23 Fr R aUR (B b

approach for impairment as detailed in note 23 to the financial

statements, there is no significant concentration of credit risk.

ke

The credit quality of the financial assets included in accounts receivable,
other receivables and other assets is considered to be “normal” when

TER BRI - ANEELEEFERE
RIEERER °

- Bt NEHRERR - R EKGRAR A EEZ
TREEASY  BYBMENETSREEN
EERER B TIaHER A RBE NG - SRE

they are not past due and there is no information indicating that the
financial assets had a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition.

ENEEEEBEAAIER] -
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Liquidity risk

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of
funding and flexibility through the use of bank and other borrowings and
loans from a related company. Cash flows are being closely monitored on
an ongoing basis.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted payments, is as

36. MXEMREEEERBEK(E)

RBEEER

AEBEZBBEREBNARTEEMEEAR
RE-—HREARZER  #RESRHEHRE
REELZTE  AEEFERIERRSR

=
5 °

RBEMR - AEESBABEREAORRA
MFREL OB AT

follows:
As at 31 December 2022 R2022F 12531 H
On demand
or within 1t02 3to5 Over
1 year years years 5 years Total
EEX
B—FR —ZEWF =EARE BBRE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R AR%TR AR¥T AR¥T AR¥TR
Accounts and bills payable ENBRRRENER 209,544 - - - 209,544
Financial liabilities included in other 5t A E 42 Wiz 4 Kk
deposits received and accruals BirBEzemEE 6,825,988 - - - 6,825,988
Amounts due to related companies & EiE A 7308 1,038,106 - - - 1,038,106
Loans from a related company wE—EEEARZER
— Non-interest-bearing —B 8 7,243,579 - - - 7,243,579
Bank and other borrowings BAREMEE 5,197,840 3,072,140 949,849 - 9,219,829
20,515,057 3,072,140 949,849 - 24,537,046
Financial guarantee contracts (Note) 81 ¥ 1R A 4 (f15E) 19,274,110 - - - 19,274,110
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 36. WBREREEEERBE(E)
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Liquidity risk (continued) REBESER(E)
As at 31 December 2021 R2021F12H31H
On demand
or within 1to 2 3to5 Over
1 year years years 5 years Total
EZER
F—FR —EWF =Z2hHE BBHEE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRT AR®TR AR¥TR AR¥TrR AR¥ETxR

Accounts and bills payable IR R B & 221,514 = = = 221,514
Financial liabilities included in other 5t A H{th 2 Wi 4 &
deposits received and accruals EitERAZemBE 6,036,957 - - - 6,036,957
Amounts due to related companies J& 1< &8 A &) F0E 1,976,226 - - - 1,976,226
Loans from a related company RE—MREEARZER
— Non-interest-bearing — %8 8,204,904 - - - 8,204,904
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE 6,767,672 3,938,893 2,457,713 6,998 13,171,276
23,207,273 3,938,893 2,457,713 6,998 29,610,877
Financial guarantee contracts (Note) B IS &R & 4 (#15E) 18,002,298 - - - 18,002,298
Note: The amounts included above for financial guarantee contracts are the Hiat - BB ERENRIBREREFHREEH
maximum amounts the Group could be required to settle under the HIER - ARBERIBELHE AT AR N 2 BER
arrangement for the full guaranteed amount if that amount is claimed FEZ B ERREHELEERZHE
by the counterparty to the guarantee. Based on the expectations at H - AEBRAERBEBLE N EERE
the end of the reporting period, the Group considers that it is more ZABEERK o AT - ZAEHRTHEFHRE
likely than not that no amount will be payable under the arrangement. BREBZAEMEMAZ - L ITREEERT
However, this estimate is subject to change depending on the probability HEHMBERVEERZESERZEED
of the counterparty claiming under the guarantee which is a function BiE °

of the likelihood that the guaranteed financial receivables held by the
counterparty suffer credit losses.
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2022412 H31H

37. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 37. B RERKE
CASH FLOWS
(a) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities (a) BMETBZAEEH
Amounts
due to Loans from Bank and
related a related Accrued other
companies company interest* borrowings Total
ENEE RE—H RITR
DNEME HBHEQATDER ES Y Hitufg & st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R AR¥TR AR¥TR AR¥T R AR¥TR
At 1 January 2022 7202291 B1H 1,976,226 8,204,904 116,863 11,795,330 22,093,323
Changes from financing BMEREREE
cash flows (Note ) (Hz) (938,120) (961,325) (749,418)  (4,109,579)  (6,758,442)
Interest expenses SRS - - 719,716 - 719,716
Foreign exchange translation HNEHRE - - - 198,126 198,126
Non-cash transitions (Note i) FRER 5 (Hiiti) - - - 315,506 315,506
At 31 December 2022 M2022F12A31H 1,038,106 7,243,579 87,161 8,199,383 16,568,229
Amounts
due to Loans from Bank and
related a related Accrued other
companies company interest* borrowings Total
FERRE RE—H RITR
AERE BELATNER Rt R 2 HinfE& st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T AR% TR AR¥ETR AR¥T AR¥TR
At 1 January 2021 1202141 81H 4,100,961 8,374,973 140,321 15,135,925 27,752,180
Changes from financing BEREREE
cash flows (Note i) (H3) (2,124,735) (170,069)  (1,346,699)  (3,238,674)  (6,880,177)
Interest expenses FEFRX - - 1,323,241 - 1,323,241
Foreign exchange translation GNEHRE - - - (101,921) (101,921)
At 31 December 2021 M2021F12A31H 1,976,226 8,204,904 116,863 11,795,330 22,093,323
Note: Bt
0) The financing cash flows are made up of the net amounts of new (i) BRERSREAGAHEERERANZINERT
bank and other borrowings raised, repayment of bank and other &,H\ﬂi? BE  ERFETREMEE BT

borrowings, interest paid, advance from/repayment to related
companies, loans received from/repaid to a related company in
the consolidated statement of cash flows.

(ii) During the year, certain newly raised bank and other borrowings (i)
were directly paid to the suppliers by the lender of the borrowings,
so that to settle the construction payables due to the suppliers,
leading to the non-cash transitions of RMB315,506,000 (2021:

Nil).

Included in accounts payable, deposits received and accruals.

= EELL\ jﬂ‘f)\/i%ﬁl

@/

B2 5 -

Bl MEE — R

RER  BETHERTREMGERRER
ERAEBRITHER - USEEENHE

iz TIRERR
315,506,0007T (20214F : f)

B BRFERSEBARE

FEARNERR - CRIRE REER -
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37. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 37. SAB4ARERMII(HE)
CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

(b) Total cash outflow for leases (b) HERSHRHAZE

The total cash outflow for leases included in the statement of cash MERMEESERSREATENT
flows is as follows:

2022 2021
2022%F 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥BT T AR¥TR
Within operating activities KEEB A 368 1,483
38. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 38. EEEM
The following assets are pledged to certain of the Group’s bank and other RIBEER - W TEERERTETASEE
borrowings granted to the Group and mortgage loan facilities granted to B AREBROTREMEBEERASEME S
certain property buyers of the Group’s properties at the end of the reporting TUEERERZLBRE 2 G
period:
2022 2021
2022%F 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R AR¥TR
Property under development BREPYE 14,600,959 14,325,413
Completed properties held for sale RIEREZERTIYE 134,950 813,795
Investment properties EYHE 495,852 444 765
Pledged deposits BEERZE 137,515 215,876
15,369,276 15,799,849
In addition, shares of certain subsidiaries were pledged as securities to BEAN - 120224 & 2021F 12 A31H + B
obtain certain banking facilities granted to the Group as at 31 December ETHMBATZRMGD  MEAREEERET

2022 and 2021. IRITERVE 2 A -
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39.

40.

2022412 H31H

COMMITMENTS 39. &g
(@  The Group had the following capital commitments at the end of the (a) RBEHEAEER - RNERZ EARNFIE
reporting period: T
2022 2021
2022%F 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R AR¥TT
Contracted for, but not provided, in respect of &t T3l &AL 5] 4018 R B 8
Acquisitions of land use rights W B b {55 FA - 210,540
Property development expenditures MEBEFRX 10,041,812 10,656,821
10,041,812 10,867,361
(0)  The Group has no lease contracts that have not yet commenced as (b)  H2022F12A318 ' AEEWETR K

at 31 December 2022.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had contingent liabilities relating
to guarantees amounting to approximately RMB19,274,110,000 (2021:
RMB18,002,298,000) in respect of mortgage loan facilities provided by
certain banks in connection with the mortgage loans entered into by
property buyers of the Group’s properties. Pursuant to the terms of the
guarantees, upon default in mortgage payments by these property buyers,
the Group would be responsible for repaying the outstanding mortgage
principals together with accrued interest thereon and any penalties owed
by the defaulted buyers to the banks. The Group would be entitled to
take over the legal title to and possession of the related properties. These
guarantees will be released upon the earlier of (i) the satisfaction of the
mortgage loan by the buyer of the property; and (ii) the issuance of the
property ownership certificate for the mortgage property and the completion
of the deregistration of the mortgage. In the opinion of the directors of the
Company, no provision for the guarantee contracts was recognised in the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022
(2021: Nil) as in case of default in payments, the net realisable value of the
related properties can cover the outstanding principal together with the
accrued interest and penalties.

40.

PBMEEAK -
HREE

R2022%F 1283818 » AEBEHREBEAEEY
EZMEBRIUZEBERMBSE TR
REZEBERREZEREAXRABED
AR #19,274,110,000 7t (2021 F : A R ¥
18,002,298,0007T) ° RIBFERIEH - HZED
¥ERBRIZBHIE  AEEEABEEELRE
BRRMIBITHREBERIBASERRFE
RAEMER - ARE BB EEERBYENE
EERMERE ZSERBRUTREER
ERFRERR - (WEBEREERIRBER  K(i)3tiE
BYEEHYEMAREEY TRIZBENECEE
e ARREERE  ARNWARHRED
AR EZ IR FE RS A EELASE
FRAFERIE M EREREONER
202212 A31 HIEFE (20214 : &) 2 E
ISR R o
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 41. BEEALIRS

(@) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these financial (a) BRZEYHERREMTIFR IR
statements, the Group had the following transactions with related AN REBR RS A ERE A THET
parties during the reporting period: THZ S -

Related companies (Note (i) Transactions (Note (ii)) 2022 2021

BERQ R (M) R 5 (Hft(ii) 20224 2021F

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AR®T T
Relevant members of XIEIRIAIR AR Project management BB EERR
Ever Diamond Global ([x#& ) 2AERE services fee income ZIA
Company Limited KB ARERHE
(“Ever Diamond”) together  FiB 2\ 7 (5:78
with its subsidiaries [kEEE])
(collectively, the “Ever
Diamond Group”) - 61,571
Relevant members of AEERERS%E  Construction costs BEKARN(RERS
Henan Zensun Corporate EABEM A (capitalised in properties MEEKL)
Development Company ([IEpEZE]) 2z  under development)
Limited (“Zensun BRAKE A&
Development”) together REHE AR
with its subsidiaries CinasE: =
(collectively, the “Zensun =B )
Development Group”) 1,601,402 2,434,403

Relevant members of EE YR RSB Property engineering costs 18 B T2 A (123

Xingye Wulian Service BRAB([#2E (capitalised in properties ERYEER(L)

Company Limited ¥ 1) 2 BRARX  under development) UERDEEER

(“Xingye Wulian”) BAREREN  and property EEREE

together with its subsidiaries B (48[ &  management and

(collectively, the “Xingye EYHEE ) value-added

Waulian Group”) services fee 45,884 45,982

Notes: Wizt -

(i) Ever Diamond Group are entities controlled by the Ms. Huang. 0] XEE®AMHHangZ TG 2 &
Zensun Development Group and Xingye Wulian Group are entities B IRmEREEREEYHEES
ultimately controlled by Ms. Huang’s daughter, Ms. Zhang. M Huang X = 2 Z 55k = H &=l

ZEE-
(ii) These transactions were based on terms mutually agreed by (ii) RERGIIERE R KRBT Z ER

both parties. These transactions constitute continuing connected
transactions as defined under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s senior notes and bank and
other borrowings amounting to approximately RMB4,284,452,000
(31 December 2021: approximately RMB6,922,774,000) were
guaranteed by related companies which are controlled by Ms.
Huang, and her daughter, Ms. Zhang. No asset of the Group was
pledged to these related companies in respect of these guarantees.

The Group is licensed by Zensun Real Estate to use the trademark
of “Zensun” and “IEfE” on a royalty-free basis until July 2025.

EE - WHEK ETRBE4AZET

MN2022%F 128318 - REE B L
ZEARBTREMEEHNARE
4,284,452,0007C (2021412 A318 : 4
AR #6,022,774,0007T) 2 8817 M E At
BEEEAHuang® T R E L BRI %
FlzBEEARER - MERZSERE
ZERBEARIBHFAEEEE -

AEEEEEEET I IRAENEERELE
£ Al Zensun | & [ IE 7 | 12 £2025F 7
A o
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41.

42.

2022412 H31H
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(b) Qutstanding balances with related parties:

Details of the Group’s balances with related parties as at the end
of the reporting period are included in notes 25, 27 and 28 to the
financial statements.

41.

BEALXRS (&)
() HEEALZAMELY :

RBER  NEBEHEBEA L2 &%
FHIEH R I SRR 5E25 ~ 27 %28 ©

(©) Compensation of key management personnel of the Group: (©) AEEETEEEABTH
2022 2021
2022%F 20215
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R AR¥BT R
Short term employee benefits EHESEN 1,995 1,946
Post-employment benefits B2 1A 122 85
Total compensation paid to MEEZEEEAE
key management personnel SR E A EE 2,117 2,031

Further details of directors’ and the chief executive’s emoluments
are included in note 9 to the financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, no transaction has been entered into with
the directors of the Company (being the key management personnel)
during the year other than the emoluments paid to them (being key
management personnel compensation) (2021: Nil).

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 28 August 2013, a new share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) was adopted by the Company. The purpose of the Share Option
Scheme is to motivate eligible persons who contribute to the success of the
Group’s operations. The Share Option Scheme remains in force for 10 years
from that date, unless otherwise cancelled or amended. Eligible persons
of the Share Option Scheme include (i) a director or proposed director
(including an independent non-executive director) of any member of the
Group; (i) a direct or indirect shareholder of any member of the Group; (i) a
supplier of goods or services to any member of the Group; (iv) a customer,
consultant, business or joint venture partner, franchisee, contractor, agent
or representative of any member of the Group; (v) a person or entity that
provides research, development or other technological support or any
advisory, consultancy, professional services to any member of the Group;
and (vi) a landlord or tenant (including a sub-tenant) of any member of
the Group. Subject to the terms of the Share Option Scheme, the Board
shall be entitled at any time during the life of the Share Option Scheme to
offer the grant of any option to any eligible person as the Board may in its
absolute discretion select and the basis of eligibility shall be determined by
the Board from time to time.

42.

EENTETRAEMEZE—FFFE
NI MR -

Br EX PR ERE SN RERLHEEARR
AEF(NEEERABR)ETEMR
5 ERAREXNEREEZERASR
Bz B2 B S0 (20214F : &) -

BRETE

MR2013F8 A28H AR AR B ETE
([HERRAERTEl)) - BERRAERT B B ER B A%
EEBKREMBEBZABBAL - BIEBK
FESHSKIER] - RAIBREEIRZBERE—ER
H+F - BREFEZAEERATBRE)NSE
EERKE AR ZERRIEXTES(BIEBIE
HITEE)  ()\AEBEAKE AT 2 EEHE
BRE (AEBTAKE AR ZERERE
HER  (WAEBETAKERRZEFE « %l
B ¥R EEEBN  BFEEA &
B8E  RESIKEX  VALXEBIMKERA
IRALAT B S E A Al S S SRR - A
B FERBZALTRER  RVI)AEEER
KERARIZEETHME(BELMAF) - RIEE
R AT B 2 G R 0 REERRERT 818 R
Bl EEeARME2ERBREZIMNG
BERALREELERE  MEBRELERE
HEZSET -
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

Pursuant to the Share Option Scheme, the maximum number of shares in
respect of which options may be granted is such number of shares which,
when aggregated with shares subject to any other share option scheme(s),
must not exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the Company as at the
date of the annual general meeting approving the Share Option Scheme
on 28 August 2013. The maximum number of shares issuable under share
options to each eligible person in the Share Option Scheme within any
12-month period is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at
any time. Any further grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject
to the shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their respective associates, are
subject to approval in advance by the independent non-executive directors
(excluding any independent non-executive director who is the grantee
of the options). In addition, any share options granted to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive director, or to any of their
respective associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any time and with an aggregate value (based on the price of the
Company’s shares at the date of grant) in excess of HK$5,000,000, within
any 12-month period, are subject to the shareholders’ approval in a general
meeting.

The amount payable upon the acceptance of an option is HK$1.00. The
period within which an option must be exercised shall be such period as
the Board may in its absolute discretion determine at the time of grant, save
that such period shall not be more than 10 years commencing on the date
of grant of an option.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the Board, but
may not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the Company’s
shares as stated in the daily quotation sheet of the Stock Exchange on
the date of offer of the grant, which must be a trading day; (i) the average
closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheets for the five trading days immediately preceding
the date of offer of the grant; and (i) the nominal value of the Company’s
shares.

The total number of shares in respect of which options may be granted
under the Share Option Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10% of the
shares of the Company in issue as at the date the annual meeting approving
the Share Option Scheme on 28 August 2013, without prior approval from
the Company’s shareholders. The number of shares issued and to be issued
in respect of which options granted and may be granted to any individual in
any one year is not permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company
in issue at any point in time, without prior approval from the Company’s
shareholders. Options vested immediately and may be exercised at any
time not exceeding a period of 5 years from the date on which the share
options are accepted.

During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, no options have
been granted under the above-mentioned scheme.

r\
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42, MERESTEI(E)

BIREARERT S - ATReiR i 2 B RRE S R 2 IR
MEE LR - BEREAMEREAES R 2
BN RZTEBBAARRQRRK201348 728
B EBRETZNRRATFKE BB R
TR Z210% o REMR 1 = {8 A HiR R BB AR
R ERETESAEBALETZRNE
BER  UAARQRBIEMAEBERETRD1%E
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31 December 2022 2022412 A31H
43. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 43. AR B EARRRT

COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the Company at the

end of the reporting period is as follows:

ARABRIME PR P BEARRBER BT -

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBT T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment L E S 58 60
Investments in subsidiaries RSB RARZEZE 324,181 324,181
Total non-current assets IERBEERTE 324,239 324,241
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Accounts receivable, other receivables and other assets  FEURBR X - ELfth e UG FRIA N B b & & 4,221 4,697
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss BAFEFABRZ SREE 247,639 423,889
Amounts due from subsidiaries E U B /B A B3 IE 8,243,220 8,426,995
Cash and cash equivalents RekFeEMEIER 5,002 14,555
Total current assets MENEERTE 8,500,082 8,870,136
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Other payables and accruals EtERERETER 78,745 119,205
Bank and other borrowings RITREMBEE 1,369,088 1,265,028
Amounts due to subsidiaries R MIB A RIFRIE 1,511,379 197,169
Total current liabilities mENE BB 2,959,212 1,581,402
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEZRE 5,540,870 7,288,734
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES EEHABERABERE 5,865,109 7,612,975
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FERBEE
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE 1,092,026 2,274,113
Total non-current liabilities SEmB B BB 1,092,026 2,274,113
Net assets BEFE 4,773,083 5,338,862
EQUITY ER
Share capital A% 7R 5,326,923 5,326,923
Reserves (Note) () (553,840) 11,939
Total equity T 4ATE 4,773,083 5,338,862
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43. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 43. AR FMBARRERE ()
COMPANY (CONTINUED)
Note: Mjﬁi{ o
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: ARRZ FHEHRNT -
Capital
reduction Exchange Other Retained
reserves reserve reserve earnings Total
BARHEDR
RER INE 1B Hibf# & REBER #ast
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AR®ET T ARET T ARET T ARET T
At 1 January 2021 R2021F1A1H 119,330 (146,789) 82,674 425,819 481,034
Total comprehensive FREHEEIBERE
loss for the year = (170,437) = (143,674) (814,111)
2020 final dividend paid B {20205 R HIAR 2 - = = (154,984) (154,984)
At 31 December 2021 R2021F12831H &
and 1 January 2022 2022F1 F1H 119,330 (817,226) 82,674 127,161 11,939
Total comprehensive ER2EKkE
income/(loss) for the years (518 ) 4258 - 465,700 - (1,031,479) (565,779)
At 31 December 2022 2022912 A31H 119,330 148,474 82,674 (904,318) (553,840)
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31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

44. PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES 44, WEBEATME

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company at 31 December MR2022F12A318 * AR AT EMBARIZE

2022 are as follows:

Place incorporation/

Nominal value of
issued ordinary/

R

Percentage of

registration and registered equity attributable
Name place of business share capital to the Company Principal activities
REMRER SR A it 2 BRTERE AR ES
=1 SE—E 31 EMRAEE EmzEDL FEXEH
Direct Indirect
B i3
75 Wall Street, LLC USA Note (i) = 100  Property investment
XEH Htat() MERE
American Housing REIT, Inc. USA Common stock - 99.8 Property investment
XH USD6,256 MERE
EiEA6,256 % TT
AHR First Borrower, LLC USA Note (i) - 99.8 Loan financing and
EJE1 Hizt0) property investment
EREE RERE
AHR Second Borrower, LLC USA Note (i) = 99.8 Loan financing
FEH Htat() BEREE
American Senior Housing REIT, USA Note (i) - 99.8  Property investment and
LLC EH iz investment holding
MR E RIRE R
ASHR McKinney, LLC USA Note (i) = 99.8  Property investment
=S5 Htat() MERE
ASHR First, LLC USA Note (i) - 99.8 Property investment
EE ligzal) MERE
China Credit Singapore Pte. Ltd.  Singapore Ordinary shares 100 — Investment holding
sk SGD13,417,282 LB R
L iBA% 13,417,282
IR TT
Expats Residences Pte. Ltd. Singapore Ordinary shares - 100  Property investment
EIMIIES SGD25,002 MERE
I3k 25,002
I IT
Heng Fung Capital Company Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100 —  Property investment and
Limited BE HK$2 securities trading
BERmERR AR @R AB T MERERFFEE
Keng Fong Foreign Investment USA Common stock = 100  Property investment
Co., Ltd. =S USD250,000 MEKRE

A% 250,0003 7T



44.

PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES

(CONTINUED)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company at 31 December

2022 are as follows: (continued)

Place incorporation/

Nominal value of
issued ordinary/

44,

Annual Report 2022

TRITEER

M~ AR ()

20224128310 » ARREEBMBARIZE

BT - ()

Percentage of

registration and registered equity attributable
Name place of business share capital to the Company Principal activities
REMRER S, R A it 2 BRTEE AR EMS
%8 R I MR EE EmzBEDL FEXH
Direct Indirect
HiE i
Singapore Service Residence Singapore Ordinary shares - 100  Property investment
Pte. Ltd. ESMIE SGD1,250,000 MERE
Ei@ik1,250,000
IR TT
Xpress Credit Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares - 100  Securities trading
FREEBERAQA BB HK$1,260,000 BHREE
L mA%1,260,00078 7T
ZH USA, LLC USA Note (i) 100 — Investment holding
= M) REER
Xingcheng Holdings Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares = 100  Investment holding
BUR IR A R A ) B HKS$1 "EER
LRI
S ECXEEZRNAER AT PRC Registered capital - 100  Investment holding
Note (i) A RMB1,000,000 B
Bt a2 i) EERIIE- N
AR #1,000,0007T
FTEF R IR B B IR AT PRC Registered capital - 100  Property development
Note (i) Hh RMB400,000,000 MEERE
Bt (i) EERIIIE- N
AR #¥400,000,0007C
BGEBBEXERAR PRC Registered capital - 100  Property development
Note (i) il RMB50,000,000 YR
B (i) EERIIE= N
AR #50,000,0007T
SEIEEEBEX AR AT PRC Registered capital - 100  Property development
Note (ii) i RMB50,000,000 YIFER
ioEsa() EERIIE= N
AR #50,000,0007T
A EEKCHREXER AR PRC Registered capital = 100  Property development
Note (ii) i RMB300,000,000 MEERE
B 57 (i) EERIIE= N
AEE#300,000,0007T
EEZEFREEXER AR PRC Registered capital = 100  Property development
Note (i) H RMB50,000,000 YIEER
Bt &2 i) EERIIE=

A ¥50,000,0007T
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31 December 2022

44.
(CONTINUED)

2022412 H31H
PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company at 31 December

2022 are as follows: (continued)

Nominal value of

Place incorporation/ issued ordinary/

44.

B A R (AR

R2022%F 128318 * XAREEHBRARIZE

BT (&)

Percentage of

registration and registered equity attributable
Name place of business share capital to the Company Principal activities
SRR T it 2 ERTERE AN B ML
=18 REEUE EfRAEE ERZED FEEK
Direct Indirect
B i3
AERNEXEGRAR PRC Registered capital = 100  Property development
Note (ii) F RMB50,000,000 YEIER
Bt &2 i) EERIIE= N
AR #50,000,0007T
LB EER AR PRC Registered capital = 100  Property development,
Note (ii) F RMB50,000,000 project management
Bt (i) EERIIE= services
AR #50,000,0007T Y¥ER - B EBRE
AFEIERERNEXER AT PRC Registered capital = 100  Property development
Note (i) th RMB100,000,000 MEBR
Bt a2 (i) AR
AR #100,000,0007T
EEEFEEEARAA PRC Registered capital - 100  Property development
Note (i) i RMB100,000,000 MEERE
Bt &t (i) AR
AR#100,000,0007C
A EE T EEBR AR PRC Registered capital - 100  Property development
Note (i) 3 RMB50,000,000 E 3
Bt a2 i) FERIIE=WN
AR #50,000,0007T
A ER R ERXGR AR PRC Registered capital - 100  Property development
Note (i) F RMB100,000,000 YEI R
M (i) T ER
AR #100,000,0007TC
IR EEBEXEERAR PRC Registered capital = 100  Property development,
Note (ii) F RMB300,000,000 project management
K7t (i) FEMEAR services
A R #300,000,0007C VIR - BB BERG
IR EGEEERAR PRC Registered capital - 100  Property development,
Note (i) F RMB200,000,000 project management
HraE (i) EERHIIE= N services
AR#200,000,0007T YRR - BB BERG
IR B EBR AR PRC Registered capital = 100  Property development
Note (i) th RMB100,000,000 MEBR
Bt a2 i) AR

A #100,000,0007T



44.

PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES

(CONTINUED)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company at 31 December

2022 are as follows: (continued)

Place incorporation/

Nominal value of
issued ordinary/

Annual Report 2022 — T~ " FFIR

4. MBLRAHME(E)

R2022%F12A318 * ARAREEHBRARIZE

£ (&)

Percentage of

registration and registered equity attributable
Name place of business share capital to the Company Principal activities
SRR T it 2 BRTERE AN B ML
=18 R B TR AEE EmZEDL FEEK
Direct Indirect
B i3
SR IER BT ER R AR PRC Registered capital - 100  Property development
Note (ii) F RMB100,000,000 VIR
Bt et (i) EERIIE= N
AR #100,000,0007C
TR EEERAR PRC Registered capital = 100  Property development
Note (i) H RMB50,000,000 VISR
B a3 (i) EERHIE= N
AR #50,000,0007T
AEERREEXEERAT PRC Registered capital = 100  Property development
Note (i) th RMB100,000,000 MEBR
Bt a2 (i) AR
AR #100,000,0007T
AREIER S EFEAR AR PRC Registered capital - 100  Property development,
Note (i) A RMB100,000,000 project management
K £ i) EE AR services
AR#100,000,0007C YIEERE - THE EERY
AL EFEER AR PRC Registered capital - 100  Property development
Note (i) il RMB100,000,000 MEER
Bt a2 i) &R
AR#100,000,0007T
AR EESHEERRAR PRC Registered capital — 100  Property development
Note (i) il RMB100,000,000 MEER
M (i) T ER
AR #100,000,0007T
T EERKEEGR AR PRC Registered capital = 100  Property development
Note (i) il RMB100,000,000 MEER
Bt a2 i) EERIIE= N
AR #100,000,0007C
IR EEEBR AR PRC Registered capital = 100  Property development
Note (i) H RMB100,000,000 YISER
B a7 (i) EERHIIE= N
AR #100,000,0007T
A ERNEERXARAA PRC Registered capital = 100  Property development
Note (i) th RMB100,000,000 MEBR
Bt a2 i) AR

A #100,000,0007T
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44. PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES 44,
(CONTINUED)

B R R ()

R2022F12A31H  ARRIEEMBARIZE
BT - (&)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company at 31 December
2022 are as follows: (continued)

Place incorporation/

Nominal value of
issued ordinary/

Percentage of

registration and registered equity attributable
Name place of business share capital to the Company Principal activities
REMR AR SR A it BRTERE AT EML
=t R B R AR EE EREzEIL FEEK
Direct Indirect
HiZ R
TR IEEFINEEBR AR PRC Registered capital = 100  Property development
Note (ii) F RMB100,000,000 VIR
B (i) EERIIE= N
AR #100,000,0007C
AAAREZEER AR PRC Registered capital = 100  Property development
Note (i) H RMB20,000,000 VISR
B (i) EERHIE= N
AR #20,000,0007T
AR IERET A E X ER AT PRC Registered capital = 100  Property development
Note (i) th RMB100,000,000 MERR
Bt a2 (i) AR
AR #100,000,0007T
TEERBREEAR AR PRC Registered capital - 100  Property development
Note (i) i RMB100,000,000 MEERE
Bt &t (i) AR
AR#100,000,0007C
TR EE B ARAA PRC Registered capital - 100  Property development,
Note (ii) F RMB100,000,000 project management
Bt a2 i) EEAR services
AR#100,000,0007T YR - JAE BEEIRG
A EEEREEERRAR PRC Registered capital — 100  Property development,
Note (i) i RMB100,000,000 project management
K1 a£ (i) A AR services
AR #100,000,0007T YR - BB BERG
TmEEEXEERAR PRC Registered capital = 60  Property development
Note (ii) F RMB200,000,000 YR
B (i) EERIIE= N
AR #200,000,0007C
AEERENEEXER AR PRC Registered capital = 100  Property development
Note (i) H RMB100,000,000 YISER
B (i) EERHIIE= N
AR #100,000,0007T
B EERTREERAT PRC Registered capital = 100  Property development
Note (i) th RMB100,000,000 MERR
Bt a2 i) AR

A #100,000,0007T



44.

PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES

(CONTINUED)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company at 31 December

2022 are as follows: (continued)

Place incorporation/

Nominal value of
issued ordinary/

Annual Report 2022

R2022F12A318 » ZRAREEHB AT Z?

£ (&)

Percentage of

4. MBLRAHME(E)

TRITEER

registration and registered equity attributable
Name place of business share capital to the Company Principal activities
SRR T it 2 BRTERE AT FEML
=t R B AR AR EE EmZEDL FEEK
Direct Indirect
B i3
AEEEBHEEEXER AR PRC Registered capital = 100  Property development
Note (i) il RMB100,000,000 MEER
Bt et (i) EERIIE= N
AR #100,000,0007C
AERREMEEER AR PRC Registered capital = 60 Property development
Note (i) 2 RMB300,000,000 MEER
B a3 (i) EERHIIE= N
AR #300,000,0007T
AmEEne EERNERAA PRC Registered capital = 100  Property development
Note (i) th RMB100,000,000 MEBR
Bt a2 (i) AR
AR #100,000,0007T
TFEAMBEEEERAR PRC Registered capital - 100  Property development
Note (i) i RMB20,000,000 MEER
Bt &t (i) AR
AR #20,000,0007C
FEREBXERAA PRC Registered capital - 100  Property development
Note (i) A RMB100,000,000 YIEERE
Bt a2 i) EEAR
AR#100,000,0007T
RIGHEBEXEERAA PRC Registered capital = 100  Property development
Note (i) il RMB50,000,000 MEER
M (i) [ERIIE= N
AR #50,000,0007T
T EEEEEEEBRAR PRC Registered capital = 100  Property development
Note (i) il RMB100,000,000 MEER
Bt a2 i) EERIIE= N
AR #100,000,0007C
TR IEEH S EEBRAR PRC Registered capital = 90  Property development
Note (i) s RMB100,000,000 MR
B a7 (i) EERHIIE= N
AR #100,000,0007T
AREEEmENEEER AR PRC Registered capital - 100  Property development
Note (i) th RMB100,000,000 MEBR
Bt a2 i) AR

A #100,000,0007T
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31 December 2022
44,

2022412 H31H

PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES 44.

(CONTINUED)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company at 31 December
2022 are as follows: (continued)

Nominal value of

Place incorporation/ issued ordinary/

registration and registered
Name place of business share capital
REMRER SR A 3t BRTER
=L R MR MR EE

B A R (4]

R2022%F 12318  ARAREEHBRARIZE
BT« (8

Percentage of
equity attributable

to the Company Principal activities

A IER R E X GR AR
Note (ii)
Bt (i)

rEEmEERERAR
Note (i)
Bt &2 i)

AT E R AR AR
Note (i)
H a3 (i)

AR EERERAR
Note (i)
ogzall),

AEEHEEERR AR
Note (ii)
ogzall)]

IR EmBXEERATA
Note (i)
M (i)

REBREEXERAA
Note (ii)
Bt (i)

BMEBEHEREFRIA

Note (i)
Bt &2 i)

MR EEZEERAA
Note (i)
H a3 (i)

PRC
I

PRC
Gal=d

PRC
I

PRC
el

PRC
q:

PRC
q:

PRC
i

PRC
Gal=d

PRC
Gal=d

Registered capital
RMB100,000,000
EERIIE= N

AR #100,000,0007C

Registered capital
RMB100,000,000
EERIlIE=N

AR #100,000,0007T

Registered capital
RMB50,000,000
ERllIE=ZN

AR #50,000,0007T

Registered capital
RMB100,000,000
EERIIIE- N

AR #¥100,000,0007C

Registered capital
RMB100,000,000
FETHE AR

AR #100,000,0007C

Registered capital
RMB200,000,000
FEE AR

AR #200,000,0007T

Registered capital
RMB20,000,000
EERIIE= N

AR #20,000,0007T

Registered capital
RMB50,000,000
EERllIE=N

AR #50,000,0007T

Registered capital
RMB10,000,000
ERllIE=ZN

AR #10,000,0007T

AR ES
EEzBEDtE FEHEK
Direct Indirect
HiZ A
- 100  Property development
MR
- 100 Property development,
hotel operations
MEER  BELE
- 100  Property development
MEER
- 100  Property development
MEERE
- 70 Property development
MEER
- 100  Property development
YR
- 100  Property development
MR
- 100  Property development
MEER
- 51  Property development

MRER
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PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES

(CONTINUED)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company at 31 December

2022 are as follows: (continued)

Place incorporation/

Nominal value of
issued ordinary/

Annual Report 2022

R2022F12A318 » ZRAREEHB AT Z?

£ (&)

Percentage of

4. MBLRAHME(E)

TRITEER

registration and registered equity attributable
Name place of business share capital to the Company Principal activities
SRR T it 2 BRTERE AN B ML
=18 R B AR AR EE EmZEDL FEEK
Direct Indirect
B i3
EEMEREXBRAR PRC Registered capital = 90  Property development
Note (i) il RMB20,000,000 MEER
Bt et (i) EERIIE= N
AR #20,000,0007T
BRI EEmEXEBRAR PRC Registered capital - 90  Property development
Note (i) H RMB20,000,000 VISR
B a3 (i) EERHIE= N
AR #20,000,0007T
MNEREEER AT PRC Registered capital = 100  Investment holding
Note (i) m RMB100,000,000 BB
Bt a2 (i) AR
AR #100,000,0007T
B FEEREEEER AR PRC Registered capital - 99.9  Property development
Note (i) wh RMB30,000,000 MEBR
Bt &t (i) AR
AR #30,000,0007T
A EEENEEBRAR] PRC Registered capital - 100  Property development
Note (i) A RMB50,000,000 3
Bt a2 i) FERIIE=WN
AR #50,000,0007T
KGR EXAR AR PRC Registered capital = 100  Property development
Note (i) il RMB20,000,000 YRR
M (i) T ER
AR #20,000,0007T
T IEEEEEXER AR PRC Registered capital = 100  Property development
Note (i) il RMB30,000,000 YRR
Bt a2 i) EERIIE= N
AR #30,000,0007T
RERESEFRAR PRC Registered capital = 100  Property development
Note (i) H RMB50,000,000 VISR
B a7 (i) EERHIE= N
AR #50,000,0007T
BNTEE B EBRA A PRC Registered capital = 100  Property development
Note (i) th RMB20,000,000 MEBR
Bt a2 i) AR

A #20,000,0007T
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2022412 H31H

PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES 44.

(CONTINUED)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company at 31 December
2022 are as follows: (continued)

Nominal value of

Place incorporation/ issued ordinary/

B A R (4]

R2022%F 12318  ARAREEHBRARIZE
BT« (8

Percentage of

registration and registered equity attributable
Name place of business share capital to the Company Principal activities
SRR T it 2 CRTEE AT EML
=t R B R AR EE EREzEIL FEEK
Direct Indirect
HiZ A
BREEmEXERAR PRC Registered capital = 100  Property development
Note (ii) F RMB20,000,000 YR
B 57 (i) EERIIE= N
AR #20,000,0007T
BILEFREEERAR PRC Registered capital = 100  Property development
Note (ii) F RMB20,000,000 VISR
B a3 (i) EERHIE= N
AR #20,000,0007T
HILFZFRBEERR AT PRC Registered capital = 100  Property development
Note (i) th RMB30,000,000 MERR
Bt a2 (i) AR
AR #30,000,0007C
BB IEREXEBR AR PRC Registered capital - 100  Property development
Note (i) h RMB20,000,000 MEER
Bt &t (i) AR
AR #20,000,0007C
FHNFZERBEEBRAR] PRC Registered capital - 100  Property development
Note (i) w RMB20,000,000 MERR
Bt a2 i) EEAR
AR #20,000,0007T
BAOmEZEFEEXERAR PRC Registered capital = 56  Property development
Note (i) Hh RMB10,000,000 MEER
Bt &2 i) [ERIIE= N
AER#10,000,0007T
FYEREFKLERRAR PRC Registered capital = 100  Investment holding
Note (ii) F RMB100,000,000 REZER
B 57 (i) EERIIE= N
AR #100,000,0007C
AREREEEERAR PRC Registered capital = 100  Property development
Note (i) H RMB20,000,000 VISR
B a7 (i) EERHIE= N
AR #20,000,0007T
M EEEEEER AR PRC Registered capital = 100  Property development
Note (i) th RMB50,000,000 MERRE
Bt a2 i) AR

A ¥50,000,0007T
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PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES 44. MIBRARHE(R)

(CONTINUED)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company at 31 December
2022 are as follows: (continued)

Nominal value of
Place incorporation/ issued ordinary/

R2022%F12A318 * ARAREEHBRARIZE
BT - (&)

Percentage of

registration and registered equity attributable
Name place of business share capital to the Company Principal activities
SRR T it 2 BRTERE AN B ML
=18 REEUE TR AEE EmZEDL FEEK
Direct Indirect
B i3
T EEENEFEBR AR PRC Registered capital - 100  Property development
Note (i) il RMB50,000,000 MEER
Bt et (i) EERIIE= N
AR #50,000,0007T
AEEZEERRAR PRC Registered capital = 100  Property development
Note (i) H RMB20,000,000 VISR
B a3 (i) EERHIE= N
AR #20,000,0007T
BN FREXERRAT] PRC Registered capital = 41 Property development
Note (i) th RMB20,000,000 MEBR
Bt a2 (i) AR
AR #20,000,0007T
ERGIEEEEBRAR] PRC Registered capital - 100  Property development
Note (i) i RMB20,000,000 MEER
Bt &t (i) AR
AR #20,000,0007C
RS GEEE X AR A PRC Registered capital - 100  Property development
Note (i) A RMB20,000,000 3
Bt a2 i) FERIIE=WN
AR #20,000,0007T
LR FHEXEGRAR PRC Registered capital = 100  Property development
Note (i) il RMB20,000,000 MEER
M (i) T ER
AR #20,000,0007T
AEEERREEER AR PRC Registered capital = 100  Property development
Note (i) il RMB20,000,000 MEER
Bt a2 i) EERIIE= N
AR #20,000,0007T
R EREEEGRAR] PRC Registered capital = 100  Property development
Note (i) H RMB30,000,000 VISR
B a7 (i) EERHIE= N
AR #30,000,0007T
AFEIERZE I EXEER AT PRC Registered capital = 100  Property development
Note (i) th RMB10,000,000 MEBR
Bt a2 i) AR

A ¥10,000,0007T
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44.

45.

46.

PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES 44.

(CONTINUED)

Notes:

(i) No capital contribution is required from the member unless otherwise
required by law.

(ii) Entities established in the PRC are limited liability companies with no
English names registered or available upon establishment.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 45.

There was no material subsequent event undertaken by the Group after 31
December 2022.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 46.

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the
board of directors on 30 March 2023.

B A R (4]

Bt

i) BIEERERTTHRE - BRELEREERNERML
ARBKERE]

(ii) RPEBEKL 2 BEABRAR - BREKE -
BB R SR TS o

BEHREE

2022612 A31H#% - NEBEMEEITERE
A& AR =1E -

#EM R

R RN 2023 F3 530 HEEE S Ht AR
RRETEE o
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
B HME

For the year ended 31 December

HZE12H31HILLEE

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
2022%F 20215 20204 20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT AR¥ TR ARMT T AR¥T T ARBT T

Results ES
Revenue W25 9,657,056 13,421,496 8,069,061 8,887,186 601,470
(Loss)/profit for the year FE(EER) EF (2,942,527) 385,042 778,373 1,151,458 28,492
Attributable to: FEAG -
Owners of the Company RARER A (2,946,113) 399,470 782,988 1,151,571 29,971
Non-controlling interests IR 3,586 (14,428) (4,615) (113) (1,479)
(Loss)/profit for the year FEE(BR) R5H (2,942,527) 385,042 778,373 1,151,458 28,492
As at 31 December
M2H831H
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
20224 20214 20204 20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETx
Assets and liabilities EERER
Total assets BB E 61,543,899 68,239,873 67,152,356 51,942,189 39,569,259
Total liabilities ReE 56,223,654 (60,041,216) (59,263,541) (48,205,148) (38,447,747)
Net assets FEE 5,320,245 8,198,657 7,888,815 3,737,041 1,121,512
Non-controlling interests JEVERR R = (4,211) (185) (14,885) 3,593 7,053
Equity attributable to ERATEEA

owners of the Company PE{h R 5,316,034 8,198,472 7,873,930 3,740,634 1,128,565
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EBREERRAA

Zensun Enterprises Limited

PARTICULARS OF MAJOR INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

FTEREVHUE

As at 31 December 2022

7R2022412 A31H

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES REYF
Gross area

Location (approximately) Effective % held Type Lease term

1t B AR EREEE  E5 iR
(%) (%)

No.883 North Bridge Road, Shop on 1/F. and 28,732 sq.ft. 100% Home Office Long-term lease
27 Home Office Units on various floors, 28,732F 5 R EN S NS RETEL
Southbank, Singapore 198785

4 Residential Units, Dakota Residences, 7,298 sq.ft. 100% Apartment Long-term lease
34-42 Dakota Crescent, Singapore 399939 7,298F HR BT REATHA

30/F and Carpark No. C8 on 2nd Carparking Floor, 3,480 sq.ft. 100% Office premises and Long-term lease
Wyndham Place, No.44 Wyndham Street, 3,480F R Car Parking space REAFL
Central, Hong Kong WAEYERBEAL

BERPIREFAMREREER D
3012 K215 =5 C85R B fis

Glen Carr House, 1433 North Hamilton Drive, 29,000 sq.ft. 99.8% Senior house Freehold
Derby, Kansas, 67037, U.S. 29,000F 757 %R communities KA SN

Glen Carr House 774 35 B 5 B2 TN & tE REFERER
North Hamilton Drive 14335

Oxford Grand McKinney, 2851 Orchid Drive, 69,700 sq.ft. 99.8% Senior house Freehold
McKinney, Texas, 75070, U.S. 69,700 5 R communities KAFERE

Oxford Grand McKinney i 733 Bl{& i Hi M S B fE REEREES
Orchid Drive 28515

Land parcels located at 671-180-012, 67.5 acres/ 100% Vacant land Freehold
013, 014, 015, 016, 017, 018 273,200 sg.m./ ZEETH KA SERE
Desert Hot Springs, County of Riverside, 2,940,300 sq.ft.

State of California, 92503, U.S. 67.5m,

iz 7 3£ B AN A & % Desert Hot Springs.Z. 273,200 5%/
11 52671-180-012 * 013 ~ 014 015 2,940,300F 7R

016017 ~ 018
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